
Chairman and 
Chief Executive’s report 

We have sharpened our 
strategic focus to best 
capitalise on the growing 
digitai opportunities in 
our markets 

In 2006 we made important progress. We continued 
to expand our authoritative content delivered 
through market leading brands; we invested 
behind a wide range of innovat ie new digital 
p rod u c tc; we ach i eved f u rt h e r significant efficiency 
gains across the business; and we s a w a  strong 
performance from recent acquisitions which are 
accelera t ing ou r progress 

The 2006 financial results were encouraging, with good revenue growth and 
improved underlying rnargins. We have also delivered strong cash generation 
and higher returns on invested capital. 

Additionally, we have sharpened our strategic focus to best capitalise on the 
growing digitat opportunities in our rnarkels. We believe we can derive [he best 
returns on our brand franchises and digital investments by focusing on the 
Ccience. Medical, Legal and Business markets. We have accordingly announced 
[he planned cale of our Harcourt Education division. It is our  intention to return 
the net proceeds from the sale to our  sharehoiders. 

Business strategy 
Looking forward, our  strategy is focused on four priorities: delivering authoritative 
content through leading brands, driving online solutions, improving cost efficiency 
and selective portfolio development. 
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Our strategy is focused on 
four priorities: delivering 
authoritative content through 
ieading brands, driving oniine 
solutions, improving cost 
efficiency and selective 
portfolio development 

Our business and financiai 
strategy is directed at 
deiivering consistent adjusted 
earnings per share growth 
of a min imum of 10% annuaìly 
at constant currencies 

Deiivering authoritative content through leading brands. We deiiver authoritative, 
and t o a  great extent proprietary, content of the highest quality through market 
leading brands. In  our publications and selvices our professional customers find 
the essential data, anaiysis and cornmentary to  support their decisions. Editoriai 
investment and selective acquisitions are generating new sources of content to 
widen the product offering to our custorners. and to expand into new segrnents 
and geographic regions. As online information sources increase, our trusted 
leadership hrands continue to play an ever more vital r o k  

Driving onl ine solutions. Over the last five years online revenues have built to over 
EZ.Obn/€Z.?bn. or 37% of our total revenues. Authoritative information, technoiogy 
enahled and increasingly integrated into customer workflows, is rnaking our 
custorners more effective professionaily and making Reed Elsevier a more valued 
partner. As our customers and core markets rapidly migrate online, our 
opportunities to leverage our Ieadership brands and authoritative proprietary 
content increase. Digitai technoiogy enables US to move up the vaiue chain with 
our customers by providing a range of innovative soiution orientated products that 
hecome embedded in their workflow. This wil1 piay a major part in Reed Elsevier's 
strategy going forward. 

Improving cost efficiency. Digital growth and an increasingly synergistic portfolio 
provide opportunities to further leverage scale and commonalities across the 
business, sharing ski l l  sets, resources and collective experience. Cuhstantial cost 
savings have been made over the last five years, and there are further 
opportunities across the suppiy chain and in technology and inirastructure to 
continue this progress. Irnproving cost efficiency remains a fundamental feature of 
Reed Elsevier. 

Seiective portfol io development. In addition to significant internal investment, we 
wil1 continue to allocate capital and resources in a very disciplined way to pursue 
seiective acquisition opportunities that acceierate our strategy and overall 
business progress. We wil1 continue to focus on strong brands and proprietary 
content, customer workflow solutions, leading technologies and expansion into 
attractive adjacent markets. most notahly in legal soiutions, risk management, 
health and e-business. 

Financial strategy 
We expect progress in the development of our digital business to deliver good 
revenue growth and, with the irnprovernents in cost efficiency and organisationai 
effectiveness, this wilt fiow through at a higher rate to operating profitahility. 
With an increasing and substantial portion of the revenues being delivered hy 
subscription based products and the trend to longer term contracts, we wil1 be a 
more consistent business. r. ' 

We aim to distribute 70-80% of free cash flow through dividends and share 1 

c.' 
acquisitions, so maintaining capitai efficiency aligned to our strategy. Our capiïai 
wil1 be invested where we can grow our business while making sustainahie retbrns 
in exces5 of our risk adjusted cost of capital. We a i r  to rnaintain our credit ra$in'g 
in order to take advantage of opportunities within our rnarkets and access the'7-j 

c': 

huyhacks. The halance wi l i  he invested in the business, rnainly through 

cheapest sources of borrowing. i::, ;, 
Our business and financiai strategy is directed at delivering consistent adjusted 
earnings per share growth of a minimum of 10% annuaiiy at constant currencies. 
Our incentive programmes are desiyned in support of these strategie5 and in 
creating shareholder value. 

Financial performance 
The 2006 financial results were, as noted earlier, encouraging. Revenues were up 
6%. adjusted operating profits up 9% and adjusted earnings per share up 11% at 
constant currencies. 

The qualityof the operating profits is underpinned by the strong cash flow. with 
95% of adjusted operating profits converting into cash. Increasing profitability and 
capital discipline drove the return on capital ernpioyed in the business 
0.4 percentage points higher to  9.8% post tax. 



Totai revenues were up 6% at 
constant  currencies 

+ 1 w o  
Adjusted earnings per share f o r  Reed Elsevier 
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV were up  11% at 
constant currencies 

The longer te rm prospects for 
Reed ELsevier are promising. 
Our strategy is ciear, the 
business wel i  focused 
and we are leveraging our 
resources to good effect 

At reported exchange rates, refiecting ihe impact of the weaker US dollar 
particularly on our rolling currency hedying programme. adjusted earninys per 
share were up 7% for Reed Elsevier PLC !o 3 3 . 6 ~  and up 9% for Reed Elsevier NV 
to €0.76. 

Reported earnings per share were up 38% to 2 5 . 6 ~  and up 37% to €0.59 for 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV respectively, reflecting the improvement 
in underiying operating performance togeiher with a iower reported tax charge. 

The Boards are recommending an increase in the equalised finai dividends for 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Ekevier NV of 10% and 14% respectively, to give 
total dividends for the year up 10% and 13% Ithe differential growth rates reflect 
movements in the steriing/euro exchange ratel. 

Dividends paid in the year. together with share buyhacks under the annuai 
share repurchase programme, have distributed €588 rniiiion/€864 miliion 
to shareholders, representing 72% of the free cash flow of €817 million/ 
€1,201 miliion. 

Board changes 
Cees van Lede retires at ihe Annual Generai Meeting after iour years of service 
and we thank h im for his substaniial contribution in that time. Lisa Hook was 
elected as a non-executive director last April. bringiny a wide experience of the 
media and technoiogy sectors to our board discussions. We have nominated 
Roberl Polei as a non-executive director. Robert is chief executive officer of 
Gucci Group, before which he held senior positions at Unilever. He brinys with 
him strong marketing skilis and a record of entrepreneurial leadership. 

Outlook 
Going into 2007. market conditions are generally favourable. Elsevier, LexisNexis 
and Reed Business are expected to make further yood progress in the deveiopment 
of Reed Elsevier's digitai business as wel i  as show good revenue mornentum and 
margin irnprovernent. 

Our financial goal is for a minimum of 10% adjusted earnings per share growth 
at constant currencies. The adjusted earnings per share for 2007 wi i i  howevei- 
he impacted by dilution on the sale of the seasonal Harcourt Education business. 

The langer term prospects for Reed f isevier are promising. Our strategy is clear, 
the business wel i  focused and we are ieveraging our resources !o good effect. 
The digitai horizon is expanding and Reed Eisevier is wei1 placed. 

Our business is dependent on the energy and enterprise of our 37,000 people 
operatiny across the globe. They do an outstanding job, caring greatly about what 
they do and the customers they serve. We couid not ask for greater commitment 
and professionaiisrn, and we want to take this opportunity to thank them all. 

Jan Hommen 
Chairman 

Sir Crispin Davis 
Chiei Executive Officei 



I 
Operating and 
financial review 

ELSEVIER 
Elsevier i5 a world leading provider of scientific. 
technica1 and medical information and mbt ions 

@ LexisNexis. 
LexisNexis is a global provider of  authoritative 
iegai. tax. reguiaioiy. pubiic records, news and 
business iniorrnalion and workflow solutions 

Harcourt 
Educatión 

Harcourt Education is a leading publisher s e r i n g  
the pre-Kindergarten tn  Grade 12 schonis and 
assesment markets in :he US and internalionally 

' @. Reed Business 
Reed Business is a leading global business-to- 
business publisher and exhlbition organiser 

Introduction 

Reed Elsevier is a wor ld leading publisher and information 
provider. The principal operations are in North America 
and Europe and cornprise science; rnedical, legal, 
education and business publishing. Total revenues for the 
year ended 31 December 2006 were f5,398rn. 

Reed ELsevier is we l l  positioned in markets with attractive 
growth prospects and has a clear investrnent led growth 
strategy focused on building revenue rnomentum across 
a l l  our businesses. 

Long term growth in our markets is expected to be 
sustained by the continuing demand for professional 
inforrnation. IrYaddition, professionals are looking for 
significant improvements in productivity through access 
to highly functional online services and associated 
workflow solutions. 

Following a detailed review, Reed Elsevier has 
sharpened its strategic focus to best capitalise on 
the growing digital opportunities in i ts rnarkets. 
Reed Elsevier wi l l  derive the best returns on its brand 
franchises and digital investrnents by focusing on the 
science, rnedical, legal and business markets. 
Accordingly, Reed ELsevier has announced the planned!'; 
sale of the Harcourt Education division. I 

'i -. 
L. 

c ..I Forward looking statements 

The Reed Elsevier Annual Reports and Financiai Statements 2006 contain forward 
looking statements within the rneaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act 1933. 
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act 1934, as amended. 
These statements are subject to a nurnber of risks and uncertainties and actual 
results and events couid differ materiaily from those currently beiny anticipated 
as refiected in such forward iooking statements. The terrns 'expect', 'shouid be', 
'wilt be'. and simijar expressions identify forward Lookiny statements, Factors 
which rnay cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseen in forward iooking 
statements inciude, but are not l imited to: yeneral economic conditions and 
business conditions in Reed Elsevier's markets; exchange rate fiuctuations; 
customers' acceptance of its products and services; the actions of competitors; 
iegisiative, fiscai and regulatory deveiopments; changes in law and legai 
interpretation affecting Reed Elsevier's inteilectuai property rights and internet 
cornrnunications: and the impact of technoloyical change. 



S t ra  tegy 

Revenue by division 

Revenue by source 

Revenue by media 

Prin, 53% 

Reed Elsevier is wel l  positioned in markets with 
attractive growth prospects and has a clear investment 
led strategy built around four priorities, closely linked 
to financial strategy 

Deiiver authoritative content through ieading brands. Reed Eisevier deiivers 
authoritative, and t o a  great extent proprietary. content of the highest quaiity 
through market ieading brands. In its pubiications and services Reed Eisevier's 
professional customers find the essentiai data. anaiysis and commentary to support 
their decisions. Editoriai investment and seiective acquisitions are generating new 
sources of content to widen the product offering to customers, and to expand into 
new segments and geographic regions. As oniine information sources increase, 
Reed Elsevier's trusted ieadership brands piay an ever more vitai roie. 

Drive oniine soiutions. Over the Last five years digitai revenues have built to E2.0bn 
or  37% of totai revenues. Authoritative information, technoiogy enabied and 
increasingly integrated into customer workflows, is making Reed Eisevier's 
customers more effective professionaiiy and rnaking Reed Elsevier a more valued 
partner. 

As Reed Eisevier's customers and core markets rapidiy migrate online, there are 
opportunities :o ieverage its ieadership brands and authoritative proprietary 
content. Digitai technoiogy enabies Reed Eisevier to move up the vaiue chain with 
its customers by providing a range of innovative soiution orientated products that 
become embedded in their workflow. This wi i i  play a major part in Reed Eisevier's 
strategy going forward. 

Irnprove cost efficiency. Digital growth and an increasingiy synergistic portfoiio 
provide opportunities tu further ieverage scaie and comrnonaiities across the 
business, sharing ski l i  sets, resources and coliective experience. Substantiai cost 
savings have been made over the last five years. and there are further 
opportunities across the suppiy chain and in technoiogy and infrastructure to 
continue this progress. Improving cost efficiency remains a fundamentai feature of 
Reed Elsevier. 

Seiective portfol io deveiopment. In addition to significant internai investment. 
Reed Eisevier wi l i  continue to aiiucate capital and resources to pursue seiective 
acquisition opportunities that acceierate its strategy and,overaii business progress. 
Reed Eisevier has spent f l . 6 b n  on acquisitions over the Last five years, focused on 
strong brands and proprietary content, customer workfiow soiutions, leading 
technologies and expansion into attractive adjacent markets, most notably in iegal 
solutions. risk management, health and e-business. 

Financial strategy 
Reed Eisevier expects progress in the deveiopment of its digitai business to deliver 
good revenue growth and, with irnprovements in tost efficiency and organisationai 
effectiveness. this wil( flow through at a higher rate to operating profitability. 
Additionai financiai benefits are delivered through ieverage and fiscai efficiency. With 
an increasing and substantiai portion of the revenues being delivered by subscription 
based products and the trend to longer term contracts, Reed Eisevier wil1 be a more 
consistent business. 

Reed Eisevier aims to distribute 70-80% of free cash fiow through dividends and 
share buybacks. The baiance wi i i  be invested in the business, mainiy through 
acquisitions, so maintaining capital efficiency aligned to its strategy. Reed Elsevier's 
capital wilt be invested in growth areas which wi i i  make sustainabie returns in excess 
of the risk adjusted cust of capitai. Reed Eisevier aims to maintain its credit rating in 
order to take advantage of opportunities within its markets and access the cheapest 
sources o f  borrowing. 

This business and financiai strategy is directed a t  deiivering good revenue growth, 
continuous rnargin improvement, strong cash generation and growing returns on 
capital. These are targeted to deliver consistent adjusted earnings per share growth 
of a minimum 10% annualiy at constant currencies. Our incentive programmes are 
designed in support of these strategies and in creating shareholder value. i 
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Description of business Elsevier provides its customers with scientific, technical 
and medical content and tools that improve productivity 
in research, healthcare and heakh education 

Eìsevier 
Elsevier provides its customers with 
scientific. technical and medical content 
and toois that improve productivity in 
research, hcaithcare and heaith 
education. Total revenues for the 
year ended 31 December 2006 were 
E1,521m. Eisevier is a giobai business 
with principai operations iocated in 
Amsterdam, London. Oxford, New York, 
Philadeiphia. St Louis, San Francisco, 
Paris. Munich, Madrid, Singapore, Tokyo 
and Delhi. 

Elsevier portfol io 

0 SaT e1ectronic 

Eisevier serves a globai network of 
7,000 editors, 70,000 editoriai board 
rnembers, 200,000 referees, and more 
than 500,000 authors. lts products 
reach more than 10 mii i ion researchers 
in 4,500 institutions, 5 miliion students, 
and 15 rniilion doctors, nurses and 
heaith professionals. 

Growth in the scientific information 
market is driven by increases in 
research output, R & D  spend. the 
number of researchcrs woridwide, and 
the need f o r  irnproved research 
efficiency. In healthcare. growth is 
driven by advanccs in medical science 
and the shift f rom activity-based to 
outcomes-based models of patient care 
and associated demands for increased 
productivity. 

The Science & Technoiogy division 
of Elsevier is the worid's ieading giobai 
academie journal publisher. Its 
customers are the world's iibraries, 
scientists and professionals, who rely 
on Elsevier to provide high quality 
content, to review, pubiish, disseminate, 
and prcserve research findings, and to 

create innovative workfiow toois to 
improve their efficiency in using that 
information. Each year Science & 
Technoiogy publishes over 170,000 new 
research articies in sorne 1,200journals 
and over 1,000 new book tities, as weli  
as secondary material in the form of 
supporting bibiiographic data, indexes 
and abstracts, and tertiary information 
in the form of review and reference 
works. Its fiagship eiectronic product, 
ScienceDirect. is the worid's largest 
database of journai articies and is 
accessed by over 10 miliion users 
each year. ScienceDirect holds over 
8 mil i ion scientific articles and an 
expanding portfolio of books online, 
which currentiy inciudes 55 major 
reference works, 151 book series and 
scven handbooks in 170 volumes. 

ScienceDirect on%ne usage 
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Full text a i t ic le downloads Imillions1 

Eisevier's growing online offerings aiso 
inciude Scopus, an abstract and index 
database and navigationai tooi, which 
now has ncariy 30 million abstracts of 
scientific research articles from 15,000 
peer reviewed pubiications, over 15 
miliion patents. and references to over 
200 miiiion web pages. 

The Heaith Sciences division of Eisevier 
serves medical rescarchers, practising 
professionals, cducators and students 
giobaily. It pubiishes over 700 journals, 
including a number of journais for 
learncd societies. and over 2,000 book 
tities and ciinical rcference works 
annuaily. Growth in electronic health 
information is acccierating and the 
business continues to expand its portfolio 
of online health information tools for 
education. practitioncr reference. and 
point of care dccision rnaking. Elsevicr's 

ciinical reference and decision support 
products inciude MD Consult, which 
now has over 7.5 miilion page views per 
rnonth and more than 1,700 institutional 
custorners. Health Sciences provides 
oniine and multimedia products for use 
by both rnedicai facuities and students 
to support core textbooks, inciuding 
Evoive, which now has more than 
700,000 registered users and. through 
the acquisition of Heaith Education 
Systems Inc diagnostic tests for nursing 
and ailied heaith markets. 
lnternationaily, Eisevier ieverages its 
print and oniine content into new 
markets through foreign ianguage 
versions. 

Eisevier aims to make valued 
contributions to the science and heaith 
communities by combining worid ciass 
content with productivity enhancing 
soiutions for scientific researchers and 
heaith professionals worldwide. Its key 
strategie areas of focus are: quaiity of 
content; custorner selvice and 
customer relations; deveiopment of 
productivity enhancing oniine soiutions; 
expanded penetration of high growth 
markets; and organisationai efficiency. 

. .  . c_ . -., ~~ ~~ cf 
1' Scopus The world's largest abstract and 
citalion database of scientific research, Scopus 
indexes the bibliographic information of  15,000 
fitles from 4,000 different publishers and covers 
al1 scientific disciplines 
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Description of business 
con tin ued 

capabilities, investment in technology 
and cost reduction 

The principal competitors of Harcourt 
Education are Pearcon, McGraw Hii l  
and HM Riverdeep 

Reed Business 
Reed Business provides information 
and marketing soiutions to business 
professionals in the United States, the 
United Kingdom, continental Europe. 
Austraiia and Asia. The division 
also organises trade exhibitions 
internationaily. Totai revenues for 
the year ended 31 December 2006 
were t1.418m. 

Reed Business portfol io 

828 magaiinei . rjlr j  ""8,". 

Business to business magazines and 
community websites provide an 
effective marketing channel through 
which advertisers reach their target 
audiences. increasingiy deiivered 
through ieading brands in each sector. 
Alongside print magazines. demand is 
growing for online products which 
provide irnprovements in productivity 
through quicker and easier access to 
more comprehensive and searchable 
data. Business to business marketing 
spend has been driven historically by 
levels of corporate profitability, which 
itself has followed overall growth in 
GDP and business investment. 

Reed Business Information publishes 
over 400 trade magazines, directories, 
newsletters and loose leaf publications, 
and over 200 websites and oniine 
services. Important magazine titles 
include Variety and lnterior Design in the 
United States; Computer Weekly, Estates 

~ 

Business to business magazines and comrnunity websites 
provide an effective marketing channel through which 
advertisers reach their target audiences. Reed Exhibitions 
organises trade exhibitions and conferences 
internationaily, with 460 events in 38 countries 

Gazette. Flight International and New 
Scientist in the United Kingdom; and 
Eisevier and FEM in the Netherlands. 
Reed Business Information also 
publishes directories in selected 
markets. Through its Reed Construction 
Data business, it provides nationwide 
coverage of construction project 
information for the United States. 

In the majority of Reed Business 
Information's sectors, strong demand is 
being seen for online services. Reed 
Business Information has been 
particularly successful in developing 
online products and services, which have 
been growing at  over 20% per annum 
and now account for 24% of Reed 
Business Information revenues. These 
products inciude totaljobs.com. a major 
online recruitment site in the UK; ICIS- 
LOR, a globai information and pricing 
sewice for the petrochemicals sector; 
ribb.nl. a business information service in 
the Netherlands; and Kellysearch.com. 
an industrial search engine which is 
being launched internationally. 

+ totaíjobs.com is the UK's leading commercial 
recruitment websile, attracting nearly 2 million 
unique jobieekers every month. With over 100,000 
vacancies at any one time. totaljobs.com IS  one of 
the U K s  fastei l  growing online recruitment 
businesses 

Reed Exhibitions organises trade 
exhibitions and conferences 
internationaily, with 460 events in 
38 countries. attracting over 90,000 
exhibitors and more than six mil i ion 
visitors annually. lts exhibitions 
and conferences encornDass a wide 

range of sectors including IT. 
manufacturing, aerospace, ieisure, 
electronics, food and hospitality, travei 
and entertainment. Increasingly Reed 
Exhibitions is also developing online 
services to increase the effectiveness 
and efficiency of its trade shows. 

Reed Business aims to be the first 
choice of business professionals for 
information and decision support in its 
individual markets and for marketing 
services. Its key strategic areas of focus 
are: to continue to grow rapidly existing 
and new online products and services in 
key markets: to continue to deveiop 
print franchises through brand 
extensions and redesign: to further 
upgrade the portfolio through 
investment, acquisition and divestment; 
to expand geographically in fast growing 
markets; and to continuously improve 
organisational effectiveness through 
investment in peopie, further 
development of online competencies. 
and cost reduction programmes. 

REI online revenue 

24% 

0 u 0' D' I 
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O n h e  revenue as percentage 01 RBI revenue 

Business to business magazines are 
primarily distributed on a "controlled 
circulation" basis in the United States, 
whereby the product is delivered without 
charge to quaiified buyers within a 
targeted industry group based on 
circulation lists deveioped and 
maintained by the publisher. Magazines 
distributed on this basis are wholly 
dependent on advertising for their 
revenues. In the United Kingdom, 
business magazines are distributed 
both on a "controlled circuiation" basis 
and a "paid circulation" basis. In the 
Netherlands, a higher proportion of 
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publications is soid by "paid circulation". 
Distribution of magazines is conducted 
primariiy through national postal 
selvices, suppiemented by news-stand 
saies throuyh unaffiliated whoiesaiers. 
Oniine products and selvices are 
generaiiy soid through dedicated sales 
forces and intermediaries, inciuding 
revenue sharing arrangements with 
other online sewice providers, and by 
direct promotion. Exhibition space is 
soid through industry specific and 
nationai saies teams. 

Reed Business Information's titles 
cornpete with a number of pubiishers on 
a title by title basis in individual rnarket 
sectors, the largest competitors being: 
Advanstar, CMP Media [United Business 
Medial. Haniey Wood, McGraw Hili, 
Prism and Nieisen in the United States; 
EMAP Business Cornmunications, 
Nieisen and CMP Media in the United 
Kingdom: and Wolters Kiuwer and 
Nieisen in the Nethedands. Rred 
Business Information competes for 
online advertising with other business- 
to-business websites as wel i  as Google 
and other search engines. Competition 
in trade exhibitions and conferences is 
very fraymented. Within the United 
States, the main cornpetitor is Nielsen. 
Outside the United States, cornpetition 
comes primariiy i rom industry focused 
trade associations and convention 
centre and exhibition hai i  owners. 

T Variety is the entertainment and media 
industry's premier i o u m  of news and analysis 
The Chinese edition IS published biweekly 

Resources 
and investment 

Reed Elsevier's most important 
resources are its intangibie publishing 
sssets and its workforce of sorne 
36.600 employees. 

Market leading brands 
Reed Elseviers businesses own 
nurnerous market leading brands, 
imprints. titles and technology platforms. 

Within Eisevier, ScienceDirect is the 
Norid's iargest fu l i  text online scientific 
research service. Many of Eisevier's 
lournais are the ioremost publications 
in their field and a primary point of 
reference ior  new research. The Lancet 
has been publishing medical research, 
news and anaiysis since 1823. Similariy, 
Elsevier's bookiist contains numerous 
pre-eminent and long standing titles. 

THE LANCET 

T The Lancet is a leading independent and 
3uthoritativejournai in global medicine. It was 
'irst published in 1823 

Uithin LexisNexis, Lexis.com is 
-ecognised as one of the foremost 
m i ine  research tools for practising 
lawyers, providing subscribers with 
at tess to 5 biilion searchabie 
documents. The Shepard's Citations 
jeNice is a Weil known and hiyhiy 
reputed reference resource 
1"Shepardizing" is a common process 
for US lawyers checking the authority 
3 i  cases or statutory referencesl. 

Many of the Harcourt Education brands 
3nd imprints, inciuding Harcourt Schooi 
3nd Hoit, Rinehart & Winston have 

maintained market ieading positions 
for over fifty years. The Stanford 
Achievement Test Series is the 
most wideiy recognised educational 
achievement test in the United States. 

Reed Business's wel i  known magazine 
tities such as Variety, Estates Gazette 
and Elsevier are wideiy read for 
their authoritative content and up 
to date industry inteiiigence, whiie 
rnany of the Reed Exhibitions shows, 
which inciude Worid Travel Market. 
Mipim, MIDEM, Batimat and the 
PGA Merchandise Show, are 
acknowledged as the premier 
marketing events in their  field. 

T Reed Exhibitions is ihe worlds leading w e n k  
organiser. With overL60 events in 2006. it brought 
together over six miliion industry professionals 

' 1_1 
irom arouod theworid. 

,..r 
Investment I 

Reed Elsevier maintains and enhances 
the vaiue of its intanyibie assets L: 
through continuous investment in thk 
brands and imprints, new pubiishin'g:' 
innovative product and market (1:' 
development, and in the technology'::? 
platforms and publishing infrastructuie 
on which they are.based. Increasingiy, 
investment is being made in developiny 
diyitai workflow soiutions. 

Within Eisevier, the most significant 
investments in recent years have been 
in the ScienceDirect platform, 
digitisation of the archive of over 
6 mii i ion research articles, and in the 
Scopus database. Other significant 
areas of investment have been in new 
oniine clinical reierence toois and other 
e-heaith products and in oniine editoriai 
and production systems. 
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Recources 
and investment 
continued 

In LexisNexis, substantiai investment 
has been made in Total Solutions 
offerings such as Totai Litigator and 
Totai Practice Advantage. Alongside 
this, major investments have been 
made in technology. in particular in 
onliiie (research functionalities and in 
the developrnent of the giobai oniine 
deiivery platform. These investments 
are critical to providing integrated 
workfiow soiutions to our customers. 
Significant investment has aiso been 
made in new content development 
and in expanded sales and marketing 
activities. A major second data centre 
expanded operationai capabiiities and 
provides greater fiexibiiity in continuous 
deiivery. 

Harcourt Education maintains 
significant and expanding investment in 
new educationai textbook programmes 
and oniine technoioqy resources. and 
has continued to deveiop its ciassroom 
based oniine assessment product and 
the Unison scoring. administration and 
reporting platform. 

Within Reed Business, the focus has 
been on developing new oniine products 
and services, inciuding webzines, 
recruitment sites, search and 
subscription information and data 
services. Ongoing investment inciudes 
the international expansion of :he 
Keliysearch oniine industrial search 
engine and the continuing developrnent 
of the successful to:aijobs.com online 
recruitment website together with 
invesiment in the enabling 
inirastructure for al1 these web 
services. Reed Exhibitions has 
continued to expand its portfolio 
through new launches and geographical 
expansion. 

These investments are largeiy 
embedded within the cost base of the 
businesses as new product 
deveiopment and rnarket initiatives are 
a continuous activity. 

Reed Elsevier's most important resources are its 
intanqible publishinq assets and its workforce 
of 36,500 e'mployee; 

Workforce 
Reed Eisevier's workforce is highiy 
skiiied and a iarge proportion are 
graduates. We employ some 6.000 
IT speciaiists and developers, 
8.000 editoriai staff, and some 12,000 
specialist marketing, sales and 
customer service staff. Reed Elsevier 
aims to be an employer of choice, 
known for its best practices in 
recruitinq and developing employees. 

We seek to employ a workforce which 
refiects the diversity of our customers 
and communities. Our Labour and 
ernpioyment practices are consistent 
with the principies of the United 
Nations Giobai Compact regarding 
fair and non-discriminatory Labour 
practices. Every two years or  so we 
conduct a global employee opinion 
survey to identify areas for 
improvement. Every employee in the 
company takes part in the annuai 
Personai Deveiopment Programme. 
which reviews skilis and performance 
and identifies opportunities for 
recognition and advancement. The 
Personai Development Programme 
is aiso the primary tool for assessing 
and planning employee training. 

Workforce 
~ .~ 

O Ed~torial 

Reed Elsevier's remuneration policies 
are designed to attract. retain and 
motivate employees of the highest 
calibre and experience needed to shape 
and execute strategy. The remuneration 
packages of the directors and senior 
executives comprise a baiance between 
"fixed" remuneration and "variabie 
performance reiated" incentives, 
inciuding a variabie annuai cash bonus 
based on achievement of financial 
performance measures and individual 
key performance objectives, and ionqer 
term incentive schemes. Pension 
scherne membership is offered to a l i  
employees in the United Kingdom, the 
Netheriands, the United States and 
a number of other countries. 
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I Riskc 

The key risks facing Reed Elsevier 
a rke  from the highiy competitive and 
rapidly changing nature of our markets 
the increasingiy technologicai nature 
of our products and services. the 
international nature of our operations, 
and legai and regulatoiy uncertainties. 
Certain businesses are a k o  affected 
by the impact on pubiiciy funded 
custorners of changes in funding and 
by cyciical pressures on advertising 
and promotional spending. Reed 
Elsevier has an estabiished risk 
management procedure that is 
embedded into the operations of 
the businesses and is reviewed by 
the Boards and Audit Comrnittees. 
Important specific risks that have 
been identified and are being 
addressed inciude: 

3 Reed Elsevier's businesses are 
dependent on the continued 
acceptance by our customers of our 
products and services and the prices 
which we charge for them. We cannot 
predict whether there wil1 be changes 
in the future which wil1 aflect the 
acceptability of products, services 
and prices to OU: customers. 

3 We are investing signilicant amounts 
to deveiop and promote electronic 
products and platforms. The provision 
o1 these products and services is very 
competitive and is to some extent 
subject to factors outside our control 
such as competition k o m  new 
technoiogies and changes in 
regulation. There is no assurance 
that this investment wil[ produce 
satisfactory long term returns. 

3 Reed Eisevieis businesses are 
increasingiy dependent on electronic 
piatforms and networks, primarily 
the internet, lor  delivery of products 
and services. Although plans and 
procedures are in piace to reduce 
such risks, our businesses couid be 
adversely alfected if their eiectronic 
deiivery platforms and networks 
experience a signilicant faiiure, 
interruption, or  security breach. 

The key ricks facing Reed ELsevier arice from the highLy 
cornpetitive and rapidly changing nature of our rnarkets 

3 Our products and services are 
largeiy comprised 01 inteilectual 
property content deiivered through 
a variety of media. We rely on 
trademark. copyright, patent and 
other inteliectual property laws to 
estabiish and protect our proprietary 
rights in these products and 
services. However, there is a risk 
that our proprietary rights couid 
be chailenged, limited, invaiidated 
or circumvented. 

3 We operate a nurnber of pension 
schemes around the worid, the 
iargest schemes being of the 
defined benelit type in the UK, the 
US and the Netherlands. The assets 
and obligations associated with 
delined benefit pension schemes 
are particulariy sensitive to changes 
in the market vaiues of assets and 
the market reiated assumptions 
used !o value scheme iiabiiities. 

3 Our businesses operate in over 
100 iocations woridwide and our 
earnings are subject to taxation in 
many diflering jurisdictions and a! 
diflering rates. We seek to organise 
our affairs in a tax efficient manner, 
taking account of the jurisdictions 
in which we operate. However, tax 
laws that apply to Reed Elsevier 
businesses may be'amended by 
the relevant authorities. Such 
amendments, or their application 
to Reed Elsevier businesses. could 
adversely affect our reported resuits. 

The Reed Elsevier combined financial 
statements are expressed in pounds 
sterling and are. therefore. subject to 
movements in exchange rates on the 
transiation of the linanciai information 
of businesses whose operationai 
currencies are other than sterling. 
The United States is our most 
important market and, accordingiy, 
significant fiuctuations in the US dollar 
exchange rate could significantiy 
affect our reDorted results. 

Further details on risk management 
and internai control procedures are set 
out in the Struciure and Corporate 
Governance report on pages 26 to 31 

We recognise that Reed Eisevier and 
its businesses have a direct impact on 
the environment, principaiiy through 
the use of energy and water and waste 
generation and in our suppiy chain 
through paper use and print and 
production technoiogies. We are 
cornmitted to reducing these impacts, 
whenever possible, by iimiting resource 
use and by efficientiy empioying 
sustainabie rnateriais and technoiogies. 
We require our suppiiers and 
contractors to meet the sarne 
objectives. We seek to ensure that Reed 
Eisevier's businesses are compliant 
with a i i  relevant environmentai 
legislation and. accordingly, whilst 
environmental issues are important, 
we do not consider that they constitute 
a significant risk for Reed Eisevier.' 
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Operating review 

Revenue Ifml 

n5 IS +bo/, 
at constant 
currencies 

05 ' Ob 

Adjusted operating prof i t  IEml 

1,210 
1.18: 

I 05 

Adpsied figures and constant currency growth 
rates are used by Reed Elsevier as additional 
performance rneasures and are defined on 
page 25. Unless otherwise indicaled, al1 
percentage movernents in the operating review 
reler to  perlorrnance at constant exchange rales. 

Reported fiyures are reconciled 10 the adjusted 
f igurei  in lhe notes 10 the cornbined financial 
statements. Unallocated items cornprise 
corporate casts. return on pension schehe 
assets and interest on pension scheme liabilities 

Changeal 
2006 2005 canslanl 

fm currencies Reed Eisevier cornbined businesses Lrn 

Revenue 
Eisevier 1,521 1,436 +8% 
LexisNexis 1,570 1,466 +E% 
Harcourt Education 889 901 O Y0 

Total 5,398 5,166 + 6 Yo 

Reed Business 1.418 1,363 + 5 'IQ 

Adjusted operating profit 
Elsevier 
LexisNexis 
Harcourt Education 
Reed Business 241 214 +14% 
Unaliocated items 151 1201 
Totai 1,210 1.142 +9% 

465 449 +10% 
380 338 +13% 
129 161 -19% 

Divisional performance surnrnary 
Eisevier deiivered revenues and adjusted operating profits ahead 8% and 10% 
respectiveiy at constant currencies, or 5% and 8% before acquisitions and 
disposals. Growth was driven by strong subscription renewals and widening 
distribution of its scientific and medical journals and databases, as wel i  as new 
online product sales and a successful book publishing programme. In Health, 
our market strategies in electronic heaith information services are accelerating , 
through the iaunch of eiectronic reference materiais, medical education resources. 
and specialist information selvices and worki iow toois to enhance the efficacy of 
ciinical diagnosis and treatrnent. 

LexisNexis saw revenues and adjusted operating profits up 8% and 13% 
respectively a t  constant currencies. or 7% and 13% before acquisitions. 
Subscription renewais were strong, good growth was seen in new saies of its 
online information soiutions both in the US and internaiionaily. and in the Risk 
Information and Analytics business. The Total Solutions strategy iauhched in the 
year has gained good traction in the market, focused on the distinctive needs of 
iawyers across major areas of their workfiow. In Risk Information and Analytics, 
the Seisint business saw strong revenue growth and deiivered a 10% post tax 
return in oniy its second fu i i  year of ownership. 

Harcourt Education held revenues f la t  at constant currencies despite a weaker 
market. Adjusted underiying operating profits were 20% lower, largely reflecting 
investment ahead of the much stronger 2007 state textbook adoption market 
and the significant impact of underperformance and contract cost overruns in 
Assessment. Harcourt's US basal and supplementai businesses performed Weil 
to grow revenues 1% against a textbook market estimated to be down 6%. 
Harcourt won the leading share, at 38%. in the new state textbook adoptions in 
which it participated and the supplemental business sawa  good rnarket response 
to its new publishing. 

Reed Business revenues and adjusted operating profits were up 5% and 14% 
respectively a t  constant currencies, both in total and underlying..The oniine 
information services grew a t  over 20%. more than compensating tor print 
migration, and the Exhibition business periormed strongly. Reed Business has 
grown its digital revenues to $400m over the last five years almost entirely through 
organic investment and new product iaunches, leveraging its brands. content and 
market positions. With 24% of the revenues of the magazines and information 
businesses now from online services, the overall growth trajectory is encouraging. 
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Revenue growth [%I 

Underlying Acquiationsl Currency Reported 
OispOSalS 

~ 

Adjusted operat ing prof i t  growth [oz 

J. NetterA newúth edition Netler's Atlas of 
Human Anatomy was published in June 2006. It 
contains over 910 IIIustrafions of  lhe human body 
wi lh unsurpassed clarity and accuracy. 

Elsevier had strong subscription renewals, widening 
distribution of its scientific and medical journals and 
databases, growing new online product sales and a 
successful book publishing programme 

Change at 
zaob 2005 Constant 

Revenue 
Science & Technology 
Health Sciences 

Adjusted operating profit 
Adjusted operating margin 

Revenues and adjusted operating 
profits were ahead 8% and 10% 
respectively at constant currencies. 
or 5% and 8% before acquisitions and 
disposals. Underiying operating 
rnargins were 0.9 percentage points 
ahead before acquisition and currency 
effects, driven by revenue growth, 
stabilising investrnent leveis and 
further suppiy chain efficiency. 

The Science & Technology business 
saw organic revenue growth of 5% at 
constant currencies refiecting strong 
journai subscription renewais, at 97%. 
widening distribution through an 
expanded saies force, and good growth 
in oniine databases. ScienceDirect 
usage continues to grow a t  over 20% 
and e-oniy contracts now account for 
45% of journai subscription revenues. 
The Scopus abstract and indexing 
database has been wel1 received in the 
rnarket and is  seeing good.conversion 
of trials into f i rm contracts. 

Early in the year, the Science & 
Technoiogy business was reorganised 
into a more market-focused 
organisation, to better serve Large 
acadernic and governrnent institutions 
as weli  as to focus more directiy on 
smaller and rnid sized institutions, 
the corporate sector, and societies and 
individuals. Custorner satisfaction scores 
have significantiy irnproved during 
the year as a result of the sustained 
programme to improve service Levels. 
and new products and marketing 
strategies are being developed for 
under-penetrated segrnents. 

In Health Sciences. revenue growth 
was 13% at constant currencies, or  
6% underiying. Strong growth was 
seen in the nursing and aliied heaith 
professional sectors and in new society 

792 785 +4% 
729 A51 +13% ~~ 

1,521 1,436 +E% 
465 449 +10% 

30.6% 31.3% +0.7pts 

journai publishing. Oniine revenues are 
growing.rapidiy. up 37% in total. as the 
medical cornrnunity increasingly adopts 
oniine information services to drive 
productivity and enhance outcomes. 
The year saw increasing penetration 
of the ScienceDirect and MDConsult 
products and further launches made 
and pianned of electronic reference 
materials, rnedicai education resources. 
and specialist information services 
and workf low tools. 

The integration of the MediMedia MAP 
businesses acquired in August 2005 
is now complete. with revenue growth 
initiatives buiiding mornenturn and 
adjusted operating margins improved 
significantly. The acquisition in May of 
the Gold Standard drug information 
database and related products is 
accelerating our market strategies in 
eiectronic heaith inforrnation services 
to enhance the efficacy of clinical 
diagnosis and treatment. In December, 
the Endeavor software business was'-' 
soid foliowing a reappraisai of its 
position within Elsevier's overall 

' 
rnarket strategies. i~i 

I 

At reported exchange rates, adjusteb..' 
operating margins were 0.7 percenta'ge 
points lower largeiy refiecting the ioh, 
but rapidly irnproving. margins of t he "  
MediMedia acquisition made in 2005 
as wel! as the impact of the rolling 
three year currency hedging 
programme as the US dollar decline 
over the last few years works its way 
through the hedge rates. 

The outlook for Eisevier is positive. 
Cubscription renewals are strong. 
customer satisfaction is irnproving. our 
publishing programmes are expanding, 
new eiectronic product is deveioping 
weli. and distribution is widening. 
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Revenue growth [%i 

-1 - +1 :u 
Underiying Acquisitiansl Curiency R e i w i e d  

Oisposak 

Adjusted operating profit growth [%I 

L LexisNexis Total Litigator provides US 
litigators with a compiete and inlegraied set 

'. of online l o o k  and sewices 10 assisi them 
in managing cases thmugh each step of the 
litigation proiess 

LexisNexis saw strong subscription renewak, good growth 
in new sales of its online information solutions both in the 
US and internationally, and further good growth in 
risk information and anaiytics 

Change af 
2006 2005 mnslant 
Ern Crn currencies 

Reven u e 
United States 1,129 1,061 +8% 
International 441 405 +9% 

1,570 1.466 +8% 

Adjusted operating profit 380 338 +13% 
Adjusted operating margin 2&.2% 23.1% + l . l p i s  

Revenues and adjusted operating 
profits were up 8% and 13% 
respectively at constant currencies, 
or  7% and 13% before acquisitions. 
This 7% organic revenue growth 
cornpares with 6% in 2005 and 4% 
in 2004 and reflects the strengthening 
momentum in the business. 
The adjusted operating margin was 
1 .i percentage points higher refiecting 
the good revenue growth and tight 
cost control. 

In US Legal Markets, strong 
subscription renewais and additionai 
oniine information and soiutions saies 
to both Large and smai l  f i rms drove 
organic growth of 6 %  The Totai 
Soiutions strategy launched in the year 
has gained good traction in the market, 
focused on the distinctive needs of 
iawyers across four major areas of their 
workfiow: iitigation, client deveiopment, 
research and practice management. 
An integrated solutions product was 
also iaunched for the risk management 
market. The product portfolio was 
expanded through organic deveiopment 
and selective acquisition: Casesoft 
[iitigation case anaiysisl. Dataflight 
[online repository and tools for 
evidence management]. 

In Corporate and Public Markets 
organic revenue growth was 8% with 
continued strengthening in oniine 
news and business information, higher 
patent volumes and strong demand in 
risk management. The Seisint business 
acquired in September 2004 saw 
continued strong revenue growth and 
LexisNexis' existing risk management 
business has now been fui iy  migrated 
to the Seisint technology platform. 
The Seisint business deiivered a 10% 
post tax return in oniy its second fuil 
year of ownership, and returns 
continue to grow. 

The LexisNexis Internationai business 
outside the US saw underlying revenue 
growth of 8% driven by the growing 
dernand for LexisNexis' oniine 
information services across its markets 
and new pubiishing. The Totai Soiutions 
strategy is also being roiled out in these 
international markets behind increasing 
online penetration. In the UK this was 
accelerated with the acquisition of 
Visuaifiles [case management and 
cornpiiance tooisl. Particularly strong 
growth was seen in the UK, France. 
Germany, Canada and South Africa. 

The outlook for LexisNexis is positive. 
Revenue momentum is good, with 
strong subscription renewals, 
increasing take up of new online 
services and total soiutions across 
our markets, and strong dernand 
growth in risk management. 



Harcourt Education 
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Revenue growth [%I 

Adjusted operating profit growth [ % I  

& Holt Online Learning Holt. Rineharf and 
Winston has more than 3 mill ion registered users 
o1 its online lextbaoks a n d  programme resources. 
More than an online copy of  our print books. 
these resources include dynamic and interactive 
lulorials and planning and assessmenf tools 
for U5 schools grades 6-12. 

Harcourt Education's basal textbook and supplemental 
businesses performed wel l  against a weaker education 
rnarket to hold overall revenues flat. Profits were lower 
through investment ahead of major adoptions and 
underperformance in Assessrnent 

Change al 
ZOO6 2005 constant 

Crn irn wrrencies 

Revenue 
US Schools 6 Testing 796 806 0% 
International 93 95 +1% 

889 901 0% 
Adiusted oDeratina Drofit 129 161 -19% _ .  
Adjusted operating margin 14.5% 17.9% -3.4pts 

Revenues at Harcourt Education were 
flat against the prior year at constant 
currencies, whiist adjusted operating 
profits were 19% iower, or  20% iower 
before minor disposals. Adjusted 
operating margin was 3.4 percentage 
points lower at 14.5% iargeiy refiecting 
sales and marketing investment ahead 
of the much stronger 2007 adoption 
market, sales mix and the impact of 
the underperformance in Assessment. 

?he Harcourt US K-12 basai and 
supplemental businesses have 
performed wel1 both achieving 1% 
revenue growth in a US textbook 
rnarket estimated to be down around 
6 %  IThe weaker rnarket refiects the 
state textbook adoption cycle and 
reduced spending by elementary 
schools in non-adoption states partly 
as a result of significant prior year 
spending on federally supported 
Reading First programmes.1 Harcourt 
won the leading market share, at 38% 
in new state textbook adoptions in 
which i t  participated, with great success 
from new publishing particuiariy in the 
secondary schoois market in iiterature 
and language arts, science and sociai 
studies. A good rnarket response to 
new publishing in the supplemental 
business, and more manageabie 
backiist attrition. continues the 
recovery in this business as it replaces 
traditional supplemental product with 
more cornprehensive intervention 
programmes, and reorientates sales 
and marketing activities from individuai 
school to district level. 

The assessment business saw revenues 
4% lower refiecting the net ioss of 
state testing contracts and lower 
catalog sales. Operational difficulties 
surrounding a major state testing 
contract and knock on effects on other 
contracts resuited in significant cost 
overruns. New management were 
appointed in the year and organisational 
changes made which are beginning io 
make a real difference to  the business. 
Whilst revenues are expected to deciine 
further due to lost contracts, the 
actions taken have positioned the 
business f o r a  recovery in performance 
and margin this year and next. 

The Harcourt Education International 
business saw revenues 1% higher. 
Strong growth in South Africa and in 
UK export sales were offset by a weak 
performance in a flat UK market. 

The outlook for Harcourt Educationtis 
positive. The textbook adoption cycle"' 
has entered a strong growth phase, ' 
the new textbook programmes lo r  2007 
are being Weil received in the market: 
and the pipeiine is strong with a hig6 
ievei of development aciivity. The ndw 
publishing in the supplementai ::, 
business is gaining rnomentum and:"' 
Assessment is on a f i rm recovery pa.h 
Organisationai changes in the business 
are expected to  deiiver increasingly 
integrated market strategies and 
significant further cost efficiencies. 

, ~ .  
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Revenue growth [%I 

Underlying Acquisitionil Curieocy Reporled 
Disposals 

Adjusted operating profit growth 1%) 

underlying Acquiiitiand Currency Reporled 
Disposals 

4 New Scientist has chronicled the way 
science and technology have lransforrned 
our understanding of  the world and ourselves 
since 1956. New.Scienlis1 celebrated its f i f l ieth 
anniversaiy last year and 5 d d  over 200,000 copies 
worldwide of its special anniversary edition 

Reed Business's online information services grew 
rapidly, more than compensating for print migration, 
and the exhibitions business again performed strongly 

Change  al 
2006 2005 conslanl 

Ern t m  currencies 

Revenue 
Reed Business Information 896 892 + I  % 
Reed Exhibitions 522 471 +12% 

1,418 1,363 +5% 
Adjusted operating profit 2.41 214 +14% 
Adjusted operating margin 17.0% 15.7% +1.3pts 

Revenues and adjusted operating 
profits were 5% and 14% ahead 
respectively at constant currencies, 
with acquisitions and disposals having 
no overall effect on these growth rates. 
Adjusted operating margins were 1.3 
percentage points higher, refiecting 
the strong growth in the exhibitions 
business and tight cost controi. 

At Reed Exhibitions, revenues were 
12% higher, or  10% underlying. 
Strong growth was seen in key shows 
across the principal geographies in 
the US, Europe and Asia Pacific, with 
particuiariy good performances in 
Japan and in the international Midem 
entertainment and property shows 
held in Cannes. Whilst much of 8 2 8  
marketing is moving online, the 
demand for exhibitions remains very 
strong as exhibitors and buyers place 
great value on physical meetings and 
events to baiance other information 
sources and connections. Underiying 
profit growth was 16% including 6% 
from share of joint ventures cyciing in. 
The net effect of other biennial shows 
cyciing in and out is broadly neutral. 
The Sinopharm exhibitions acquired 
in a joint venture in China in 2005 are 
performing weli ahead of plan and new 
shows are to he launched in 2007. 

The Reed Business Information 
magazine and information businesses 
saw continued strong underiying growth 
in oniine services of over 20%. more 
than compensating for the 3% decline ir 
print as the business migrates oniine. 
Overall RBI revenues were up 2% 
underiying. With 24% of revenues now 
from oniine services, the overall growth 
trajectory is encouraging. Adjusted 
operating profits were up 12% through 
continued action on costs as resources 
are rebalanced to the digitai opportunity. 

In the US, RBI underiying revenues 
were 2% iower. Online revenues are 
growing rapidiy, particuiarly f rom 
advertising in community sites and new 
services, and are close to offsetting the 
print deciine seen across most sectors. 
In the UK, RBI underlying revenues 
were up 6% refiecting the strong growth 
in oniine recruitment [up 39%1 and 
online subscription services /up 17%). 
Oniine revenues now account for 41% 
of RBI UK revenues with strong growth 
and new iaunches set to increase this 
further. Print revenues benefited f rom 
innovative pubiishing and design. In 
continental Europe underlying revenues 
were up 3%. with again good growth in 
new oniine services and some further 
recovery in advertising markets. 
Revenues in Asia grew 6%. 

As part of a repositioning of the 
portfolio, the US manufacturing product 
news tabloid business was soid 
during the year as wel i  as a number 
of other tities and North American 
manufacturing shows. In January 2007 
RB1 acquired Buyerzone, a fact growing 
oniine service for matching vendors 
and buyers in procurement tendering 
that can be ieveraged across RBI's 
categories. 

The outlook for Reed Business is 
encouraging. Strong demand for oniine 
services, good growth in exhibitions 
and ongoing portfolio management 
are steadiiy repositioning the business 
for good long term growth. 

, 



Financial review 

Revenue growth [%I  

Underlying Acquisitionsl Curiency Reported 
Disposals 

Adjusted operating profit growth [%I 

Underlying Acquisitiond Currency Reporled 
Disposals 

Revenue by geographical market 

Revenue by geographical or ig in 

North Arner~ca 55% 
Uniied Kinodom 17% 

Changeat 
2006 2005 Change constant 

% currencies 

Reported f igures 
Revenue 5,398 5.166 +I% +6% 

Profit before tax 721 701 +3% +8% 
Net borrowings 2.314 2,694 
Adjusted f igures 
Operating profit 1,210 1,142 +6% + 9 % 
Profit before tax 1,052 1,002 +5% +9% 
Operating cash fiaw 1,152 1,080 t 7 %  +7% 
Operating margin 22L% 22.1% 
Operating cash fiow conversion 95% 9 5% 

Reed' Elsevier combined businesses 

t m  Em 

O perat i ng prof it 880 839 +5% +9% 

Adjusled figures are presented as additional performance measures and are stated before lhe 
amorlisation of acquired intangible aisets. acquisilion integralion costs. disposals and other non 
operating items. related tax effects and movemenls on deferred tax balancei nol expecled to crystallise 
i n  the near term. Recomlial ions belween Ihe reported and adjusted tigures are provided in the noles to 
the combined financial s ta temenk  

Income statement 
Revenue, at €5.398m, increased by 4%. 
At constant exchange rates, revenue 
was 6% higher, or  5% excluding 
acquisitions and disposals. 

Reported figures 
Reported operating profit. after 
arnortisation of acquired intangibie 
assets and acquisition integration costs 
at E880rn. was up 5%. The increase 
refiects the strong underiying operating 
performance, partiy offset by the effect 
of a weaker US doiiar hedge rate 
applicabie for Eisevier journai 
subscription revenues and other 
currency transiation effects. 

The amortisation charge in respect of 
acquired intangible assets arnounted to 
E297rn, up f21m. principaiiyas a resuit 
of recent acquisitions. 

Acquisition integration costs arnounted 
to E23m 12005: E21 rnl. Net losses 
on business disposais and other 
non operating items were E l m  
12005: net gain E2ml. 

The reported profit before tax, inciuding 
arnortisation of acquired intangible 
assets, acquisition integration costs 
and non operating items, at E721m, 
was up 3 %  

The reported tax charge of €96m 
compares with a charge of E237m in 
the prior year principaily reflecting 
favourabie settiernent of tax on prior 
year disposals and movernents on 
deferred tax baiances arising on 
unreaiised exchange differences on 
long term inter-affiliate, lending. 
These deferred tax movernents are 

recognised in the income statement but 
are not expected to crystallise i n  the 
foreseeabie future. 

The reported attributable profit of 
E623m compares with a reported 
attributabie profit of E462m in 2005, 
refiecting the strong operating 
performance and the iower reported, 
tax charge. 

Adjusted figures 
Adjusted figures are used by Reed . 
Eisevier as additionai performance 
measures and are stated before 
arnortisation of acquired intangible 
assets and acquisition integration costs, 
and, in respect of earnings, refiect a 
tax rate that excludes the effect of 
rnovernents in deferred taxation assets 
and iiabilities that are not expectedv..:, 
to crystaiiise in the near term. Profitr! 
and [oss on disposals and other non; 
operating i tems are also excluded from 
the adjusted figures. Cornparison at i- ,  
constant exchange rates uses 2005 !. 

average and hedge exchange rates.!.-' 
c:' 

Adjusted operating profit, at E1,210m,' 
was up 6%. At constant exchange ratds. 
adjusted operating profits were up 
9%,  or  8% exciuding acquisitions and 
disposals. Underiying operating 
rnargins irnproved by 0.7 percentage 
points. Overall adjusted operating 
rnargins, up 0.3 percentage points at 
22.4%. were held. back by the inclusion 
of iower rnargin acquisitions and 
currency effects. most particularly 
the year on year rnovernent in hedge 
rates in Elsevier's journai subscriptions. 
IThe net benefit of the Elsevier science 
journai hedging programme is lower in 
2006 than in 2005 as the effect of the 
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weaker US dollar is systematicaiiy 
incorporated within the three year 
rolling hedging prograrnrne.1 

Within adjusted operating profit, the net 
pension expense linciuding the net 
pension financing items inciuded within 
operating profitl was E2Om lower than 
in the prior year principaily refiecting 
a wider differential between the return 
on plan assets and interest on pension 
obligations. The charge for share based 
payments was E49m 12005: E57ml. 
Restructuring costs, other than in 
respect of acquisition integration, were 
E21rn.12005: E25ml. 

Net finance costs. at f l 5 8 m .  were 
E18m higher than in the prior year due 
to higher short term interest rates and 
the financing cost of acquisitions and 
the share repurchase prograrnrne, 
partly offset by the benefit of strong 
free cash flow. 

Adjusted profit before tax was E l  ,052rn. 
up 5% compared to the prior year. 
At constant exchange rates. adjusted 
profit before tax was up 9 %  

Currency profile adjusted profit 
before tax 

The effective tax rate on adjusted 
earnings was 24.1% 12005: 24.6%). The 
effective tax rate on adjusted earnings 
excludes the effect of rnovements in 
deferred taxation assets and liabilities 
that are not expected to crystaiiise in 
the near term, and more cioseiy aiigns 
with cash tax costs. Adjusted operating 
profits and taxation are ais0 grossed 
up for the equity share of taxes in 
joint ventures. 

The adjusted profit attributable to 
sharehoiders of €796- was up 6% 
compared to the prioryear. At constant 
exchange rates, adjusted profit 
attributabie to shareholders was up 9%. 

Cashflows and debt 
Adjusted operating cash flow was 
f1.152m. up 7 %  and 7% at constant 
currencies. The rate of conversion of 
adjusted operating profits into cash flow 
was 95% 12005: 95%1 refiecting the 
continuing focus on capitai discipline 
and rnanaging working capitai as the 
business expands. 

Capital expenditure included within 
adjusted operating cash fiow was 
E196rn 12005: E195rn1, including E108rn 
in respect of capitalised development 
costs included within intangibie assets. 
Spend on acquisitions was E171m 
including deferred consideration 
payable. An arnount of E87m was 
capitalised as acquired intangibie 
assets and €102- as goodwiii. 
Acquisition integration spend in respect 
of these and other recent acquisitions 
amounted to E26m principaily in 
respect of the MediMedia MAP 
integration. Disposai proceeds 
amounted to E48m. 

Use of free cash flow 

*D?uidcndiLJ% 
Buyback,i27% . 

O Acquii~t ions Inet 
DI dispasalsi 18% 

O Relained free 
cash IIow ,O% 

Free cash fiow - after interest and 
taxation  was E817rn. up E53m 
Dividends paid to sharehoiders in the 
year amounted to € 3 7 1 1 ~  i2005 €336rnl 
Share repurchases by the parent 
companies arnounted to f 2 1 l r n  
Additionai shares of the parent 
companies were purchased by the 
employee benefit trust for f 6 8 m  to 

meet future obligations in respect 
of share based remuneration. Net 
proceeds from share issuance under 
share option programmes were E93m. 

Net borrowings at 31 December 2006 
were E2.314m 12005: f2,694ml, a 
decrease of E380m since 31 December 
2005 principaiiy due to foreign exchange 
transiation effects foiiowing the 
significant weakening of the US dollar 
between the beginning and end of the 
year. These transiation effects decreased 
net debt byE277m. Additionally, net debt 
benefited from the free cash fiow iess 

I 

1 
dividends and share buy backs and 
acquisition spend. I 

I 

Gross borrowings after fair vaiue 
adjustments at 31 December 2006 
amounted to €3.006m, denominated 
mostly in US dollars, and were partiy 
offset by the fair vaiue of reiated 
derivatives of E173m and cash balances 
totaiiing E519m invested in short term 
deposits and rnarketabie securities. 
After taking into account interest rate 
and currency derivatives. a total of 68% 
of Reed Eisevier's gross borrowings 
[equivalent to 88% of net borrowings] 
were a t  fixed rates and had a weighted 
average remaining iife of  5.2 years and 
interest coupon of 5.2%. 

The net pension deficit, ie pensions 
obligations iess pension assets, a t  
31 December 2006 was E236m 12005: 
E405rnl. The reduction in the deficit of 
E169m principaliy arises frorn the good 
asset returns and the increase in Long 
term corporate bond yieids which are 
used to discount the pension obligations 

Capital employed and returns 
The capitai ernpioyed in the business at 
31 December 2006 was E9.079rn 
12005: E9,705m), after adding back 
accumulated arnortisation of acquired 
intangibie assets and goodwiii. The 
decrease of E626m principaliy arises 
from currency translation effects 
lE913rnl. most particuiariy f rom the 
weakening of the US dollar between 
1 January and 31 December 2006, partly 
offset by acquisition spend of E163m 
and the lower net pension deficit. 



The return on average capitai employed 
in the year was 9.8% 12005: 9.4%1. This 
return is based on adjusted operating 
profits, less tax at the 24% effective 
rate, and the average of the capital 
employed at the beginning and end 
of the year retranslated at average 
exchange rates. The improvement in 
the year reflects the good underlying 
profit growth and capital discipline. 

Return on capi ta l  empioyed [%I 
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Acquisitions typicaliy dilute the overall 
return initially. but build quickiy to 
deliver longer term returns wel1 over 
Reed Elsevier's average for the 
business. The recent acquisitions made 
in the years 2004 to 2006 are delivering 
post tax returns in 2006 of 10%. 6% and 
proforma 5% respectively and continue 
to grow well. 

Accounting poiicies 
Introduction 
The accounting policies of the Reed 
Elsevier combined businesses are 
described in the combined financial 
statements. The Reed Elsevier 
combined financial statements and the 
consolidated financial statements 
of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier 
NV are presented in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards IIFRSI. 

The most significant accounting policies 
in determining the financial condition 
and results of the combined 
businesses, and those requiring the 
most subjective or  complex judgment, 
relate to the valuation of goodwill 
and intangible assets, share based 
remuneration, pensions and tanation. 

The return on average capital employed in the year was 
9.8% (2005: 9.4°/~].  The improvement in the year reflects 
the good underlying profit growth and capital discipline 

Revenue recognition policies, while 
an area of management focus, are 
generally straightiorward in application 
as the timing of product or service 
delivery and customer acceptance for 
the various revenue types can be readily 
determined. Allowances for product 
returns are deducted from revenues 
based on historical return rates. 
Where sales consist of two or 
more compooents that.operate 
independently, revenue is recognised 
as each component is completed by 
performance, based on attribution 
of relative value. 

Pre-publication costs incurred in the 
creation of content prior to production 
and publication are deferred and 
expensed over their estimated useful 
lives based on sales profiles. Such costs 
typically comprise direct internal iabour 
costs and externally commissioned 
editoriai and other fees. Estimated useful 
h e s  generally do not exceed five years. 
Annual reviews are catried out to assess 
the recoverability of carrying arnounts. 

Development spend embraces 
investment in new product and other 
initiatives, ranging from the building of 
new oniine delivery platforms. to launch 
costs of new services. to building new 
infrastructure applications. Launch 
costs and other operating expenses 
of new products and services 
are expensed as incurred. The costs 
of building product applications and 
infrastructure are capitalised as 
intangible assets and arnortised over 
their estimated useful lives. Impairment 
reviews are carried out annually. 

Goodwill and intangible assets 
Reed Elsevier's accounting policy is 
that, on acquisition of a subsidiary or 
business, the purchase consideration is 
allocated between the net tangible and 
intangible assets other than goodwiil 
on a fairvalue basis, with any exces5 
purchase consideration representing 
goodwill. The valuation of intangible 
assets represents the estimated 
economic value in use. using standard 
valuation rnethodologies, including as 
appropriate. discounted cash fiow, relief 

from royalty and comparable market 
transactions. Acquired intangible assets 
are capitalised and amortised 
systematically over their estimated useful 
lives, subject to annual impairment 
review. Appropriate amortisation periods 
are selected based on assessments of 
the longevity of the brands and imprints, 
the market positions of the acquired 
assets and the technological and 
competitive risks that theyface. Certain 
intangible assets in reiation to acquired 
science and rnedical publishing 
businesses have been determined to 
have indefinite lives. The longevity of 
these assets is evidenced by their long 
established and wel1 regarded brands 
and imprints, and their characteristically- 
stable market positions. 

The carrying amounts of goodwill and 
indefinite lived intangible assets in each 
business are regularly reviewed for 
impairment at least twice a year The 
carrying amounts of al1 other intangible 
assets are reviewed where there are 
indications of possible impairment. 
An impairment review involves a 
comparison of the carrying value of 
the asset with estimated values in 
use based on latest management cash, 
fiow projections. Key areas of judgment 
in estimating the values in use of 
businesses are the forecast long term 
growth rates and the appropriate L.:? 

discount rates to be applied to forecast 
cash flows. Based on the latest vaiuéi 
in use calculations, no goodwill b 

or intangible assets were impaired as 
at 31 December 2006. 

,G> Share based rernuneration 
Share based remuneration is accoÜnied 
for in accordance with IFRC 2 - Share 
Based Payment and is determined 
based on the fair value of an award at 
the date of grant, and is spread over the 
vesting period on a straight line basis, 
taking int0 account the number of 
shares that are expected to vest. The 
fair value of awards is determined at 
the date of grani by use of a binomial 
or  Monte Carlo simulation model as 
appropriate, which requires judgments 
to be made regarding share price 
volatility, dividend yieid. risk free rates 

i .  .1 
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of return and expected option iives. 
The number of awards that are 
expected to vest requires judgments 
to be made regarding forfeiture rates 
and the extent to which performance 
conditions wi l i  be met. These 
assumptions are determined in 
conjunction with independent actuaries 
based on historica1 data and trends. 

Pensions 
Pension costs are accounted for in 
accordance with IAS19 - Employee 
Benefits. 

Accounting for defined benetit pension 
schemes invoives judgment about 
uncertain events, inciuding the life 
expectancy of the members, saiary and 
pension increases. infiation. the return 
on scheme assets and the rate a t  
which the future pension payments are 
discounted. Estimates for these factors 
are used in determining the pension 
cost and liabiiities reported in the 
financiai statements. These best 
estimates of future deveiopments 
are made in conjunction with 
independent actuaries. Each scheme 
is subject to a periodic review by the 
independent actuaries. 

For defined contribution schemes, 
the net cost represents contributions 
payable. 

Taxation 
The Reed Eisevier combined 
businesses seek to organise their 
affairs in a tax efficient manner, taking 
account of the jurisdictions in which 
they operate. A number of acquisitions 
and disposais have been made in recent 
years giving rise to complex tax issues 
requiring management to use its 
judgment to make various tax 
determinations. Aithough Reed Eisevier 
is confident that tax returns have been 
appropriateiy compiied, the application 
and interpretation of tax iegisiation is 
subject to uncertainty and there are 
risks that further tax may be payabie 
on certain transactions or  that the 
deductibiiity of certain expenditure for 
tax purposes may be disaiiowed. Reed 
ElSevier's poiicy is to make provision for 

tax uncertainties where it is considered 
probabie that tax payments may arise. 

Reed Elsevier's policy in respect of 
deferred taxation is to provide in fu l i  for 
ai1 taxabie temporary differences using 
the baiance sheet iiability method. 
Deferred tax assets are oniy recognised 
to the extent that they are considered 
recoverabie based on forecasts of 
avaiiable taxable profits against which 
they can be utiiised over the near term. 

Treasury poiicies 
The boards of Reed Eisevier PLC and 
Reed Eisevier NV have requested that 
Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier 
Reed Finance BV have due regard to the 
best interests of Reed Eisevier PLC and 
Reed Eísevier NV sharehoiders in the 
formuiation ot treasury po\icies. 

Financiai instrurnents are used to 
finance the Reed Eisevier businesses and 
to hedge transactions. Reed Eisevier's 
businesses do not enter into specuiative 
transactions. The main treasury risks 
faced by Reed Elsevier are iiquidity risk, 
interest rate risk and foreign currency 
risk. The boards of the parent companies 
agree overall policy guideiines for 
rnanaging each of these risks and the 
boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc and 
Eisevier Finance SA agree policies 
[in conformity with parent company 
guidelinesl for their respective business 
and treasury centres. These poiicies 
are summarised beiow. 

Liquidity 
Reed Eisevier maintains a range of 
borrowing faciiities and debt 
programmes to fund its requirements, at 
short notice and at competitive rates. The 
significance of Reed Eisevier Group plc's 
US operations means that the majority of 
debt is denominated in US dollars and is 
raised in the US debt markets. A mixture 
of short term and Long term debt is 
utiiised and Reed Elsevier maintains a 
maturity profile to faciiitate refinancing. 
Reed Eisevier's poiicy is that no more 
than US$l.Obn of term debt issues 
chouid mature in any 12-month period. 
In addition, minimum levels of net debt 
with maturities over three years and five 

years are specified, depending on the 
levei of the totai borrowings. 

After taking account of the maturity 
of committed bank faciiities that back 
short term borrowing and after utiiising 
avaiiable cash resources. at 
31 December 2006, no borrowings 
mature in the next two years. 25% of 
borrowings mature in the third year, 
24% in the fourth and fifth years, 37% 
in the sixth to tenth years. and 14% 
beyond the tenth year. 

Maturity profile of borrowings 

. k a r 3  

In Apri l  2006 Reed Eisevier renegotiated 
and amended the terms of its 
US$3.0bn committed credit facility. At 
31 December 2006, Reed Eisevier had 
access to US83.0bn í2005: US$3.0bnl 
of committed bank faciiities, of which 
US$77m was drawn. These faciiities 
principaiiy provide back up for short 
term debt but aiso security of funding 
for future acquisition spend in the event 
that commerciai paper markets are not 
avaiiable. Aii these committed faciiities 
expire within two to three years 
12005: two to three yearsl. 

Interest rate exposure management 
Reed Eisevier's interest rate exposure 
management poiicy is aimed at 
reducing the exposure of the combined 
businesses to changes in interest rates. 
The proportion ot interest expense that 
is fixed on net debt is determined by 
reference to the level of interest cover. 
Reed Elsevier uses fixed rate term debt, 
interest rate swaps, forward rate 
agreements and a range of interest 
rate options to manage the exposure. 
Interest rate derivatives are used oniy 
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to hedge an underiying risk and nonet  
market positions are heid. 

At 31 December 2006, after taking 
account of interest rate and currency 
derivatives in a designated hedging 
reiationship, US$3.8bn of Reed 
Elsevier's net debt was denominated 
in US dollars and net interest expense 
was fixed or  capped on approximateiy 
US$2.7bn of forecast US dollar net debt 
for the next 12 months. This fixed or  
capped net debt reduces to 
approximateiy US$l.Zbn by the end 
of the third year and reduces further 
thereafter with ai1 but USB0.1 bn of fixed 
rate term debt Inot swapped back to 
floating ratel having matured by the 
end of 2012. 

At 31 December 2006, fixed rate US 
dollar term debt Inot swapped back 
to floating ratel amounted to USB1.3bn 
and had a weighted average iife 
remaining of 8.3 years 12005: 6.7 yearsl 
and a weighted average interest 
coupon of 6.0%. Designated interest 
rate derivatives in piace at 
31 December 2006, which fix or  cap the 
interest cost on an additionai US$1.5bn 
12005: US$0.7bnl of variable rate U3 
dol lar debt, have a weighted average 
maturity of 1.4 years 12005: 2.2 yearsl 
and a weighted average interest rate 
of 4 . 5 %  

Foreign currency exposure 
management 
Transiation exposures arise on the 
earnings and net assets of business 
operations in countries other than 
those of each parent company. These 
exposures are hedged, t o a  significant 
extent, by a policy of denominating 
borrowings in currencies where 
significant translation exposures exist, 
most notably US dollars. 

Currency exposures on transactions 
denominated in a foreign currency are 
required to be hedged using forward 
contracts. In addition, recurring 
transactions and future investment 
exposures may be hedged, within 
defined limits. in advance of becoming 
contractuai. The precise policy differs 

according to the commercial situation 
of the individual businesses. Expected 
future net cash fiows may be covered 
for saies expected for up to the next 
12 months 150 months for Eisevier 
science and medical subscription 
businesses up to i imits staggered by 
durationl. Cover takes the form of 
foreign exchange forward contracts. 

As at 31 December 2006, the amount 
of outstanding foreign exchange cover 
designated against future transactions 
was US$l.Zbn. 

Elsevier Reed Finance BV 
Structure 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV, the Dutch 
parent company of the Eisevier Reed 
Finance BV group 1"ERF"I. is directly 
owned by Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed 
Eisevier NV. ERF provides treasury, 
finance and insurance services to the 
Reed Etsevier Group plc businesses 
through its subsidiaries in Switreriand: 
Eisevier Finance SA 1"EFSA"I. Eisevier 
Properties SA I"EPSK1 and Eisevier 
Risks SA ["ERSKI. These three 
Swiss companies are organised under 
one Swiss holding company, which is 
in turn owned by Eisevier Reed 
Finance BV. 

Activities 
EFSA, EPSA and ERSA each focus on 
their own specific area of expertise. 

EFSA is the principai treasury centre 
for the combined businesses. It is 
responsibie for a l i  aspects of treasury 
advice and support for Reed Eisevier 
Group plc's businesses operating in 
Continentai Europe. South America, 
the Pacific Rim, China and certain other 
territories, and undertakes foreign 
exchange and derivatives deaiing 
services for the whoie of Reed Elsevier. 
EFSA also arranges or  directiy provides 
Reed Eisevier Group plc businesses 
with financing for acquisitions and 
product deveiopment and manages 
cash pools and investments on their 
behalf. EPSA is responsibie for the 
expioitation of tangibie and intangible 
property rights whilst ERSA is 

responsibie for insurance activities 
reiating to risk retention. 

Major developments 
In 2006, EFSA acted as arranger of a 
Euro Commercial Paper programme 
and a term debt issue on behaif of Reed 
Elsevier Ilnvestmentsl plc, a subsidiary 
of Reed Eisevier Group pic, renegotiated 
various banking and cash management 
arrangement5 in Continental Europe 
and Asia and continued to provide advice 
to Reed Eisevier Group pic companies 
regarding interest and foreign currency 
exposures and eiectronic coilections and 
payment soiutions. 

The average baiance of cash under 
management in 2006. on behalf of Reed 
Eisevier Group pic and its parent 
companies, was approximately $0.5bn. 

Liabiiities and assets 
At the end of 2006, 88% 12005: 87%1 of 
ERF'S gross assets were held in US 
dollars and 10% 12005: 12%1 in euros. 
inciuding $8.5bn 12005: $8.1 bnl and 
€0.8bn 12005: €0.9bnl in ioans to Reed 
Eisevier Group pic subsidiaries. Loans 
made to Reed Eisevier Group pic 
businesses are funded from equity. Long 
term debt of $1.3bn and short term 
debt of $O.Ebn backed by committed 
bank faciiities. Term debt is derived 
from a Swiss domestic pubiic bon8 
issue, bilateral term loans and private 
placements. Short term debt is (.:' 

primariiy derived from euro and & 
commercial paper programmes. I 

1 ..! 
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Structure and corporate governance 

S t r u  c t u re 
Corporate structure 
Reed Eisevier came into existence in January 1993, when 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV contributed their 
businesses to two jointly owned companies, Reed Eisevier 
Group pic. a UK registered company which owns the 
pubiishing and information businesses, and Elsevier Reed 
Finance BV, a Dutch registered company which owns the 
financing activities. Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
have retained their separate iegai and nationai identities and 
are publiciy held companies. Reed Eisevier PLC's securities 
are Listed in London and New York. and Reed Elsevier N V s  
securities are listed in Amsterdam and New York. 

Equaiisation arrangements 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV each hold a 50% 
interest in Reed Eisevier Group plc. Reed Elsevier PLC holds 
a 39% interest in Eisevier Reed Finance BV. with Reed 
Elsevier NV holding a 61% interest. Reed Elsevier PLC 
additionaliy holds an indirect equity interest in Reed Elsevier 
NV, reflecting the arrangements entered into between the 
two companies at the t ime of the merger. which determined 
the equaiisation ratio whereby one Reed Elsevier NV ordinary 
share is, in broad terms. intended to confer equivalent 
economic interests to 1.538 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary 
shares. The equalisation ratio is subject to change to refiect 
share splits and similar events that affect the number of 
outstanding ordinary shares of either Reed Eisevier PLC 
or  Reed Elsevier NV. 

Under the equalisation arrangements, Reed Eisevier PLC 
shareholders have a 52.9% economic interest in Reed 
Eisevier, and Reed Eisevier NV shareholders lother than 
Reed Elsevier PLCI have a 47.1% econornic interest in Reed 
Eisevier. Holders of ordinary shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Elsevier NV enjoy substantiaily equivalent dividend and 
capital rights with respect to their ordinary shares. 

The boards of  both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
have agreed. other than in special circumstances, to 
recornrnend equivalent gross dividends [inchding. with 
respect to the dividend on Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares, 
the associated UK tax credit], based on the equaiisation ratio. 
A Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary share pays dividends in sterling 
and is subject to UK tax iaw with respect 10 dividend and 
capital rights. A Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share pays 
dividends in euros and is subject to Dutch tax iaw with 
respect to dividend and capital rights. 

Corporate governance 
Compliance with codes of best practice 
The boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV 
have irnplemented standards of corporate governance and 
disclosure policies applicabie to cornpanies listed on the 
stock exchanges of the United Kingdom, the Netherlands 
and the United States. The effect of this is that a standard 
appiying to one wili, where practicabie and not in conflict, 
aiso be observed by the other. 

The boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
support the principles and provisions of corporate 
governance set out in the Combined Code on Corporate 
Governance issued in Juiy 2003 Ithe UK Codel, including the 
revised Turnbuli guidance issued in October 2005. and the 
Dutch Corporate Governance Code issued in December 2003 
[the Dutch Codel. Save as explained beiow, Reed Eisevier 
PLC, which has its primary iisting on the London Stock 
Exchange, has complied throughout the period under review 
with the UK Code and Reed Eisevier NV, which has its 
primary listing on Euronext Amsterdam, has compiied 
throughout the period under review with the Dutch Code. 

The ways in which the relevant principles of corporate 
governance are appiied and compiied with within Reed 
Eisevier PCC. Reed Eisevier NV, Reed Elsevier Group pic and 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV are described beiow. 

The boards 
The boards of Reed Elsevier PCC. Reed Eisevier NV. Reed 
Elsevier Group plc and Eisevier Reed Finance BV each 
comprise a balance of executive and non-executive directors 
who bring a wide range of  skilis and experience to the 
deliberations of the boards. A i i  non-executive directors are 
independent of management and free f rom any business or 
other relationship which could materiaily interfere with the 
exercise of their independent judgment. 

A l i  directors have fu i l  and timeiy access to the information 
required ta discharge their responsibilities fuliy and 
efficientiy. They have acces5 to the services of the respective 
cornpany secretaries, other members of Reed Elsevier's 
management and staff, and its externai advisors. Directors 
rnay take independent professional advice in the furtherance 
of their duties, at the relevant company's expense. 

In addition to scheduied board and board committee 
meetings beid during the year, directors attend many other 
meetings and site visits. Where a director is unabie to attend 
a board o r  board cornmittee meeting, he or  she is provided 
with al l  relevant papers and information reiating to that 
meeting and is abie to discuss issues arising with the 
respective chairman and other board members. 

The boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV and Reed 
Elsevier Group pic are harmonised. Al i  the directors of Reed 
Elsevier Group plc are aiso directors of Reed Eisevier PLC 
and of Reed Elsevier NV. The Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed 



Eisevier NV shareholders maintain their rights to appoint 
individuais to the respective boards, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Articles of Association ot these companies. 
Subject to this, no individual may be appointed to the boards 
of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Eisevier NV ieither rnembers of 
the Executive Board or the Supervisory Boardl or Reed 
Elsevier Group plc uniess recommended by the joint 
Norninations Comrnittee. Members of the Cornrnittee abstain 
when their own re-appointment is being considered. 

In order to safeguard the agreed board harmonisation, the 
Articles of Association of Reed Eisevier NV provide that 
appointments of board members other than in accordance 
with nominations by the Cornbined Board. shall require a 
2/3 majority if iess than 50% of the share capital is in 
attendance. Given the st i l l  generally low attendance rate at  
sharehoiders meetings in the Netherlands, the boards 
beiieve that this quaiified rnajority requirement is appropriate 
for this purpose. 

On appointment and as required. directors receive training 
appropriate to  their level of previous experience. This 
includes the provision of a taiiored induction prograrnrne so 
as to provide newly appointed directors.with information 
about the Reed Eisevier businesses and other relevant 
information to assist thern in performing their duties. Non- 
executive directors are encouraged to visit the Reed Eisevier 
businesses to meet management and senior staff. 

A i i  Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV directors are 
subject to retirement at least every three years, and are able 
then to make thernselves avaiiable tor re-eiection by 
sharehoiders at the respective Annual Generai Meetings. 
However, as a generai ruie, non-executive directors of Reed 
Elsevier PLC and members of the Reed Eisevier NV 
Supervisory Board serve on the respective board for two 
three year terms, aithough the boards rnay invite individuai 
directors to serve up to one additional three year term. 

Reed Elsevier PLC 
The Reed Eisevier PLC board consists of six executive 
directors: Sir Crispin Davis - Chief Executive Officer. Mark 
Armour - Chief Financiai Officer, Gerard van de Aast, Erik 
Engstrom, Andrew Prozes and Patrick Tierney. and eight 
independent non-executive directors: Jan Hommen 
[Chairmanl, Mark Eiiiott, Lisa Hook Ifrom 18 Apri l  20061, 
Cees van Lede, David Reid. Lord Sharrnan, Roif Stomberg - 
senior independent non-executive director - and Strauss 
Zeinick. The board met five times during the year Messrs 
Eliiott, Reid and Stomberg were each unable to attend one 
meeting and Mr van Lede was unabie to attend two 
meetings. Otherwise there was fuii attendance. 

At the Reed Eisevier PLC Annual Generai Meeting to be held 
on 17 Apri l  2007, Messrs A m o u r ,  Engstrom, Hommen and 
Stornberg and Lord Sharman wi l l  retire by rotation. M r v a n  
Lede wil1 retire at the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting and a resolution to appoint Robert Poiet as a non- 
executive director wi l i  be subrnitted to the meeting. The 
Nominations Committee has recommended io the Board the 

re-appointrnent of the respective directors and the 
appointment of Mr  Polet. Being eiigibie, they wi i i  each offer 
themseives for eiection. 

Reed Elsevier NV 
Reed Elsevier NV has a two-tier board structure comprising 
a Supervisory Board of nine rnernbers, a l i  of whom are 
independent non-executives. and an Executive Board of six 
rnembers. The Executive Board is responsibie for the 
management of the company and the Supervisory Board 
supervises the Executive Board. The members of the 
Supervisory Board are Jan Hommen IChairrnanl, Dien de 
Boer-Kruyt, Mark Eliiott, Lisa Hook l from 19 Apri l  20061, 
Cees van Lede, David Reid. Lord Sharman, Rolf Stornberg 
and Strauss Zeinick. 

The Executive Board comprises Sir Crispin Davis - Chief 
Executive Officer, Mark Armour - Chief Financial Officer, 
Gerard van de Aast, Erik Engstrom, Andrew Prozes and 
Patrick Tierney. In principle the Supervisoiy Board meets in 
the presence of the Executive Board [Combined Board]. The 
boards met five times during the year. Messrs Eiiiott. Reid 
and Stomberg were each unable to attend one meeting and 
Mrs de Boer-Kruyt and Mrvan  Lede were each unable to 
attend two meetings. Otherwise there was fui l  attendance at 
the meetings of the Executive and the Supervisory Boards. 

At the Reed Elsevier NVAnnuai General Meeting to be held 
on 18 Apri i  2007, Messrs Hommen and Stomberg and Lord 
Sharman wi l i  retire by rotation as rnernbers of the 
Supervisory Board. M r  van Lede wi l i  retire as a member of 
the Supervisory Board at the conclusion of the Annuai 
Generai Meeting and a resolution to appoint Robert Polet as 
a rnernber of the Supervisory Board wi i l  be submitted to the 
meeting. Messrs Armour and Engstrom w i l l  retire by rotat ion 
as members of the Executive Board. The Nominations 
Cornmittee has recornrnendeà to the Combined Board the 
re-appointment of the respective directors and the 
appointrnent of Mr Polet. Being eiigibie, they wil1 each of&: j. 
themseives for eiection. 

Reed Elsevier Group plc 
The Reed Eisevier Group plc board consists of six executi;: 
directors: Sir Crispin Davis - Chief Executive Officer, Mark..> 
Armour - Chief Financiai Officer, Gerard van de Aast, Erik:z: 
Engstrom, Andrew Prozes and Patrick Tierney. and eight 1:::. 
independent non-executive directors: Jan Hommen j..  j 

[C,hairmanl, Mark Eiliott, Lisa Hook [from 19 Apri l  20061, 
Cees van Lede, David Reid, Lord Sharman, Roif Stomberg - 
senior independent non-executive director -'and Strauss 
Zeinick. The board met eight t imes during the year. Messrs 
Eiiiott, Reid and Stomberg were each unable to attend one 
meeting and Mrvan  Lede was unabie to attend two 
meetings. Otherwise there was fuli attendance. 

M r v a n  Lede wi l l  retire as a director on 18 April 2007. Subject 
to his appointment being approved at the Annual General 
Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, 
Mr  Robert Polet wi i l  be appointed a director of Reed Eisevier 
Group plc on 18 April 2007. 



Structure and corporate governance 
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Biographicai information in respect of the current members 
of the boards is given on page 27 of the Reed Eisevier Annuai 
Review and Summary Financiai Statements 2006. 

Eisevier Reed Finance BV 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV has a two-tier board structure 
comprising a Supervisory Board and an Executive Board. The 
Supervisory Board during the year comprised Rudoif van den 
Brink - Chairman, Mark Armour and Dien de Boer-Kruyt, 
with the Management Board consisting of Wiilern Boeliaard 
and Jacques Biliy. Appointments to the Supervisory and 
Management Boards are made by the shareholders. in 
accordance with the company's Articies of Ascociation. The 
Management Board and the Supervisoty Board met three 
times during the year. Mrs de Boer-Kruyt was unable to 
attend one meeting, otherwise there was ful i  attendance. 

Board committees 
In accordance with the principies of good corporate 
governance. the foiiowing committees. a i i  of which have 
written terms of reference. have been established by the 
respective boards. The t e r m  of reference of these 
comrnittees are pubiished on the Reed Eisevier website, 
w. reedeisev ier .com. 

Audit Committees 
Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Eisevier NV and Reed Eisevier 
Group pic have estabiished Audit Committees. The 
Committees comprise oniy non-executive directors. a l i  of 
whom are independent. The Committees are chaired by 
Lord Sharman, the other members being Lisa Hook l f rom 
24 Juiy 20061, David Reid and Strauss Zelnick. A report of the 
Audit Committees, setting out the role of the Comrnittees and 
their main activities during the year, appears on pages 32 
and 33. 

The Comrnittees met five times during the year M r  Reid was 
unabie to attend one meeting and Mr  Zeinick was unable to 
attend two meetings, otherwise there was ful i  attendance. 

The functions of an audit committee in respect of the 
financing activities are carried out by the supervisory board of 
Eisevier Reed Finance BV. 

Corporate Governance Committee 
Reed Elsevjer PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have estabiished a 
joint Corporate Governance Committee, which comprises 
oniy non-executive directors, a i l  of whom are independent. 
The Cornrnittee is chaired by Jan Hommen, the other 
members being Dien de Boer-Kruyt, Mark Eiiiott. Lisa Hook 
Ifrom 19 Apri l  20061, Cees van Lede, David Reid, 
Lord Sharman. Roif Stomberg and Strauss Zeinick. The 
Committee met iwice during the year. Messrs van Lede and 
Reid and Mrs de Boer-Kruyt were each unable to attend one 
meeting, otherwise there was fu l i  attendance. 

During the period the Committee reviewed ongoing 
developments and best practice in corporate governance and 
approved revised corporate governance poiicies refiecting 
current best practice. The Committee assessed the 

I 

performance of individual executive directors and, led by the 
senior independent director, aiso assessed the performance 
of the Chairman. Using questionnaires compieted by a l i  
directors, the Committee reviewed the functioning and 
constitution of the boards and their committees. Based on 
these assessrnents, the Committee beiieves that the 
performance of each director continues to be effective and 
that they demonstrate commitment to their respective roies 
in Reed Eisevier. 

The Cornmittee is als0 responsible for recommending the 
structure and operation of the various committees of the 
boards and the qualifications and criteria for membership 
of each Committee. including the independence of rnembers 
of the boards. 

The Combined Board of Reed Eicevier NV has adopted rules 
governing the functioning of the boards and the relationship 
with shareholders, reflecting the requirements of the Dutch 
Code, which are pubiished on the Reed Elsevier website, 
w . r e e d e k e v i e r . c o m .  

Nominations Committee 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have estabiished a 
joint Nominations Cornrnittee, which provides a forrnal and 
transparent procedure for the seiection and appointment of 
new directors to the boards. The Comrnittee comprises a 
majority of independent non-executive directors. The 
Cornmittee is chaired by Jan Hommen, the other mernbers 
being Sir Crispin Davis - Chief Executive Officer, Cees van 
Lede, Lord Sharman and Roií Stomberg. Although he is nat 
independent, the boards believe that it is appropriate for the 
Chief Executive Officer to be a mernber of the Committee, 
since he provides a perspective which assists the Committee 
in nominating candidates to the board who wi i i  be abie to 
work as a team with both the executive and non-executive 
directors. The Committee met four times during the year. 
M r  van Lede was unable to attend one meeting, otherwise 
there was ful i  attendance. 

The Committee's terrns of reíerence inciude assuring board 
succession and making recommendations to the boards of 
Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier 
Group plc concerning the appointment o r  re-appointment of 
directors to, and the retirement of directors from, those 
boards. In conjunction with the Chairman of the Reed 
Eisevier Group pic Remuneration Committee and external 
consuitants. the Cornmittee is aiso responsible for deveioping 
proposais for the remuneration and fees for new directors. In 
recommending appointments to the Reed Elsevier NV 
Supervisory Board the Committee considers i he  knowiedge, 
experience and background of individual directors and the 
Supervisory Board as a whoie. 

Based on the assessrnent by the Corporate Governance 
Committee of the quaiifications and performance of each 
individuai director, the Nominations Committee recornmendc 
the re-appointrnent of the directors seeking re-eiection at 
the Annual General Meetings of Reed Eisevier PLC and 
Reed Eisevier NV in 2007. 
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Remuneration Committee 
Reed Elsevier Group pic has estabiished a Rernuneration 
Cornrnittee which cornprises only independent non-executive 
directors. The Cornrnittee is chaired by Roif Stombery, and 
the other rnembers who served throuyhout the yearwere 
Mark Elliott and Cees van Lede. Duriny the year. the 
company decided to take advantage of the relaxations to the 
UK Code to be permitted under the updated Combined Code 
on Corporate Governance issued in June 2006. Accordingly. 
Jan Hommen, who was considered independent at the t ime 
of his appointrnent as Chairrnan of the Board in 2005, 
becarne a rnernber of the Cornrnittee with effect frorn 24 Juiy 
2006. The Cornmittee met six times duriny the year. M r  van 
Lede was unabie to attend one meeting, otherwise there was 
ful l  attendance. 

The Cornmittee is responsibie for recommendiny to  the 
board the rernuneration in ai1 its forrns of executive directors 
of Reed Elsevier Group plc. and provides advice to the Chief 
Executive Officer on the rernuneration of executives at a 
senior ievei beiow the board. It aiso makes recommendations 
to the board of Reed Elsevier PLC and to the Supervisory 
Board of Reed Elsevier NV reyardiny the remuneration of the 
executive directors of these cornpanies. 

The fees of non-executive directors of Reed Eisevier PLC and 
of the Supervisory Board rnernbers of Reed Eisevier NV are 
deterrnined by the respective Boards of Directors. within the 
limits set out in the Articles of Association of the respective 
companies. as approved by sharehoiders. 

A Directors' Rernuneration Report, which has been approved 
by the boards of Reed Eisevier Group pic, Reed Elsevier PLC 
and Reed Eisevier NV, appears on pages 34 to  51. This report 
aiso serves as disclosure of the directors' rernuneration 
policy, and the rernuneration and interests in shares of the 
directors of the two parent cornpanies. Reed Elsevier PLC 
and Reed Elsevier NV. 

Relations with shareholders 
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV participate in 
reyuiar diaioyue with institutionai shareholders, and 
presentations on the Reed Eisevier cornbined businesses are 
made after the announcernent of the interim and ful iyear 
resuits. The boards of Reed Eisevier PLC aod Reed Elsevier 
NV commission periodic reports on the attitudes and views of 
the cornpanies' institutional shareholders and the results are 
the subject of forrnal presentations to the respective boards. 
A tradiny update is provided at the respective Annuai Generai 
Meetings of the two cornpanies, and towards the end of the 
financiai year. The Annual General Meetings provide a n  
opportunity for the boards to cornrnunicate with individuai 
shareholders. The Chairrnan, the Chief'Executive Officer, the 
Chief Financiai Officer. the Chairrnen of the board 
cornrnittees. other directors and a representative of the 
externai auditors are avaiiable to answer questions from 
sharehoiders. The interim and annual results 
announcements and presentations, toyether with the tradiny 
updates and other important announcements and corporate 
yovernance docurnents concerning Reed EiSevier, are 

pubiished on the Reed Eisevier website. 
w. reedelsev ier .com. Reed Eisevier NV is a participant in 
the Dutch Shareholder Comrnunication Channei 
lwww.cornrnunicatiekanaai.nll which facilitates proxy votiny. 

Internal control 
Parent companies 
The boards of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV 
exercise independent supervisory roies over the activities and 
systerns of internai controi of Reed Eisevier Group pic and 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV. The boards of Reed Elsevier PLC 
and Reed Eisevier NV have each adopted a schedule of 
matters which are required to be brouyht to thern for 
decision. In reiation to Reed Eisevier Group plc and Eisevier 
Reed Finance EV. the boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed 
Elsevier NV approve the strategy and the annual budgets, and 
receive reyular reports on the operations, including the 
treasury and risk management activities. of the two 
cornpanies. Major transactions proposed by the boards of 
Reed Elsevier Group pic or  Eisevier Reed Finance BV require 
the approval of the boards of both Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Eisevier NV. 

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV Audit 
Committees meet on a reyuiar basis to review the systerns of 
internal controi and risk management of Reed Elsevier Group 
pic and Eisevier Reed Finance EV. 

Operating companies 
The board of Reed Elsevier Group plc is responsibie for the 
systern of internai control of the Reed Eisevier publishiny and 
inforrnation businesses, whiie the boards of Eisevier Reed 
Finance BV are responsibie for the systern of internal control 
in respect of the finance yroup activities. The boards of Reed 
Elsevier Group pic and Elsevier Reed Finance BV are aiso 
responsibie for reviewiny the effectiveness of their system of 
internai controi. i-. 

tV-1 
The boards of Reed Elsevier Group pic and Elsevier Reed i 

Finance BV have irnplernented an ongoing process for ,:I, 
identifying, evaluatiny, monitoring and manayiny the more% 
significant risks faced by their respective businesses. 1 

This process has been in place throuyhout the year ended..' 
31 December 2006 and up to  the date of the approvais of C:) 
the Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2006. i:' 

/... j 

Reed Elsevier Group plc 
Reed Eisevier Group plc has an estabiished frarnework of 
procedures and internal controis, with which the 
management of each business is required to comply. Group 
businesses are required to rnaintain systerns of internal 
controi, which are appropriate to the nature and scaie of their 
activities and address ai1 significant operational and financiai 
risks that they face. The board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has 
adopted a schedule of matters that are required to be 
brought to it for decision. 

Reed Eisevier Group plc has a Code of Ethics and Business 
Conduct that provides a guide for achieviny its business yoais 
and requires officers and employees to behave in an open, 
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honest, ethica1 and principied manner. The Code also 
outiines confidentiai procedures enabiing employees to 
report any concerns about compiiance, or about Reed 
Elsevier's financial reporting practice. The Code is published 
on the Reed Elsevier website, w . reede isev ie r . com.  

Each division has identified and evaiuated its major risks. the 
controis in piace to manage those risks and the level of 
residual risk accepted. Risk management and controi 
procedures are embedded into the operations of the business 
and inciude the monitoring of progress in areas for 
improvement that come to management and board attention. 
The major r isks identified include business continuity, 
protection of IT systems and data, chaiienges to inteliectual 
property rights. management of strategic and operationai 
change, evaiuation and integration of acquisitions, and 
recruitment and retention of personnei. 

The major strategic risks facing the Reed Eisevier Group plc 
businesses are considered by the board. Litigation and other 
iegai and reguiatory matters are managed by iegai directors 
in Europe and the United States. 

The Reed Eisevier Group pic Audit Committee receives 
regular reports on the management of materiai risks and 
reviews these reports. The Audit Committee aiso receives 
reguiar reports from both internai and externai auditors on 
internai controi matters. in addition. each division is required, 
at the end of the financiaiyear, to review the effectiveness of 
its internai controis and report i ts findings on a detaiied basis 
to the management of Reed Eisevier Group pic. These 
reports are summarised and, as part of the annual review of 
effectiveness, submitted to the Audit Committee of Reed 
Eisevier Group pic. The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
reports to the board on any significant internai controi 
matters arising. 

Eisevier Reed Finance BV 
Eisevier Reed Finance BV has estabiished policy guideiines, 
which are appiied ior  a i i  Eisevier Reed Finance BV 
companies. The boards of Eisevier Reed Finance BV have 
adopted schedules of matters that are required to be brought 
to them for decision. Procedures are in piace for monitoring 
the activities of the finance group, inciuding a comprehensive 
treasury reporting system. The major risks affecting the 
finance group have been identified and evaiuated and are 
subject to regular review. The controis in place to manage 
these risks and the ievel of residuai risk accepted are 
monitored by the boards. The internai controi system of the 
Eisevier Reed Finance BV group is reviewed each year by its 
externai auditors. 

Annuai review 
As part of the year end procedures, the boards of Reed 
Elsevier PLC, Reed Elsevier NV, Reed Elsevier Group plc and 
Eisevier Reed Finance BV review the effectiveness of the 
systems of internal controi and risk management during the 
Last financiai year, The objective of these systems is to 
manage, rather than eliminate. the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives. Accordingly. they can only provide 

reasonabie. but not absolute, assurance against materiai 
misstatement or  ioss. 

In accordance with the Dutch Code, the boards have 
confirmed, subject to the above, that the respective risk 
management and controi systerns as regards financiai 
reporting risks provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial reporting does not contain material inaccuracies 
and have functioned properiy during the year. 

Responsibilities in respect of the financial 
statements 
The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed Eisevier NV, Reed 
Eisevier Group pic and Eisevier Reed Finance BV are required 
to prepare financiai statements as at the end of each 
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state o i  
affairs, and of the profit or  loss, of the respective companies 
and their subsidiariec. joint ventures and associates. They are 
responsibie for maintaining proper accounting records, for 
safeguarding assets, and for taking reasonable steps to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The 
directors are aiso responsible tor seiecting suitabie 
accounting poiicies and appiying them on a consistent basis. 
making judgments and estimates that are prudent and 
reaso na bie. 

Applicable accounting standards have been foliowed and the 
Reed Eisevier combined financiai statements, which are the 
responsibiiity of the directors of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed 
Eisevier NV, are prepared using accounting policies which 
cornpiy with International Financiai Reporting Standards. 

Going concern 
The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV, 
having made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate 
resources exist for the combined businesses to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeabie future and that, 
therefore. it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the financiai statements. 

US certifications 
As required by Section 302 of the US Sarbanes-Oxiey Act 
2002 and by related ruies issued by the US Securities and 
Exchange Commission, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer of Reed Eisevier PLC and of Reed Elsevier 
NV certify in the respective Annuai Reports 2006 on Form 
20-F to be filed with the Commission that they are 
responsible for estabiishing and maintaining disclosure 
controis and procedures and that they have: 

9 designed such disclosure controis and procedures to 
ensure that materiai information reiating to Reed Eisevier 
is made known to them; 

3 evaiuated the effectiveness of Reed Eisevier's disclosure 
controis and procedures; 



3 based on their evaiuation. disciosed to the Audit 
Committees and the externai auditors ai1 significant 
deficiencies in the design or operation of disclosure 
controis and procedures and any frauds. whether or not 
rnateriai, that invoive management o r  other employees 
who have a significant roie in Reed Eisevier internai 
controls; and 

3 presented in the Reed Eisevier Annuai Report 2006 on 
Form 20-F their conclusions about the effectiveness of 
the disclosure controis and procedures. 

A Oisciosure Committee. comprising the cornpany 
secretaries of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV and 
other senior Reed Eisevier managers, provides assurance to 
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fina.ncial Officer 
regarding their Section 302 certifications. 

Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxiey Act 2002 requires the 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiai Officer of Reed 
Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV to certify in the respective 
Annuai Reports 2006 on Form 20-F that they are responsibie 
for maintaining adequate internal controi structures and 
procedures for financial reporting and to conduct an 
assessrnent of their effectiveness. The conclusions of the 
assessrnent of internai controi structures and financial 
reporting procedures, which are unqualified, are presented in 
the Reed Eisevier Annual Report 2006 on Form ZO-F. 

' 



Report of the Audit Committees 

This report has been prepared by the Audit Committees 
of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV. in conjunction 
with the Audit Committee of Reed Eisevier Group pic, Ithe 
Committees) and has been approved by the respective boards. 

The report meets the requirements of the Combined Code 
of Corporate Governance, issued by the UK Financiai 
Services Authority. 

Audit Committees 
The main roie and responsibilities of the Committees in 
reiation to the respective companies are set out in written 
terms of reference and inciude: 

[i) to monitor the integrity of the financiai statements of the 
company, and any forma1 announcements reiating to the 
companys iinanciai performance, reviewing significant 
financial reporting judgments contained in them; 

[iil to review the company's internai financial controls and 
the company's internai controi and risk management 
systems: 

liiil to monitor and review the effectiveness of the company's 
internai audit function; 

l ivl  to make recommendations to the board, for it to put 
to the shareholders for their approvai in general 
meetings, in reiation to the appointment, re-appointment 
and rernoval of the externai auditor and to approve 
the remuneration and t e r m  of engagement of the 
externai auditor: 

Ivl to review and monitor :he external auditor's 
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness 
of the audit process, taking into consideration relevant 
professional and reguiatory requirements; and 

[vil .to deveiop and recommend policy on the engagement of 
the external audi tor lo supply non audit services, taking 
into account relevant ethica1 guidance regarding the 
provision of non audit services hy the externai audit firm. 
and to monitor compliance. 

. 

The Committees report to the respective boards on their 
activities identifying any matters in respect of which they 
consider that action or improvement is needed and making 
recommendations as to the steps to be taken. 

The Reed ELsevier Group plc Audit Committee fuifils this 
roie in respect of the pubiishing and information operating 
business. The functions of an audit comrnittee in respect 
of the financing activities are carried out by the Supervisory 
Board of Eisevier Reed Finance BV..The Reed Elsevier PLC 
and Reed Elsevier NVAudit Committees ful f i l  their roies 
from the perspective of the parent companies and both 
Cornmittees have access to the reports to and the work 
of the Reed Elsevier Group plc Audit Committee and the 
Eisevier Reed Finance BV Cupervisory Board in this respect. 

The Committees have explicit authority to investigate any 
matters within their terms of reference and have access to 
ai1 resources and information that they may require for this 
purpose. The Committees are entitled to obtain iegal and 
other independent professional advice and have the authority 
to approve ai l  fees payable to such advisers. 

A copy of the terms of reference of each Audit Committee 
is published on the Reed Elsevier website, 
w . r@ede isev ie r . com.  

Committee membership 
The Cornmittees each comprise at Least three independent 
non-executive directors. The current members of each 
of the Committees are: Lord Sharrnan [Chairman of the 
Committeesl, Lisa Hook l f rom 24 Juiy 20061, David Reid and 
Strauss Zeinick. Lord Sharman and David Reid are 
considered to have significant, recent and relevant financial 
experience. 

Lord Charman 1631, a chartered accountant, spent his 
professional career at KPMG and now serves as non- 
executive Chairman of Aviva PLC and Aegis Group plc. He is 
a member of the Supervisory Board of ABN-AMRO NV and a 
non-executive director of EG Group pic. He was eiected UK 
senior partner of KPMG in 1994 and served as Chairman of 
KPMG Woridwide between 1997 and 1999. Lisa Hook 1481 is 
the president and chief executive officer of Sun Rocket Inc: 
she was previousiy the president of AOL Broadband, 
Premium and Developer Services. David Reid 1601. 
a chartered accountant, was appointed non-executlve 
Chairman of Tesco PLC in April 2004. Prior to this 
appointment, he was executive Deputy Chairman. with 
responsibility for strategy, business deveiopment and 
international operations: he was previousiy the finance 
director of Tesco PLC. Strauss Zeinick 1491 is the founder 
of Zelnick Media Corporation. He is Chairman of Coiumbia 
Music Entertainment Inc, Direct Holdings Worldwide LLC and 
OTX Corporation. Prior to founding Zeinick Media he was 
President and Chief Executive Officer of BMG Entertainment. 

Appointments to the Cornmittees are made on the 
recommendation of the Nominations Comrnittee and are 
for periods of up to three years, extendabie by no more than 
two additionai three-year periods, so long as the member 
continues to be independent. Details of the remuneration 
policy in respect of members of the Committees and the 
remuneration paid to members for the year ended 
31 December 2006 are set out in the Directors' Remuneration 
Report on pages 34 to 51. 

Committee activities 
The Committees typicaliy hold meetings five t imes a year: in 
January February. June. Juiy and December, and report on 
these meetings to the respective boards at the next board 
meetings. The principai business of these meetings includes: 

3 January: review of criticai accounting policies and 
practices, and significant financiai reporting issues 



and judgments made in connection with the annual 
financiai statements; review of internai controi 
effectiveness: reviewing and approving the internal 
audit plan; review of internal audit iindings 

3 February: review and approval of annual financiai 
statements, results announcement and related iormal 
statements; review of externai audit findings 

3 June: monitoring and assessing fhe qualification, 
performance, expertise, resources, objectivity and 
independence of the external auditors and the effectiveness 
of the external and internal audit process; agreeing the 
external audit plan; reviewing significant financiai reporting 
issues and judgments arising in connection with the interim 
financial statements; review of risk management activities; 
review of report from external auditors on controi matters; 
review of internal audit findings 

3 July: review and approval of the interim financial 
statements, results announcement and related formal 
statements: review of external audit iindings; review of 
internal audit findings 

3 December: review of year end financial reporting and 
accounting issues; review of significant externai iinancial 
reporting and reguiatory developments; review of external 
audit findings to date; review of internal audit findings. 

The Audit Committee meetings are typically attended 
by the chief financial officer, group chief accountant, director 
of internal audit and senior representaties o i  the external 
auditors. Additionaily. the managing director and senior 
representaties of the external auditors of Elsevier Reed 
Finance BV attend the July and February meetings of the 
parent company Audit Cornmittees. At two or  more of the 
meetings each year, the Committees additionaily meet 
separateiy with the external auditors without management 
present, and also with the director of internal audit. 

In discharging their principal responsibilities in respect 
of the 2006 financialyear, the Committees have: 

[il received and discussed reports from the Reed Elsevier 
Group plc group chief accountant that set out areas 
of significance in the preparation.of the financial 
statements, including: review of the carrying values of 
goodwiil and intangible assets for possible irnpairment, 
review of estimated useful h e s  of intangible assets, 
accounting for pensions and related assumptions, 
accounting for share based remuneration and related 
assumptions. accounting treatment for acquisitions 
and disposals, application of revenue recognition and 
cost capitalisation. accounting for derivatives. review of tax 
reserves and provisions for lease obiigations. 

liij reviewed the critical accounting policies and compliance 
with appiicabie accounting standards and other disclosure 
requirements and have received regular uodate reoorts on 
accounting and reguiatory developments 

liiil received and discussed regular reports on the 
management of rnaterial r i s k  and reviewed the 
effectiveness of the systems of internai controi. As part 
of this review, detailed internai control evaluation and 
certification is obtained from management across the 
operating businesses, reviewed by internal audit 
and discussed with the Committees. 

[ivl received and discussed reguiar reports from the director of 
internal audit summarising the status of the Reed Eisevier 
risk management activities and the findings from internal 
audit reviews and the actions agreed with management. An 
area of focus in 2006 has been to review the progress in 
addressing the requirements of Section 404 of the US 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act relating to the documentation and 
testing of internal controls over financial reporting. 

[vI reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for 2006 
and monitored execution. Reviewed the resources and 
budget of the internal audit function. 

The external auditors have attended al1 meetings of the 
Committees. They have provided written reports at the June, 
July, December and February meetings summarising the 
most significant findings i rom their audit work. These reports 
have been discussed by the Committees and actions agreed 
where necessary. 

The external auditors have confirmed their independence 
from management and compliance with the Reed Eisevier 
policy on auditor independence. This poiicy sets out inter alia 
the requirements for rotation of the lead, review and other 
senior partners, as.well as guidelines for the provision of 
permitted non audit services. The Committees have reviewed 
and agreed the non audit services provided by the external 
auditors, together with the associated fees. The external 
auditors' fees for audit services have been reviewed and 
approved by the Committees. P. 2 

'.i? 
At their meeting in June 2006, the Committees conducted i 

a formal review of the performance of the external audi tors 
and the effectiveness of the externai audit process. Basedion 
this review, and on their subsequeni observations on the 
planning and execution of the external audit i o r  the year L: 
ended 31 December 2006, the Committees have 
recommended to the respective boards that resoiutions foT! 
the re-appointrnent of the external auditors be proposed 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meetings. 

The effectiveness of the process tor internal audit activities 
and of the operation of the Audit Committees was reviewed in 
December. 

Lord Sharman of Rediynch 

Chairman of the Audit Committees 
14 February 2007 

' 
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Directors' remuneration report 

This report provides Reed Elsevier's statement of how it has 
applied the principles of good governance relating to 
Directors' rernuneration and communicates its poiicies and 
practices on executive remuneration to shareholders. lt has 
been prepared hy the Rernuneration Cornrnittee Ithe 
"Cornrnittee"1 of Reed Eisevier Group plc and approved hy the 
boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Elsevier NV. 

In accordance with the UK Directors' Rernuneration Report 
Reguiations 2002 [the UK Regulationsl and the Dutch 
Corporate Governance Code issued in December 2003 Ithe 
Dutch Code). resolutions wil1 be suhmitted to the respective 
Annual General Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed 
Elsevier NV to approve this report and the rernuneration 
policy as set out below. 

Membership of the Remuneration Cornrnittee 
Throughout 2006, the Cornmittee consisted wholly of 
independent non-executive directors: Rolf Stornberg 
1"Chairrnan"l. Mark Elliott, Cees van Lede and, with effect 
from 24 July 2006, the Chairrnan of Reed Elsevier, Jan 
Hommen, whose appointment is in h e  with the revision to 
the Cornbined Code. At the invitation of the Chairrnan, the 
Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings of the 
Committee except when his own remuneration is under 
consideration. 

The contents of this report 
For greater ciarity, the rnain body of this report [Sections A 
and BI is focused on pay poiicy and practice for executive 
directors [pages 3L to 411 and non-executive directors 
[pages 41 and 421. Section C [pages 42 to 51 forming part 
of this report) deals with the auditable disciosures and 
other regulatoiy requirements. The framework of the 
report is as follows: 

Section A Executive directors 
a. Rernuneraiion policy and objectives 
b. Rernuneration in practice 
c. 2006 payments 
d. 2006 awards 
e. Shareholding requirernent 
f. Service contracts 
9. Policy on external appointrnents 

Section B Non-executive directors 
a. Policy 
h. Fee levels 

Section C Statutory disciosures 

A. Executive directors 
lal Rernuneration poiicy and objectives 
Our rernuneration policy has heen designed to meet the 
needs of a group of global business divisions. each of which 
operates internationally by line of business. In order to 
support this business structure, i t  is essential to have a 
rernuneration policy which: 

-$ aids the attraction and retention of the best executive 

-$ underpins Reed Elsevier's demanding performance 
talent f rom anywhere in the world; and 

standards. 

The challenges and dernands created by the need for glohal 
market cornpetitiveness as wei1 as for internal consistency 
have led the Cornrnittee to apply a cornmon and consistent 
set of standards to the design and operation of its incentive 
plans, including the level of incentive opportunity. 

The Committee helieves that in order to meet its 
rernuneration objectives, the remuneration of executive 
directors should comprise a balance between fixed and 
variahle Iperforrnance-relatedl pay elements with the greater 
proportion of potential reward being linked to performance. 
For superior performance, some 60% of each director's total 
target remuneration is performance-related. 

The Committee regulariy reviews remuneration policy to 
ensure that it is sufficiently flexihle to take account both of 
future changes in Reed Eisevier's business operations and 
environment and of key developrnents in remuneration 
practice. Consequently, the policy set out in this report has 
applied during 2006 and wil1 apply in 2007 subject to any 
necessary changes. Any changes wil1 he described in ful l  in 
future reports. 

Remuneration objectives 
The principai objectives of the policy are to attract and 
motivate executives of the highest calihre and experience, 
who are capable of shaping and executing strategy and 
delivering sharehoider value in a cornpetitive and increasingly 
global employment rnarket. The Committee helieves that this 
requires the following: 

A payand benefits package which is cornpetitive with 
packages offered hy other leading multinational 
cornpanies operating in global rnarkets, i.e. one which 
provides upper quartile total rernuneration for  the 
sustained delivery of superior levels of performance. 

3 A reward structure that links individual performance, 
cornpany performance and parent company share price 
performance so as to align the interests of the directors 
with those of the group as a whole and its shareholders. 

+ An approach to performance management that 
stirnulates enhanced performance by directors, 
recognises their individual contribution to the attainrnent 
of our short- and longer-term resuits and also 
encourages the teamwork which is essential to achieve 
the long term strategic objectives. 



Base salary and the Annual Incentive Plan IAIPI aim to 
position the executive within the relevant market lor  executive 
talent and to provide a focus on the delivery of our shorter 
term strategic objectives. 

The Executive Share Option Scheme IECOSI and Long Term 
Incentive Scheme ILTISI encourage a locus on longer term 
earnings growth and total shareholder return and increase 
executives' alignment with shareholders' interests. 

The Committee believes that the main driver of long term 
shareholder vaiue is sustained growth in profitability. In 
relation to shareholders, the primary measure of profitability 
is growth in adjusted earnings per share which is supported, 
at  an operational level, by the measures of revenue growth, 
profitability, cash generation and return on invested capital. 
In addition, recognising shareholders' preference for longer 
term incentive arrangements to include a performance 
measure based on shareholder return, a further measure of 
total shareholder return relative to a focused peergroup 
applies to awards made under the LTIS from 2006. These 
measures are integrated into our reward structure. In ai1 
cases, payments are made against a sliding scaie of 
performance achievement. since this is the most direct way 
to link pay with performance. 

Ibl Remuneration in practice 
The Committee's practice is to review the market 
competitiveness 01 base salary on the following basis: 

3 UK-based directors against FTSE 50 companies 
lexcluding financial selvicesl: and 

i US-based directors lor  directors on US-market based 
reward packages] against US Media Industry companies. 

Benefits, including medical and retirement benefits. are 
positioned to refiect local country practice. UK directors are 
eligibie to  participate in the ail-employee SAYE bavings 
relatedl share option scheme. 

Recognising the more global approach to the design of its 
incentive plans, referred to earlier, the annual and ionger 
term incentive plans for executive directors are operated with 
common incentive opportunity levels, irrespective of 
geographical location. 

In relation to long term incentives, the performance 
measures are tested once at the end of the specific 
performance period and are not subsequently re-tested 

This overall approach is set out in greater detail beiow with 
reference to the individual elements of the reward package 
for executive directors: 

Base saiary 
3 Salaries are reviewed annually to take account of 

two factors: firslly. market movement and individual 
performance during the previous year; secondly, the 
increased and sustainabie contribution of the individual to 
the group which may position the individual at a higher 

value relative to the market. The review of an individual 
salary does not automaticaily result in an increase to 
that salary 

Annual Incentive Pian IAIPI 
j Based on achievement of financial performance targets 

set against the critical rneasures of revenue growth, profit, 
cash generation and key performance objectives IKPOsl. 

3 Directors have a target bonus opportunity of 90% of 
salary, which is payable tor the achievement 01 highly 
stretching financial targets, Iwhich align with the annual 
budget and the parent companies' minimum 10% 
constant currency adjusted EPS objectivel, and lor  
outstanding performance against KPOs. For 2007, a 
maximum of 150% a i  saiary could be paid tor exceptionai 
performance lfor 2006 this was l lO%l.  AI1 targets are 
approved by the Committee at the beginning of the year. 

3 The target 90% bonus opportunity is allocated as follows. 
as a percentage of salary: 

- Revenue 
- Profit 

2 7 Qlo 
77% ~. 

~ Cash Flow Conversion Rate 9 %  
- KPOs 27% 

The four elements are measured separately, such that 
there could be a pay-out on one element and not on 
others. 

j For 2007. payment against each financial performance 
measure wi i l  only com'mence if a threshold of 97.5% of 
the target is achieved Ifor 2006 this was 94%1. 

3 Each director is typically set around six KPOs. These 
represent critical, non-financial priorities, tor which they 
are accountable. Against each ohjective, a number of 
measurable "miiestone targets" are defined. These mi?! 
be achieved during the annual performance period tor t k  
KPO payout to be made. .. 

4:. 

3 Designed to encourage increased personal shareholding 

3 Directors and other designated key senior executives mäy 
invest up to half of any payment they receive under the 
AIP in shares of Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV, 

3 Subject to continued employment, and to their retaining 
these investment shares during a three-year performance 
period, they wil1 be awarded an equivalent numher of 
matching shares. 

Bonus Investment Pian IBIPI ! 

". 
.- ,.. , by the participant. 
, . ,  

3 The award of matching shares is dependent on the 
achievement of a performance condition. In 2006, 
this was the achievement of at least 6% per annum 
compound growth in the average of Reed ELsevier PLC 
and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted EPS - measured at 
constant exchange rates over the three year vesting period. 



Di rectors' remu nera t ion report 
con tin ued 

Executive Share Options IESOSI 
Annuai grants of options are made over shares in Reed 
Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV at the market price at 
date of grant. 

j The ievei of option grant and the performance conditions 
are determined and reviewed by the Committee annuaily. 

j The standard performance condition, which governs the 
size of grant for a i i  participants, reiates to the compound 
annual growth in adjusted EP5 lat constant currenciesl 
over the three years prior to grant. The Target Grant Pooi 
tor a l i  participants is defined with reference to share 
usage during the base year of 2003, as follows: 

Adjusted EPS Growth Target Gram Pool 
Iconstant currenciesl per annum las a % 01 2003 Grantl 

Less than 6% 50% 
6% or more 75% 
8% or more 100% 
10% or more 125% 

,12% o r  more 150% 

j The awards made to executive directors are subject to an 
annual maximum of three times base salary The awards 
are subject to the foiiowing three performance criteria: 

j O n  grant 
- corporate performance as measured by adjusted 

EPS growth in accordance with the criteria above, 
and 

individuai performance over the three year period 
prior to grant: 

j O n  vesting 
- a  further performance condition such that the 

compound growth in adjusted EPS [at constant 
currencyl during the three years foliowing grant 
must be at Least 6% per annum. There is no 
retesting of the performance condition. 

j The combination of the tests on grant and vesting 
requires sustained high ievei profit growth over a 
continuous six year period in respect of each individuai 
grant to executive directors. 

3 Options are normaiiy exercisabie between three and 
ten years from the date of grant. 

Long term Incentive ILTIS) 
In iine with its previous commitment to shareholders the 
Committee reviewed the operation of the LTIS in 2006 and 
shareholders approved changes to its operation which apply 
to awards made from 2006. 

j Ai i  executive directors wil1 be eiigibie to receive an annual 
grant of performance shares with a target vaiue of around 
135% of salary [Lower Levels of grant wil1 appiy to other 
senior executives invited to participate in the LTISI. 

-$ Awards consist soieiy of performance shares 

In addition to achieving a demanding EPS performance 
target over a three year performance period;an additionai 
TSR performance target over the same three year period 
is aiso appiied. 

The min imum level of compound adjusted EP5 growth [at 
constant currenciesl wilt continue to be 8% per annum, wi th  
maximum vesting [under the EP5 measurel being achieved 
tor growth of 12% per annum. Any award earned through 
EPS performance may then be increased in i ine with Reed 
Eisevier's TSR performance against a comparator group 
over the three year period. No increase wiii be appiied tor 
TSR performance which is beiow median, and the 
maximum increase w i i i  be appiied at upper quartiie of TSR 
achievement. No award w i i i  be made to participants if Reed 
Eisevier faiis to achieve the min imum threshold of 8% per 
annum adjusted EPS growth [at constant currenciesl, 
irrespective of the associated TSR performance. 

The effect of the combination of these two rneasures is 
shown in the foiiowing tabie, which sets out the potential 
payment as a percentage of the initia1 target award: 

LTIS Performance Schedule 

Adiusted EP5 Giowfh Iconstant Below 62.5 Upper 

TSR Ranking 

~,~~ 
currenciesl per annum rnedian Median percentik & i t e  

Below 8% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
8% 28% 35% 4 2 % 49% 
10% 80% 100% 120% 140% 
12% and over 108% 135% 162% 189% 



For executive directors. the target award of 135% of salary 
could therefore be increased to a maximum of around 255% 
of salary 1135% x 189%1. Any shares which vest wil1 be 
treated as attracting dividends during the performance 
period. This could increase the maximum to around 270% of 
salary depending on dividend payments. 

The Committee considers this performance condition to be 
tougher than normal UK practice because the TSR element 
can irnprove the reward to participants it. but only if. the 
adjusted EPS test has first been achieved. 

3 Reed Elsevier's TSR wil1 be tested against a selected 
international group of competitor companies over a three 
year period. For awards made in 2007, these companies 
wi i l  be as foliows: 

The Thomson Corporation 
McGraw Hil i  
Reuters Group 
Pearson 
Woiters Kiuwer 
ChoicePoint 
EMAP 
Informa 
Dow Jones 

United Business Media 
Fair Isaac 
John Wiley & Sons 
DMGT 
Lagardere 
Dun & Bradstreet 
WPP 
Taylor Nelson 

Note: VNU becarne a private company during 2006 and has 
been removed from the peergroup. 

The TSR of Reed Eisevier and each of the comparator 
companies wi l i  be calcuiated in the currency of i ts 
primary iisting, which the Committee considers to  be the 
fairest test of management's relative performance. Reed 
Eisevier's TSR wil1 be taken as a simpie average of the 
TSR of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV. 

The Committee continues to have ful l  discretion to reduce 
or cancel awards granted to participants based on its 
assessment as to whether the EPS and TSR performance 
fairly reflects the progress of the business having regard 
to underlying revenue growth, cash generation. return on 
capital and any significant changes in inflation as wel i  as 
individuai oerforrnance. 

Retirement benefits 
j The Cornrnittee reviews retirement benefit provision in 

the context of the total remuneration package for each 
director, bearing in mind their age and service and 
against the background of evoiving legislation and 
practice in the group's major countries of operation. 

j Base saiary is the only pensionabie element of 
remuneration. 

3 The three UK-based executive directors are provided with 
conventionai UK defined benefit pension arrangements 
targeting two thirds [Sir Crispin Davis 45%1 of salary at  a 
normal retirement age of 60. The targeted pension is 
provided through a combination of: 

- the main UK Reed Elsevier Pension Scherne for salary 
restricted to  a cap, determined annuaily on the same 
basis as the pre-April 2006 Inland Revenue earnings 
cap, and 

Reed Elsevier's unfunded unapproved pension 
arrangement for salary above the cap. 

j P. Tierney and A. Prozes are covered by a mix of defined 
benefit and defined contribution arrangements. In 
accordance with US iegislation, these directors have no 
defined retirement age. Reed Elsevier pays an annual 
contribution of 19.5% of salary to E. Engstrom's personal 
pension plan. 

3 These arrangements are set out in further detail on 
page 44. 

Icl 2006 payments 
In this section. we set out the base annual salary paid to 
executive directors during 2006, the annuai incentive payment 
made in respect of 2006. and any gains which they have :-;: 
made during 2006 under any of the long term incentive plans. 

,:> lil Base salary for 2006 
The annual salary increases made to  executive directors $h 
effect from 1 January 2006 were consistent with US and UK 
norrns, respectively. for increases paid to senior executive,';. 
during 2006. The increases to US-based executives were i.ñ:a 
range from 3% to 7%; the increases to UK-based executiyes 
were in a range from 4% to 6%. except in the case of Mr. van 
de Aast, who was given an increase to align him more 
appropriately to the global market within which he operates, 
rather than to the UK market, which accounts for Iess than 
20% of his business. 

Because of the many countries in which we operate, there is  
no practica1 basis on which to compare directors' pay 
increases with those of other employees. However, the same 
factors, in t e r m  of rnarket, personal contribution and 
performance determine the ievel of increase across a l i  
employee populations globaliy. 



Di rect o rs’ rem u nera t io n re port 
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Annual Salary Annual Salaiy 
2006 2005 

G J A van de Aast €526.500 €430,000 
M H Armour €561,750 €535,000 
Sir Crispin Davis €1,081,600 E l  ,040,000 
E Engstrom $1,092,000 $1.040.000 
A Prozes $1.1 12.800 $1,040,000 
P Tierney $1,071,200 $1.040.000 

[ii) Annuai Incentive Plan Payments far 2006 
In assessing the level of bonus payrnents for  2006, the Cornmittee noted the foiiowing performances. 

Percentage change over 2005 a l  conslant exchange rales 

Measure Elsevier LexisNexis Harcourt Reed Business Reed Elsevier 

Revenue +8% +8% 0% +5% t 6 %  
Adjusted operating profit + 1 0% +13% - 1 9 %  + 1 4% +9% 

Payrnents 
matie lor %o06 

Ipaid 8n March 20071 % o1 salary 

G J A van de Aast €538.862 102.35% 
M H Arrnour €488.790 87.01% 
Sir Crispin Davis €919,360 85.00% 
E Engstrom $996,068 91.22% 
A Prozes $1,052,998 94.63% 
P Tierney $391.631 36.56% 

The 2006 financial results were encouraging, wi th 6% revenue growth [at constant currenciesl. irnproved underlying 
margins, and adjusted operating profits up 9% [at constant currenciesl. We have also delivered strong cash generation 
and higher returns on invested capital. Organic revenue growth was 5%. wi th good growth in Elsevier, LexisNexis and 
Reed Business and flat revenues in Harcourt Education in a weaker market. Organic adjusted operating profit growth was 
8% with underlying margin irnprovement in Elsevier, LexisNexis and Reed Business. The revenue growth benefits f rom a 
10% increase in digital revenues representing the payback on the continuing investment in new electronic product, 
innovative marketing and expanded sales coverage. The 0.7 percentage point improvement in underlying margin ref lects 
the revenue growth and the continuing focus on cost across the business. The quality of the earnings is underpinned by 
our  strong cash f low in 2006, with 95% of adjusted operating profits converting into cash. 

In addition, the directors were generally assessed as having delivered a strong performance against their KPOs. resulting in 
positive business rnomentum and an overall promising business outlook going into 2007. 

[iiil Gains made under Long term Incentive Plans during 2006 

ESOS 
The following gains were made by executive directors in relation to share options over ordinary shares in Reed Elsevier PLC 
[PLCI and Reed Elsevier NV INVI exercised during 2006: 

No. of options exerciseti Share lype O p t m  price Market price Gain 

Gerard van de Aast 81,728 PLC 451.50~ 565.001, €92,761 
58,191 NV €9.34 €12.11 €161.189 

Pat Tierney 25,000 PLC 451.50~ 559.0013 €26,875 
16,000 NV €9.34 €12.90 €56.960 



BIP 
The first cycie under the Bonus Investment Pian [BIPI was launched in 2003 and therefore the first matching shares vested 
to participants in 2006. 

Accordingly, the foliowing numbers of shares were transferred under the terms of the BIP, to the foiiowing executive 1 directors. 

Markel price 
on  date of Na. af matching 

shares vesied Share type vesttng V a l m  

Mark Armour 1 1,327 PLC 5 4 5 . 5 0 ~  f61.789 
8,030 NV €1 1.70 €93,951 

Sir Crispin Davis 22.731 PLC 545.50~ €123,998 
16,115 NV €1 1.70 €188,546 

Andrew Prozes 20.040 PLC 545 .50~  f109.318 
14,552 NV €11.70 €170.258 

Gerard van de Aast 12,057 NV €11.70 €141.067 

LTIS + The 2004-2006 cycie of the LTIS wi l i  be tested as at the vesting date of 2 March 2007 and the first awards under this plan 
wi i l  be made in March 2007. 

-$ For the performance period 2004-06, awards to executive directors under the LTIS were made in February 2004 in respect 
of 5.5 times salary in conventional market price options and 2.5 times saiary in performance shares. 

+ The performance condition governing the vesting of those awards was as follows: 
- at 8% compound annuai growth in adjusted EP5 [at constant currencyl. 25% of the awards vest: 
- at 10% growth, 100% vest: 
- at 12% growth, 125% of the awards vest. 
Awards vest on a straight iine basis between each of these points. There is no provision for retesting of the 
performance condition. 

The Committee assessed both the earnings growth and the quaiity of earnings in order to determine whether the 
performance condition had been achieved. Reed Elsevier's performance throughout the 2004-06 performance period 
continued to show good revenue growth, continuous margin improvement, strong cash generation and growing returns on 
capitai. On average over the period, Reed Eisevier succeeded in deiivering against its targeted adjusted earnings per share 
growth of a minimum of 10% at constant currencies. Increasing profitability and capitai discipline drove the post tax return on 
capital employed to 9.8% in 2006, which was 0.4 percentage points ahead of 2005. This was the fifth successive year of grohth 
in returns. Acquisitions have continued to accelerate the strategy in e-health. Legai solutions, risk management and busin!?$s 
oniine, and are on track to deiiver a return on capitai in excess of Reed Elsevier's weighted average cost of capitai within th-cFe 
years, with good growth in returns expected thereafter, The Remuneration Committee therefore considers that the adjusted- 
EP5 growth achieved is a fair refiection of the progress of the business and has approved that the average compound arm$ 
growth rate in adjusted EP5 at constant exchange rates over the 2004-06 performance period is 10.17%. which rneans thaf , 

,Z..', 
I c. 

102.125% of the target awards wii ivest. 
L:i 

-~ , -.i 



Directors' remuneration report 
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Accordingiy, the foliowing numbers of options wil1 become exercisabie and the foiiowing numbers of shares wi i l  be 
transferred on reaching the vesting date, under the t e r m  of the 2004-06 LTIS, to the foiiowing executive directors: 

Na. of 
Share Type No o1 Shares Share Oplions Oplion Price 

G J A van de Aast P LC 106,342 233,955 487.2513 
NV 73,023 160,651 €10.57 

NV 90,666 199,467 €10.57 
M H Arrnour PLC 132,036 290.481 487.25~ 

Sir Crisoin Davis PLC 259.825 571,616 4 8 7 . 2 5 ~  
NV 178,416 392,516 €10 57 

E Engstrom P LC 147,801 325,163 478.00~ 
NV 102 165 224 766 €10.30 

NV 95,061 209,133 €10.57 
P Tierney P LC 89,982 197,962 4 8 7 . 2 5 ~  

NV 61 ,789 135,936 €10.57 

During 2006, Mr  Engstrom received shares to the vaiue of €440.970 on the vesting of restricted shares awarded to h im in 2004 
as part of his initial recruitment arrangements, which were set out in the Annuai Reports and Financial Statements 2004. 

Id) 2006 awards 
In this section. we set out the new awards made to executive directors during 2006 under the t e r m  of our long term incentive 
plans. 

LTIS awardc. ESOS grants made in the year and executive directors' elections under the Bonus Investment Pian IBIPI are 
shown in the foiiowing tabie. 

ES05 BIP 
Share Type LTIS Awards Share Oplions Matching Shares 

Na. o1 Shares No. o1 Shares Opiion Price NO. o1 shares 

G J A van de Aast P LC 70,364 127,662 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  18.633 
NV 46,332 85.775 €1 1.47 12.31 1 

M H Armour PLC 75.075 I 58.836 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  21,653 
NV 49,434 106,720 €1 1.47 14,306 

Sir Crispin Davis PLC 144.550 305.824 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  42.092 
NV 95.181 2 0 5.4 8 O €1 1.47 27,810 

E Engstrom P LC 82,092 178,895 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  - 

NV 54,055 120,198 €1 1.47 29.442 
A Prores PLC 83.656 182.303 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  26,400 

NV 55,085 122,487 €1 1.47 17.636 
P Tierney PLC 80.528 175.488 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  8,124 

NV 53.025 1 17.908 El 1.47 5,426 

lel Sharehoiding requirernent 
Participants in the LTIS are required to build up a significant personal shareholding in Reed Elsevier PLC and/or Reed 
Eisevier NV, Following shareholders' approval of the revised terrns of the LTIS in 2006. the shareholding requirement for the 
Chief Executive Officer is now three times saiary [previousiy 1.5 times salaryl and for other executive directors is two times 
saiarylpreviousiy 1.5 times saiaryl. These increased shareholding requirements must be met by February 2009 at the iatest. 

Details of directors' shareholdings, as at 31 December 2006, are set out  on page 51 



Ifl Service contracts 
Executive directors are ernployed under service contracts which generaliy provide for one year's notice and neither specify 
a pre-determined level of severance payment nor contain specific provisions in respect of change in controi. 

The service contracts for executive directors land for approxirnateiy 130 other senior executivesl contain the foliowing 
provisions: 

3 covenants which prevent thern from working with specified cornpetitors, recruiting Reed Elsevier employees and soliciting 
Reed Eisevier customers f o r a  period of 12 months after leaving ernpioyment; 

j in the event of their resigning. they wi i l  imrnediately lose a l i  rights to any outstanding awards under the LTIS, ESOS 
and BIP granted frorn 2004 onwards. including any vested but unexercised options; and 

j in the event that they were to join a specified cornpetitor within 12 rnonths of termination, any gains made in the six 
rnonths prior to termination on the exercise or vesting of an LTIS, ESOS and BIP award made from 2004 onwards 
shal i  be repayable. 

Igl Policy on external appointments 
The Cornmittee believes that the experience gained by aliowing executive directors to serve as non-executive directors on 
the boards of other organisations is of benefit to Reed Eisevier. Accordingly, executive directors rnay, subject to the approval 
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, serve as non-executive directors on the boards of up to two non-associated 
cornpanies lof which only one rnay be to !he board of a major cornpanyl and they may retain rernuneration arising frorn 
such appointments. 

3 Sir Crispin Davis is a non-executive director of GiaxoSmithKline plc and received a fee of €70,000 during 2006. 

3 Erik Engstrom was a non-executive director of Eniro AB lunti l  5 Apri l  20061 and received a fee of SEK75.000 lf5,5271 
during 2006. 

3 Andrew Prozes is a non-executive director of the Cott Corporation and received a fee of $56.000 (f30.4351 during 2006 

3 Gerard van de Aast is a non-executive director of OCE NV (since 1 May 20061 and received a fee of €23.342 (€15.8791 
during 2006. 

B. Non-executive directors 
(al Poiicy 
Reed Eisevier seeks to recruit non-executie directors with the experience to contribute to the board of a dual-iisted 

cornmittee structures. 
global business and with a baiance of personai skilis which wi l i  make a major contribution to the boards and their l..,.', 

"! 

With the exception of G J de Boer-Kruyt, who serves oniy on the supervisory board of Reed Eisevier NV, non-executive 
directors, inciuding the Chairman, are appointed to the boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc. Reed Elsevier PLC and the 
supervisory board o f  Reed Elsevier NV. 

'c:' I'' 
:. .' 
. . '  ... Non-executive directors' rernuneration is determined by the ihree boards as appropriate to the director concerned. ,5-, 

The primary source for comparative market data is the practice of FTSE50 cornpanies. although reference is also made 
to AEX companies. 

Non-executive directors. inciuding the Chairman, serve under Letters of appointment, do not have contracts of service and are 
not entitied to notice of, ar payments following, termination. 

In 2005 the Reed Eisevier Group plc board introduced a charity donation matching programrne for non-executive directors. 
Under the policy, where a non-executive director donates a l i  or part of their fees to a registered charity. the Cornpany rnay. at 
i ts sole discretion, make a matching donation to any charity. provided the charity's object ies are judged to be appropriate and 
are not politicai or reiigious in nature. Messrs Reid, Zeinick and van Lede each donated a proportion of their fees in respect of 
2006 to charity and, in accordance with the programme, the Company made matching charitable donations of €22.500, 
€42,065 and €20,408. respectively. 

:,:i 



Directors' remuneration report 
continued 

[bl Fee Levels 
Non-executive directors receive one annuai fee in respect of their rnemberships of the boards of Reed Eisevier PLC, Reed 
Elsevier NV and Reed Eisevier Group pic. The fee paid to G J de Boer-Kruyt, who serves oniy on the supervisory board of Reed 
Eisevier NV. refiects her t ime commitment to that cornpany and to other companies within the Reed Elsevier cornbined 
businesses. Non-executive directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred in attending meetings. They do not receive any 
performance related bonuses. pension provisions. share options or other forms of benefii. Fees rnay be reviewed annuaiiy. 
aithough in practice they have changed on a'less frequent basis and were Last reviewed with effect from 1 May 2003. 
The fee for Mrs de Boer-Kruyt was last reviewed with effect from 1 January 2004. 

Annuai fee rates applicabie to non-executive directors and to the Chairrnan are set out in the foliowing tabie: 

Annual fee 200b Annual lee 2005 

Chairrnan a50,OOO €350,000 
Non-executive directors E45,000/€65,000 €ú5,000/€65.000 
Chairman of: 
-Audi t  Comrnittee €7,000/€12,000 €7,000/€12,000 
- Remuneration Committee €7.000/€12,000 €7.000/€12,000 

C. Statutory disclosures 
lal Report authorship 
This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee of.Reed Eisevier Group plc. It has been prepared in 
accordance with the UK Reguiations and the Dutch Code issued in December 2003 in order to meet the requirements of the 
UK Combined Code of Corporate Governance issued in Juiy 2003, the Dutch Code and the Netherlands Civii code. 

[bl Rernuneration committee constitution and terms of reference 
The Committee is responsible for: 

j recommending to the boards the rernuneration [in a i i  its formsl of the Chairrnan and the executive directors, inciuding 
terms of service contracts and a i i  other t e r m  and conditions of empioyment; 

3 providing advice to the Board and to the Chief Executive Officer on major policy issues affecting the remuneration of 
executives at a senior ievei beiow the board; and 

3 the operation of a i i  share-based plans. 

A copy of the Terms of Reference of the Committee can be found on the Reed Eisevier website w . reede isev ie r . com 

The Remuneration Cornmittee met six t imes during the yeac M r  van Lede was unable to attend one meeting, otherwise there 
was ful i  attendance. 

IC] Advisors 
The Committee has appointed Towers Perrin, an external consultancy which has wide experience of executive remuneration 
in multinational cornpanies. to advise in deveioping its performance-reia'ed remuneration poiicy. Towers Perrin aiso provide 
actuarial and other Human Resources consultancy services directly to some Reed Eisevier companies. 

The foiiowing individuais als0 provided material advice or services to the Committee during the year: 

3 Sir Crispin Davis IChief Executive Officerl; 

j lan Fraser IGroup HR Director]; and 

3 Phiiip Wills [Director, Compensation and Benefitsl 



ldl Total Shareholder Return ITSRI 
As required by the Oirectors' Remuneration Report Regulations 2002. the foliowing graphs show the Reed Elsevier P IC  and 
Reed Eisevier NV totai shareholder return performance, assurning dividends were reinvested. They compare the Reed 
Elsevier PLC performance with that achieved by the FTSE 100. and the Reed Eisevier NV performance with the performance 
achieved by the Euronext Amsterdam IAEXI Index, over the five year period frorn 2002-2006. 

For the five year period since 1 January 2002, the TSR for Reed Eisevier P IC  was 11%. against a FTSE 100 return of 39%. For 
Reed Elsevier NV during the Same period, TSR was 14%. against an AEX Index return of 16%. As Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed 
Eisevier NVare mernbers of the FTSE 100 and AEX Index respectiveiy, the Cornmittee considers these indices to be 
appropriate for comparison purposes. 

Reed Elsevier PLC tota l  shareholder re tu rn  
v FTSE 100 2002-2006 
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For the seven year period since 1 January 2000, being the period since Reed Elsevier set out its investrnent led growth 
strategy, the TSR for Reed Eisevier P IC  was 58%, significantly outperforming the FTSE 100 which showed a return of 14%. 
For Reed Elsevier NV. in the same seven year period TSR was 47% also significantly outperforming the AEX Index which 
showed a negative return of 4% 

Reed Elsevier PLC tota l  shareholder re turn 
vFTSE1002000-2006 v AEX Index 2000-2006 
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The total shareholder return set out above is calcuiated on the'basis of the average share price in the 30 trading days pr ior to  
the respective year ends and on the assurnption that dividends were reinvested. 1 

c.-: .. ~ 

lel Service contracts 
Each of the executive directors has a service contract, as surnrnarised beiow: 

Contract Date Exoini date 

I 4  

Notice period Suh,ect..tö: 
(subject 10 &e eeriadl ,c., 

English law G J A van de Aast1'' 15 November 2000 17 Juiy2017 12 months 
- - ~ 

M H Arrnour" 7 October1996 ~ 29 Ju6 2014- 12rnonths ~ G g i i s h  i a w  
Sir Crispin Davis" 19 Juiy 1999 19 March 2009 12 months English law 
E Engstrom" 25June2004 14 June 2025 12 rnonths Engiish iaw 
A Prozes"" 5 July 2000 Indefinite 12 rnonths base salary New York iaw 

payabie for termination 
without cause 

payable for termination 
without cause 

P Tierney'"' 19 November 2002 Indefinite 12 months base salary New York law 

lil Employed by Reed Elsevier Group plc íiil Employed by Reed tlsevier Inc 



Di rectors' rem u ne ra t i o n report 
continued 

The Cornrnittee believes that, as a general rule, notice periods shouid be twelve months and that the executive directors 
shouid. subject to practice within their base country, be required t o  rnitigate their darnayes in the event of termination. 
The Cornrnittee wiil. however, note iocal  rnarket conditions so as to ensure that the terms offered are appropriate to 
attract and retain top executives operating in giobal businesses. 

No loans. advances or guarantees have been provided for the benefit of any director. 

[f) Auditabie disclosures 
[i) Pensions in more detail 
The target pension for Sir Crispin Davis at normal retirement age of 60 is 45% of base saiary in the 12 rnonths prior to 
retirement. Other executive directors based in the UK are provided with pension benefits at a norrnai retirement age of 60. 
equivalent to two thirds of base salary in the 12 months prior to retirement, provided they have cornpleted 20years' service 
with Reed Elsevier or at an accrual rate of l i30th of pensionabie saiary per annum if ernpioyrnent is for iess than 20 years. 

The target pension for A Prozes, a US-based director, after completion of seven years' pensionable service is US$300,000 per 
annurn. In the event that M r  Prozes completes more than seven years pensionable service, the pension payabie wi i i  be 
increased on a pro rata basis by US$42,857 per annurn. The pension wil1 be reduced in arnount by the vaiue of any other 
retirement benefits payable by Reed Elsevier or  which become payable by any forrner ernployer, other than those attributabie 
to empioyee contributions. The target pension for P Tierney, a US-based director. after completion of five years' pensionabie 
service is US$440.000 per annurn, inclusive of any other retirement benefits payable by Reed Elsevier or  any former ernployer, 
other than those attributabie to employee contributions. In the event of termination of ernpioyrnent before completion of five 
years' pensionable service, the pension payable wil1 be reduced proportionately. As US employees Messrs Prozes and Tierney 
aiso are eligibie to participate in Reed Eisevier's 401 k plan, to which Reed Elsevier contributed €3,654 and €3,552 respectively 
for the year. 

The pension arrangement5 for the above directors inciude life assurance cover whiist in employment, an entitiement to a 
pension in the event of ill health or  disability and a spouse's and/or dependents' pension on death. 

E Engstrom is n o t a  rnernber,of a company pension scherne and Reed Eicevier made a contribution to Mr  Enystrom's 
designated retirement account of €115,728, equivalent to 19.5% of his annuai salary. In addition, Mr  Enystrom is provided 
with iife assurance cover whilst in ernpioyrnent. 

The increase in the transfer vaiue of the directors' pensions, after deduction of contributions. is shown below: 

l 

Transfer 

o1 increase 
1nirea.e in in accrued 

1ncreaie i" arcrued a"""al 
Transfer Transfer tramler 1ncreaee I" C3"""d pension 

I YBIUe value v a b e  during Accrued accrued pension during lhe 
ofacciued of accrued the period a"""al a"""d during period Inel 

p e n m n  pension Inei of pe"Si0" pension ihe period of inllation 
Age Direclari' 31 December 31 December direclori '  31 December during Inel  of and directors 

31 December contribulions 2005 2006 coniribulionsl 2006 Ihe period inllalionl cantribulionsl 
2006 t E c E E t E t 

G J A van de Aast L9 5,393 721.552 1,07~.289 347,344 102.216 29.332 27.728 286.033 
M H Arrnour 52 5,393 2,259,816 2,866,803 601.594 223.097 28,454 24,179 3 0 5 . 3 0 ~  
Sir Crispin Davis 57 5,393 5,563,704 7,361,487 1,792,390 373,869 63,395 56,564 I ,108,360 
A P r n 7 e  - - - - - - - - 

Transfer values have been calculated in accordance with the guidance note G N I  1 published by the UK Institute of 
Actuaries and Faculty of Actuaries. 

The transfer vaiue in respect of individual directors represents a iiability in respect of directors' pensions entitiement, 
and is not an arnount paid or payable to the director. 



bil Agçreçate emoiurnents 
The ernolurnenk of the directors of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV lincluding any entitlement to fees or 
emoiuments frorn either Reed Eisevier Group pic or Eisevier Reed Finance BVI were as foilows: 

2006 2005 

Calaryes and-fee, ~ 

Benefits 
Annual performance-related bonuses 
Pension contributions 
Pension to former director 

4,502 4,234 
126 I 1 1 1  

3,273 3.001 
139 135 
221 223 

Payment to former director - 10 

Total 8.261 7,714 

No cornpensation payments have been made for ioss of office ar  termination in 2005 and 2006 

Details of long-term share hased incentives exercised hy the directors over shares in Reed Ekevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
during the year are shown on pages 46 to 50. The aggregate notionai pre-tax gain made by the directors on the exercise of 
such incentives during the year was €1,408,072 12005: €471,4821, 

lii i l Individuai ernoiuments of executive directors 
SalaV  üenefils Bonus Total 2006 rotai 2005 

G J A van de Aast 503,946 18.795 538.862 1,061,603 855.203 
M H Armour 561,750 21,765 488.790 1,072,305 1,029,361 
Sir Crispin Davis 1,081,600 39,048 919,360 2,040,008 1,991,516 
E Engstrom 593,478 18,661 541.341 1.153.480 1,050,436 
A Prozes 604.783 16.857 572.282 1,193.922 1,148,440 
P Tierney 582.174 10,445 212,843 805,462 755,878 

Totai 3,927,731 125,571 3,273.478 7.326.780 6,830,634 

Benefits principaiiy cornprise the provision of a company car. medicai insurance and iife assurance. 

Sir Crispin Davis was the highest paid director in 2006. His aggregate notionai pre-tax gain on the exercise of share based 
incentives during the year was €252.260 12005: €9,5761. 

IivI Individual ernoiuments of non-executive directors 

t t t E E 

i;,! 

2006 zoo5 
E , E  

G J de Boer-Kruyt 22.993 23, i 581 

M W Eiliott 45.000 45.000 
238.095 159,817 J Hommen lfrom 27 April 20051 

L Hook I f rom 19 Apri l  20061 30,000 ~ 

C J A van Lede 44,218 ' 44,<2i 
D E Reid 45,000 45,000 
Lord Sharrnan 52,000 52,000 
R W H Stombera 52.381 52.740 

J F Brock lunti l  28 Apri i  20051 - 11.1'30 

!.. I ..., 

M Tabaksbiat l u i t i l  28 Apri l  20051 - L7.945 
S Zeinick l from 27 Apri l  20051 45.000 33,750 

Total 574.687 51 5,054 



Di re ct o rs' rem u nera t io n re port 
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[vl Share options and interests in shares 
Details of options and restricted shares held by directors in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV during the period are 
shown below. There have been no changes in the options or restricted shares held by directors sinte 31 December 2006. 

Exercisedl Market 
[al Options in ReedElsevier PLC 

Gianted Lapsed price at 
1 Januaiy during Opt lO" during exercise 31 December Exercisable Exercisable 

2006 lheyear price lhe year date 2006 torn ""til 

- ESOS 50.940 638.00~ 50,940 1 Dec 7003 1 Dec 2010 
49,317 6 5 9 . 0 0 ~  49,317 73 Feb 2004 23 Feb 201 1 
58,000 600.00~ 58,000 27 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012 

124,956 4 8 7 . 2 5 ~  124,956 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
120.900 533.5013 170,900 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015 

177,667 530 .50~  127,662 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 
- BIP 31,717 N i l  31.217 76 Mar 2007 76 Mar 2007 

18.633 N i l  18,633 4 Apr 2009 4 April 2009 
- LTIS [options] 729,087 4 8 7 . 2 5 ~  229,087 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS Isharesl 104.130 N i l  104,130 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

70,364 Ni1 70,364 19 Apr 2009 19 April 2009 

G J A van de Aast 

81,728 451 .50~  81 ,728'" 565 .00~  - 

Total 850,275 216,659 81.728 985,206 
M H Armour 

- ESOS 

- BIP 

30,000 
52.000 
66,900 
33,600 
88.207 
62,974 
74,000 

104,319 
155,147 
150,422 

11,377 
19.275 
21,861 

- LTIS [optionsl 284.437 
- LTIS Isharesl 129,289 

585 .75~  
565.7513 
573 .00~  
537.50~ 
436 .50~  
6 5 9 . 0 0 ~  
6OO.OOp 
451 .50~  
487.25~ 
5 3 3 . 5 0 ~  

158,836 530.501, 
N i i  
N i l  
Ni1 

21,653 N i l  
487.75p 

N i l  

30,000"" - 
52,000 
66,900 
33,600 
88,202 
62,974 
74,000 

104,319 
155.147 

. 150.422 
158,836 

11.327 545.5013 - 
19,225 
21,861 
71,653 

284,437 
179.289 

21 Apr 2000 
17 Aug 2001 
21 Feb 2003 
7 May 2003 

23 Feb 2004 
22 Feb 2005 
71 Feb 2006 
19 Feb 7007 
17 Feb 2008 
13 Mar 2009 

26 Mar 2007 
14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 7007 
19 Feb 2007 

21 Apr 2007 
17 Aug 2008 
19 Apr 2009 
2 May 2010 

23 Feb 201 1 
72 Feb 7012 
21 Feb 2013 
19 Feb 2014 
17 Feb 2015 
13 Mar 2016 

26 Mar 2007 
14 Apr 7008 
4 April 2009 
19 Feb 2014 
19 Feb 2007 

75.075 N i l  75,075 19 Apr 7009 19 Apr 2009 
-.SAYE 4,329 377.601, 4.329 1 Aug 2009 31 Jan 2010 

Total 1,288,032 255,564 41,327 1,502,269 



[al Options in Reed Elsevier PLC continued 
Exerctiedl Market 

Granled Lapsed price at 
1 January during option during exerme 31 December Exercisahte Exercisable 

2006 the year price the year date 2006 from ""til 

Sir Crispin Davis 
- ESOS 160,599 

80.300 
80,300 

171,821 
122,914 
148,500 
209.192 
305,303 
292,409 

- BIP 22,731 
39,554 
86.042 

- LTIS loptionsl 559,722 
- LTIS Isharesl 254,419 

- SAVE 

305.824 

42,092 

144,550 
3.793 

467 .00~  
467 .00~  
467.00~ 
436 .50~  
659.001, 
600.00~ 
451 .50~  
487.25~ 
5 3 3 . 5 0 ~  
530 .50~  

Ni l  
Ni1 
Ni1 
Ni1 

1 8 7 . 2 5 ~  
Ni l  
Ni1 

424.400 

160,599 
80,300 
80,300 

171,821 
122.91 4 
148.500 
209.192 
305,303 
292,409 
305,824 

22,7311'"1 545.501, - 

39,554 
86.042 
12,092 

559.722 
254,419 
144,550 

3.793 

21 Feb 2003 
1 Sept 2003 
1 Sept 2004 
2 May 2003 

23 Feb 2004 
22 Feb 2005 
21 Feb 2006 
19 Feb 2007 
17 Feb 2008 
13 Mar 2009 

26 Mar 2007 
14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 2007 
19 Feb 2007 
19 Apr 2009 
1 Auo 201 1 

1 Sept 2009 
1 Sept 2009 
1 Sept 2009 
2 May 2010 

23 Feb 201 1 
22 Feb 2012 
21 Feb 2013 
19 Feb 2014 
17 Feb 201 5 
13 Mar 2016 

26 Mar 2007 
14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 2014 
19 Feb 2007 
19 Apr 2009 
31 Jan 2012 

_I 

Total 2,533,806 496,259 22,731 3,007,334 
E Engstrom 

- ESOS 63.460 478 .00~  
154.51 7 533.501, 

178,895 5 3 0 . 5 0 ~  
- BIP 14,020 Ni l  
- LTIS loptionsl 318,398 4 7 8 . 0 0 ~  
- LTIS [shares1 144.726 Ni1 

82,092 Ni l  
- Restricted shares 77,186 Ni1 38.593l'"I 

63,460 
154,517 
178,895 

14.020 
318,398 
144.726 
82,092 

560 .00~  38,593 

23 Aug 2007 
17 Feb 2008 
13 Mar 2009 
14 Apr 2008 

23 Aug 2007 
19 Feb 2007 
19 Apr 2009 

23 Aug 2005 

23 Aug 2014 
17 Feb 2015 
13 Mar 2016 
14 Apr 2008 

23 Aug 2014 
19 Feb 2007 
19 Apr 2009 

23 Aug 2007 

Total 772.307 260.987 38.593 994.701 
A Prozes 

- ESOS 188.281 566 .00~  188.281 9 Aug 2003 9 Aug 2010 
83,785 659.001, 83,785 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 201:l 

103,722 600.00p 103,722 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012 
132.1 42 451 .50~  132.142 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2Öï3 
162,666 487.251, 162,666 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2Ul'Z 
154,517 5 3 3 . 5 0 ~  154,517 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015 

182.303 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 

20.104 N i l  20.104 26 Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 
23.756 Ni l  23,756 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008 

26,400 N i i  26,400 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 
- LTIS loptionsl 298,221 487 .25~  298.221 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS Isharesl 135,555 Ni l  135,555 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

83,656 Nil 83,656 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 

_. 182,303 530.5013 
C.'',, - BIP 20.040 Ni l  20,0401"' 545.50~ - 

Total 1,322.789 292.359 20,040 1,595,108 



Di rect o rs' rem u nera t io n report 
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la l  Options in  Reed Elsevier PLC continued 
Exeicisedl Market 

Granted Lapsed price at 
1 Janualy during Option during exercise 31 December Exercinabie Exermabie 

2006 the yeai  price ihe yeai  date 2006 Irnrn until 

P Tierney 
- ESOS 396,426 451.50~ 25.0001"1 5 5 9 . 0 0 ~  371,426 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013 

162,666 487.2513 162,666 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
154,517 5 3 3 . 5 0 ~  154.517 17Feb2008 17Feb2015 

175.488 530.501, 175,488 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar2016 
- BIP 19,572 N i l  19,572 26 Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 

24.156 N i i  24.156 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008 
8.124 N i i  8,124 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 

- LIIS loptionsl 298,221 487 .25~  298,221 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS [shares) 135,555 N i i  135,555 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

80.528 N i i  80,528 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 
Totai 1,191,113 264,140 25,000 1,430.253 

lil Retained an interest in 9.652 shares 
liil Lapsed unexercised 
liiil Retained a n  interest in i3,bbb shares 
(ivl Retained an interest in 10.226 shares 
(Y) Retained an interest in 13.2L4 shares 
(vil Retained a n  interest in ai1 of the shares 

Awards granted under BIP and ESOS which become exercisabie f rom 2007 onwards are subject to post-grant 
performance conditions. as set out on pages 35 and 36. 

The proportion of the award that mayvest in 2007 under LTIS is subject to the annuai growth in adjusted EPS during the 
performance period. The numbers of LIIS options and shares included in the above tabie are calculated by reference to a 
target annuai growth rate of 10%. which wouid resuit in 100% of the award vesting. Based on actuai adjusted EPS growth. 
approximateiy 102% of the target award wii ivest, as outiined on page 39. 

l h e  proportion of the award that rnay vest in 2009 under LTIS is subject to the annuai growth in adjusted EPS and reíative 
total sharehoider return ITSRI measured against a group of competitor companies during the performance period. The 
numbers of LTIS shares included in the above tabie are caicuiated by reference to an assumed achievement of 10% per 
annurn averaged compound growth in adjusted EPS at constant currencies and rnedian TSR, which would result in 100% 
of the award vesting. Depending on actuai adjusted EPS growth and TSR, the proportion of the award that rnayvest could 
be ioweror  higher, as outiined on pages 36 and 37. 

Options under the SAYE scherne, in which a i \  eligibie UK employees are invited to participate. are granted at a maximum 
discount of 20% to the market price at t ime of grant. They are normaiiy exercisabie after the expiry of 3 or  5 years f rom the 
date of grant. No performance targets are attached to this scheme as it is an ail-employee scherne. 

The middie market price of a Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary share on the date of the 2006 award under BIP and LTIS was 
5 4 9 . 5 0 ~  and 535.00p, respectiveiy. 

The middle market price of a Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary share during the year was in the range 503.50~ to 6 0 7 . 5 0 ~  and 
at 31 December 2006 was 560.5013. 



Ibl Options in Reed Eisevier NV 
Maikel  

Granled Exercised price at 
1 January during op1,on during exercise 31 December Exeicisable Exercisable 

2006 the year price the year date 2006 fmm ""til 

€14.87 
€14.75 
€13.94 

€9.34 
€1 0.57 
€1 1.31 

85,775 €1 1.47 
Ni1 
N i l  

12.31 1 Ni1 
€10.57 

N i i  

G J A van de Aast 
- ESOS 35,866 

35.148 
40,699 
58,191 
85,805 
82,478 

- BIP 12,057 
26,347 

- LTIS [optionsl 157,309 
- LTIS (shares1 71,504 

35,866 
35,148 
40.699 

58,191" €12.11 - 
85,805 
82.478 
85,775 

12,0571'" €1 1.70 - 

26.347 
12.31 1 

157,309 
71.504 

i Dec 2003 
23 Feb 2004 
22 Feb 2005 

19 Feb 2007 
17 Feb 2008 
13 Mar 2009 

14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 2007 
19 Feb 2007 

1 Dec 2010 
23 Feb 201 1 
22 Feb 2012 

19 Feb 2014 
17 Feb 2015 
13Mar2016 

14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 2014 
19 Feb 2007 

46,332 N i l  46,332 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 

Totai 605.404 144,418 70,248 679,574 
M H Arrnour 

- ESOS 20.244 €13.55 20,244 21 Feb 2003 19 Apr 2009 
61.726 €1 0.73 61,726 2 May 2003 2 May 2010 
44,882 €14.75 44.882 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 201 1 

' 51,926 €13.94 51,926 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012 
74.276 €9.34 74,276 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013 

106,536 €10.57 106.536 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
102,618 €1 1.31 102,618 17Feb2008 17Feb2015 

106,720 €1 1.47 106,720 13 Mar2009 13 Mar2016. 

12,842 N i l  12,842 26 Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 
15.098 N i i  15,098 14Apr2008 14Apr2008 

i 4.306 Nil 14,306 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 
- LTIS Ioptionsl 195,317 €10.57 195,317 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS [shares] 88,780 Ni1 88,780 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

49,434 Nii 49.434 19 Apr 2009 i 9  Apr 2009 
Total 782,275 170,460 8,030 944,705 I...,, 

Sir Crispin Davis 

- BIP 8,030 Nii 8.030 €11.70 - 

'i i 

- ESOS 95,774 €1 2.00 95.774 21 Feb 2003 1 Sept 20Ò9 
47,888 €12.00 47,888 1 Sept 2003 1 Sept 2Ö09 
47.888 €1 2.00 47.888 1 Sept 2004 1 Sept 2009 

120.245 €10.73 120,245 2 May 2003 2 May 2010 
87,601 €14.75 87,601 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 201,l 

104,204 €13.94 .104,204 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012 
148,94b €9.34 148,946 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013 
209,645 €10.57 209,645 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
199.481 €1 1.31 199,481 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015 

205.480 €1 1.47 205.480 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 

26,421 Ni1 26,421 26,Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 
27.81 O N i l  27.810 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 

~ LTIS loptionsl 384,349 €10.57 384,349 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS [shares] 174.704 N i i  174,704 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

95,181 N i l  95.181 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 

- BIP 16,115 N i l  16.1 151'"1 €11.70 - 

Totai 1,663,261 328,471 16,115 1,975,617 



Di rect o rs' rem u n e ra t ion répo rt 
continu ed 

[bl Options in Reed Eisevier NV continued 
Markel 

Granled Exercised price a t  
1 January during Option during exerose 31 December Exemisahle Exercisable 

?nnh fhevear arice lhevear date 2006 from until 

43,866 23 Auq 2007 23 Auq 2014 43,866 €10.30 
E Engstrom 
' - ESOS 

105.412 . €11.31 105.412 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015 
120,198 €11.47 120,198 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 

- BIP 29,442 N i l  29,442 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 
- LTIS loptionsl 220,090 €10.30 220.090 23 Aug 2007 23 Aug 2014 
- LTIS Isharesl 100,040 N i i  100,040 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

54,055 N i l  54,055 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 
- Restricted shares 53.354 N i i  26.6771"1 €12.39 26.677 23 Aug 2005 23 Aug 2007 

Totai 522,762 203,695 26.677 699,780 

A Prozes 
- ESOS 131.062 €13.60 131.062 9 Aug 2003 9 Aug 2010 

59,714 €14.75 59,714 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 201 1 
72,783 €13.94 72,783 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012 
94,086 €9.34 94,086 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013 

1 1  1,699 €10.57 111,699 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
105,412 €1 1.31 105,412 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015 

122.487 €1 1.47 122.487 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 

13,612 N i i  13.612 26 Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 
16.522 N i i  16,522 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008 

17,636 N i l  17,636 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 
. - LTIS loptionsl 20ú.782 €10.57 204,782 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
- LTIS Isharesl 93.083 N i i  93.083 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 

- BIP 14,552 N i l  14,552"' €1 1.70 - 

55,085 Ni1 55,085 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009 

Total 917.307 195.208 14.552 1.097.963 

P Tierney 
- ESOS 282.258 

1 1 1,499 
105.412 

- BIP 13,252 
16.800 

- LTIS loptionsl 204,782 
- LTIS Isharesl 93.083 

€9 34 
€10 57 
€11 31 

11 7,908 €1 1 47 
Ni1 
N i i  

5,426 N i i  
€10 57 

Ni1 
53 025 Ni1 

16,000"" €12.90 266,258 
11 1,699 
105,412 
11 7,908 

13,252 
16,800 
5.426 

204,782 
93,083 
53.025 

21 Feb 2006 
19 Feb 2007 
17 Feb 2008 

21 Feb 2013 
19 Feb 2014 
17 Feb 2015 

13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016 
26 Mar 2007 26 Mar 2007 
14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008 
4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009 

19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014 
19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2007 
19 Aor 2009 i 9  ADr 2009 

Totai 827.286 176.359 16,000 987,645 

lil Retained an interest in 7.41 1 shares 
lid Retained an interest in 7.836 shares 
liiil Retained a n  interest i n  9.708 shares 
li4 Retained an interest in al1 of the shares 
IvI Retained an interest in 9.598 shares 
[vil Retained a n  interest in al1 of the shares 

Awards granted under BIP and ESOS which become exercisabie f rom 2007 onwards are subject to post-grant 
performance conditions. as set out on pages 35 and 36. 

The proportion of the award that may vest in 2007 under LTIS is subject to the annuai growth in adjusted EPS at constant 
currencies during the performance period. The numbers of LTIS options and shares inciuded in the above tabie are caicuiated 
by reference to a target annuai growth rate of 10%. which wouid resuit in 100% of the award vesting. Based on actual adjusted 
EPS growth. approximateiy 102% of the target award wil1 vest, as outlined on page 39. 



The proportion of the award that mayvest in 2009 under LTIS is subject to the annuai growth in adjusted EPC at constant 
currencies and relative total shareholder return ITSRI measured against a group of competitor companies during the 
performance period. The numbers of LTIS shares included in the above tabie are caicuiated by reference to an assumed 
achievernent of 10% per annum averaged compound growth in adjusted EPC at constant currencies and median TSR, which 
would result in 100% of the award vesting. Depending on actuai adjusted EPS growth and TSR, the proportion of the award 
that rnay vest could be iower or  higher, as outlined on pages 36 and 37 .  

The rnarket price of a Reed Eisevier NV ordinary share on the date of the 2006 award under BIP and LTIS was €1 1.78 
and €11.76, respectiveiy. 

The rnarket price of a Reed Eisevier NV ordinary share during the year was in the range €1 1 .O8 to €13.72 and at 
31 December 2006 was €12.92. 

Ic l  Shareholdings in Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
Reed Elsewr  PLC Reed Elsevier NV 

ordinary shares ordinav shares 

1 January 31 December 1 Janualy 31 December 
2006" 2006 2006"' 2006 

G J Avan de Aast 18.600 39.169 35.445 57.941 
M H Arrnour 
G J de Boer-Kruyt 
Sir Crispin Davis 
M W Eliiott 
E Engstrom 
J Hommen 
L Hook 
C J A van Lede 
A Prozes 
D E Reid 
Lord Sharman 
R W H Stornberg 
P Tierney 
S Zeinick 

99:321 i i 2:007 
- - 

528.847 567.1 74 

19,253 29,479 
- - 

- - 

91,444 123.740 
- - 
- - 
- - 

42,440 72.212 
- - 

38,727 47,150 

298,261 324.344 

26,678 73,115 

- - 

- - 

- - 
11,100 - 

73.632 95.954 
- - 
- - 
- - 

28.902 48.090 
- - 

lil On date of appointment i f  subsequent to 1 January 2006. 

Any ordinary shares required to fu l f i i  enti t lements under n i i  cost restricted share awards are provided by the 
Employee Benefit Trust IEBTI f rom market purchases. As a potentiai beneficiary under the EBT in the same way as 
other employees of Reed Eisevier, each executive director is deemed to be interested in ali the shares held by the EBI,: 
which, at 31 December 2006, amounted to 17,167,145 Reed Eísevier PLC ordinary shares and 9,242,214 Reed Elsevier N V  

C<! ord ina ry shares. 

Approved by the board of Reed Eisevier Group pic 
on 14 February 2007 

Roif Stornberg 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier PLC 
on 14 February 2007 

Rolf Stornberg 
Non-executive director 

Approved by the Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV 
on 14 February 2007 

Roif Stornberg 
Member of the Supervisory Board 





Combined income statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Noie frn t m  

Cost of saies 11.9831 í1.8901 
Revenue 1 5,398 5,166 

Gross profit 
Sellino and distribution costs 

3,415 3,276 
[1.1481 11.1201 2 -  ~~ 

~~ 

Adrninistration and other expenses 11.4051 11.3331 
Operating profit before joint ventures 862 823 
Share of results of joint ventures 18 16 
Operating profit 2 880 839 
Finance income 6 21 36 
Finance costs 6 11791 11761 
Net finance costs 11581 (1401 

Profit before tax 721 701 
Taxa t i o n 8 1961 (2371 
Net profit for the year 625 464 

Disposals and other non operating items 7 111 2 

I Attributable to: 
Parent cornpanies' chareholders 623 462 

Net profit for the year 625 464 

Minority interests 2 2 



~ ~~~~~~~ 

Combined cash flow statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Note Em trn 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 10 1.304 1,223 

Interest received 12 11 
Tax paid I1701 11711 
Net cash from operating activities 974 910 

Interest paid 11721 I1 531 

Cash fiows from investing activities 
Acquisitions 
Purchases of property, piant and equipment 
Expenditure on internaiiy deveioped intangible assets 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on disposais of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from other disoosais 

10 I1  631 I31 71 
IS81 1931 

11081 11021 
I91 131 
2 8 

48 36 
Dividends received from joint ventures 16 16 

Net cash used in investing activities 13021 14551 

Cash fiows from financing activities 
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 
Increaselldecreasel in bank ioans, overdrafts and commercial paper 
Issuance of other ioans 
Repayment of other ioans 
Repayment of finance ieases 
Proceeds on issue of ordinarvshares 

13711 13361 
72 14921 

407 544 
13371 1901 

1121 (131 
93 25 

Purchase of treasury shares 12851 1271 
Net cash used in financing activities I4331 13891 

Increase in cash and cash equivaients 10 239 66 

Movement in cash and cash equivaients 
At start of year 296 225 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 239 66 
Exchange translation differences 1161 r.5 
At end of year 519 29'61 

c::, 
i,;, 

I 

P . - '  

c~:, 
.'. .I 

L..:.' 



Combined balance sheet 

2006 2005 
As at 31 December N0te Ern trn 

Non-current assets 
Goodwill 13 2,802 3,030 
Intangible assets 14 2.524 2,979 
Investments in joint ventures 15 73 71 
Other investments 15 50 44 
Property, plant and equipment 16 298 314 
Net pension assets 4 20 - 
Deferred tax assets 18 170 266 

5.937 6.704 
Current assets 
Inventories and pre-publication costs 19 633 630 
Trade and other receivables 20 1.443 1,437 
Cash and cash equivaients 519 296 

2,595 2,363 
Assets held for sale - 60 
Total assets 8,532 9.127 

Current iiabilities 
Trade and other payabies 
Borrowinqs 

21 1.934 1,982 
22 921 900 - 

Taxation 479 556 
3,334 3,438 

Non-current iiabiiities 
Borrowings 
Deferred tax iiabiiities 
Net pension obiiqations 

22 2.085 2.264 
18 850 980 
4 256 405 

- - - .- - - 
Liabilities associated with assets held 
Totai iiabiiities 

- 
Provisions 24 28 44 

3,219 3.693 
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - 1 1  
Totai iiabiiities 6,553 7,142 
Net assets 1,979 1,985 

- - 

- 
Provisions 24 28 44 

3,219 3.693 
for sale - 1 1  

6.553 7.142 
Net assets 1,979 1,985 

Capital and reserves 
Cornbined share capitais 
Cornbined share premiums 
Cornbined shares held in treasury 

26 191 190 
27 1,879 1.805 
28 13771 1931 

Transiation reserve 29 [I361 89 
Other combined reserves 30 409 (211 
Combined shareholders’ eouitv 1,966 1.970 

. I  

Minority interests 13 15 
Totai equity 1,979 1,985 



Combined statement of recognised income and expense 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Note trn tm  

Net profit f o r the  year 625 464 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations I2441 180 

3 3 Fair value movements on availabie for s a k  investments 
54 [lol Fair value movements on cash flow hedoes 

Actuarial gains/llossesl on defined benefit pension schemes 4 139 (371 
. . .  

. .  - .  . .  . .. - 
8 1601 [31 

I lO8l  133 
L .  

Tax recognised directly in equity 
Net [expensellincome recognised directly in equity 

. .? 

Transfer to net profit f rom hedge reserve [net of taxi . .. 151 1191 
Total recognised income and expense for the year 512 578 

Attributable to: 
Parent companies' shareholders 

Total recognised income and expense for the year 

510 576 

51 2 578 

Minority interests 2 2 

Combined shareholders' equity reconciliation 
For the year ended 31 December Note Cm €in 

Totai recognised net income attributabie to the parent companies' sharehoiders 510 576 
Dividends declared 12 13711 í3361 

2006 ZO05 

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 93 25 
Increase in shares heid in treasury : 28 12851 1271 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve _c.. 49 57 

141 295 
l i970  1,675 

Net Idecrease)lincrease in combined sharehoiders' equity 
Cornbined shareholders' equity at start of year 
Combined shareholders' equity at end of year . .  1.966 1,970 

. .. r .  ;. 

_ I  

. .  . .  
. . .  

i 

,, . . -. 

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 93 25 
Increase in shares heid in treasury : 28 12851 1271 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve _c.. 49 57 

141 295 
l i970  1,675 

Net Idecrease)lincrease in combined sharehoiders' equity 
Cornbined shareholders' equity at start of year 
Combined shareholders' equity at end of year . .  1.966 1,970 

. .. r .  ;. 

_ I  

. .  
. . .  

. . .  
I <  



Accounting policiec 

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards IIFRSI as endorsed by the European Union. 

The Reed Elsevier accounting policies under IFRS are 
set out below. 

Basis of preparation 
The equalisation agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Elsevier NV has the effect that their shareholders can 
be regarded as having the interests of a single economic 
group. The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements 
("the combined financiai statements"l represent the 
combined interests of both sets of shareholders and 
encornpass the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc and 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV and their respective subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, together with the parent 
companies. Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV 
["the combined businesses"1. 

These financial statements form part of the statutory 
information to be provided by Reed Eisevier NV. bu i  are 
nol íor  a legal entity and do not include a l i  the iníormation 
required to be disclosed by a company in its financial 
statements under the UK Companies Act 1985 or  the 
Dutch Civil Code. Additional information is given in the 
Annual Reports and Financial Statements of the parent 
cornpanies set out on pages 106 to 143. A list of principal 
businesses is set out on page 157. 

In addition to the figures required to be reported by 
applicable accounting standards. adjusted profit and 
operating cash flow figures have been presented as 
additional performance measures. Adjusted figures are 
shown before the amortisation of acquired intangible 
assets. acquisition integration costs, disposals and other 
non operating items, related tax effects and movements in 
deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected 
to crystallise in the near term. Adjusted operating profits are 
also grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint 
ventures. Adjusted operating cash flow is rneasured after 
dividends from joint ventures and net capital expenditure. but 
before payments in relation to acquisition integration costs. 

Foreign exchange translation 
The combined financial statements are presented in 
pounds sterling. Additional information providing a 
translation into euros of the primary Reed Elsevier 
combined financiai statements and selected notes is 
presented on pages 94 to 103. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each 
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rate prevaiiing on the balance sheet date. Exchange 
differences arising are recorded in the income statement 
other than where hedge accounting applies [see Financial 
Instrumentsl. 

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at 
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income 
and expense items of foreign operations are transiated at the 
average exchange rate for the period. Exchange differences 
arising are classified as equity and transferred to the 
translation reserve. When foreign operations are disposed of, 
the related curnulative translation differences are recognised 
within the income statement in the period. 

Reed Eisevier uses derivative financial instruments. primarily 
forward contracts, to hedge its exposure to certain foreign 
exchange risks. Details of Reed Elsevier's accounting policies 
in respect of derivative financial instruments are set 
out below. 

Revenue 
Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales Iess 
anticipated returns on transactions completed by 
performance, excluding custorner sales taxes and 
s a k  between t h e  combined businesses. 

Revenues are recognised for the various categories of 
turnover as follows: subscriptions - on periodic despatch 
of subscribed product or  rateabiy over the period of the 
subscription where performance is not measurable by 
despatch: circulation ~ on despatch: advertising - on 
publication or  over the period of oniine display: exhibitions - 
on occurrence of the exhibition; educationai testing contracts 
-over the term of the contract on percentage completed 
against contract milestones. 

Where sales consist of two or more independent components, 
revenue is recognised on each component, as it is completed' 
by performance, based on attribution of relative value. 

Employee benefits 
The expense of deíined benefit pension schernes and other 
post-retirement employee benefits is determined using the 
projected unit credit method and charged in the incorne 
statement as an operating expense, based on actuarial 
assumptions refiecting market conditions at the beginning of 
the financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
in ful i  in the statement of recognised income and expense 
in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are 
recognised irnrnediately to the extent that benefits have 
vested, or, if no l  vested. on a straight iine basis over the 
period unti l  the benefits vest. 

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit 
schernes are included in the balance sheet at the present 
value of scheme liabilities. less the fair value of scheme 
assets. Where schernes are in surplus, i.e. assets exceed 
iiabilities, the net pension assets are separately included in 
the balance sheet. Any net pension asset is iimited to the 
extent that the asset is recoverabie through reductions in 
future contributions. 

The expense of defined contribuiion pension schernes 
and other employee benefits is charged in the income 
statement as incurred. 



Share based remuneration 
The fair vaiue of share based remuneration is deterrnined at 
the date of yrant and recognised as an expense in the 
incorne statement on a straight line basis over the vesting 
period. taking account of the estirnated nurnber of shares 
that are expected to vest. Market based performance criteria 
are taken int0 account when determining the fair value at the 
date of grant. Non-rnarket based performance criteria are 
taken int0 account when estirnating the nurnber of shares 
expected to vest. The fair vaiue of share based remuneration 
is determined by use of a binomiai or Monte Cario simuiation 
model as appropriate. Ai1 Reed Eisevier's share based 
remuneration is equity settled. 

Borrowing costs 
AL\ borrowing costs are expensed as incurred uniess hedge 
accounting applies lsee Financial Instrumentsl. 

Taxation 
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax  payabie on 
the current year taxable profits, adjustments in respect of 
prior year taxable profits. and the movements on deferred tax 
that are recognised in the income statement. 

The tax payabie on current year taxabie profits is caiculated 
using the appiicable tax rates that have been enacted, 
or  substantively enacted, by the baiance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is the tax arising on differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and iiabilities in the financiai 
statements and their correspondiny tax bases used in the 
cornputation of taxabie profit, and is accounted tor using the 
balance sheet liability rnethod. Deferred tax iiabilities are 
generaliy recoynised for aii taxabie temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recoynised to the extent that, 
based on current forecasts, i t  is probable that taxable profits 
wi i l  be availabie against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised on 
temporary differences arising in respect of goodwill that is 
not deductibie for tax purposes. 

Deferred taxis caicuiated using tax  rates that are expected 
to appiy in the period when the iiabiiity is expected to be 
settied or the asset realised. Fuii provision is made for 
deferred tax which wouid become payabie on the distribution 
o f  retained profits from foreign subsidiaries. associates or 
joint ventures. 

Movernents in deferred tax are charged or  credited in the 
incorne statement, except when they reiate to i tems 
charged or  credited directiy to equity, in which case the 
deferred tax is aiso recoynised in equity. Deferred tax 
credits in respect of share based remuneration are 
recognised in equity to the extent that expected tax 
deductions exceed the reiated expense. 

Goodwill 
On the acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase 
consideration is ailocated between the net tangible and 
intangibie assets on a fairvaiue basis, with any excess 

purchase consideration representing goodwill. Goodwill 
arising on acquisitions also inciudes arnounts corresponding 
to deferred tax iiabilities recoynised in respect of acquired 
intangible assets. 

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed tor 
impairment at ieast annuaily. Any irnpairment is 
recoynised irnmediateiy in the incorne statement and not 
subsequentiy reversed. 

On disposal of a subsidiary or  business, the attributabie 
arnount of goodwill is inciuded in the determination of the 
profit or  ioss on disposal. 

Intangible assets 
Intangibie assets acquired as part of a business cornbination 
are stated in the baiance sheet a i  their fair vaiue as at the 
date of acquisition, iess accumuiated amortisation. Internaliy 
generated intangibie assets are stated in the balance sheet 
at the directiy attributabie cost of creation of the asset, iess 
accumuiated arnortisation. 

Intangible assets acquired as part of business cornbinations 
cornprise: rnarket reiated assets 1e.g. trade rnarks. imprints, 
brandsl; custorner reiated assets 1e.g. subscription bases, 
custorner iists, customer reiationshipsl; editoriai content; 
software and systems [e.g. appiication infrastructure, 
product deiivery platforms, in-process research and 
deveiopmentl; contract based assets [e.g. pubiishing rights, 
exhibition rights, supply contractsl; and other intangibie 
assets. Internaiiy generated intangible assets typicaily 
cornprise software and systems development where an 
identifiabie asset is created that is probabie to generate 
future economic benefits. 

Intangibie assets, other than brands and imprints 
determined to have indefinite iives, are amortised 
systernaticaliy over their estirnated usefui h e s .  The ,,_I 
estimated usefui h e s  of intangible assets with finite iives ,,,ii 
are as foiiows: rnarket and custorner reiated assets - 3 to , 
40 years; content, software and other acquired intangible 
assets ~ 3 to 20 years; and internally deveioped intanyibiep. 
assets - 3 to 10 years. Brands and imprints deterrnined to t 

have indefinite iives are not amortised and are subject to i,.: 

<i, 

_. > - ,  irnpairment review a t  least annuaiiy. 

Properiy. plant and equipment 

. .. 

... , 

Property, plant and equiprnent are stated in the baiance 
sheet at tost  less accumulated depreciation. No depreciation 
is provided on freehoid iand. Freehoid buiidings and long 
ieases are depreciated over their estimated usefui h e s  up 
to a maximum of 50 years. Short ieases are written off over 
the duration of the lease. Depreciation is provided on other 
assets on a straight iine basis over their estimated usefui 
h e s  as follows: leasehold irnprovements - shorter of iife 
of Lease and 10 years; plant - 3 to 20 years; office furniture, 
fixtures and fittings - 5 to 10 years; computer systerns. 
comrnunication networks and equipment - 3 to 7 years. 



Accounting policies 

Investments 
Investrnents, other than investments in joint ventures and 
associates, are stated in the baiance sheet at fairvalue. 
Investments held as part of the venture capitai portfolio 
are classified as held for trading. with changes in fair 
value reported through the income statement. A i i  other 
investments are ciassified as avaiiabie for saie with 
changes in fa i rvahe recognised directly in equity unti l  the 
investment is disposed of or  is determined to be impaired. at 
which t ime the curnulative gain or  loss previously recognised 
in equity is brought into the net profit ar ioss for the period. 
A i i  items recognised in the income statement reiating to 
investments. other than investrnents in joint ventures and 
associates, are reported as non operating items. 

Avaiiabie for sale investments and venture capitai 
investrnents held for trading represent investments in iisted 
and unlisted securities. The fair value of iisted securities is 
determined based on quoted market prices, and of uniisted 
securities on management's estimate of fair value based on 
standard vaiuation techniques. 

Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted 
for under the equity method and stated in the baiance sheet 
at cos1 as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in Reed 
Eisevier's share of net assets, iess any irnpairment in vaiue. 

Impairrnent 
At each baiance sheet date, reviews are carried out of the 
carrying arnounts of tangible and intangible assets and 
goodwill to determine whether there is any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairrnent loss. I f  any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the.extent, if any, of the 
impairment loss. Where the asset dors not generate cash 
fiows that are independent f rom other assets. estimates are 
made based on the cash fiows of the cash generating unit to 
which the asset beiongs. Intangibie assets with an indefinite 
usefui iife are tested for irnpairment at Least annuaily 
adWhenever  there is any indication that the asset may 
be irnpaired. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset o r  cash generating unit 
is estimated to be Iess than its net carrying amount. the net 
carrying amount of the asset or  cash generating unit is 
reduced to its recoverabie amount. Impairrnent Losses 
are recognised immediateiy in the income statement. 

Inventories and pre-pubiication costs 
Inventories and pre-pubiication costs are stated at  the 
iower of cost, inciuding appropriate attributabie overhead, 
and estimated net realisabie vaiue. Pre-publication costs, 
representing costs incurred in the origination of content 
prior to publication, are expensed systematicaily refiecting 
the expected saies profile over the estimated econornic 
lives of the related products. generally up to five years. 

Leases 
Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations 
similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified 
as assets held under finance ieases and capitalised within 

i 

, 

property, plant and equipment and the corresponding iiability 
to pay rentais is shown net of interest in the baiance sheet as 
obligations under finance leases. The capitalised vaiue of the 
assets is depreciated on a straight iine basis over the shorter 
of the periods of the leases or  the usefui iives of the assets 
concerned. The interest element of the lease payrnents is 
allocaled so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge. 

Operating lease rentais are charged to the income statement 
on a straight line basis over the period of the leases. Rental 
income from operating ieases is recognised on a straight iine 
basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

Cash and cash equivaients 
Cash and cash equivaients comprise cash baiances, 
cai i  deposits and other short term highiy liquid investments 
and are held in the balance sheet at fair vaiue. 

Assets held for saie 
Assets of businesses that are held for sale, rather than for 
continuing use by Reed Eisevier, are ciassified as assets held 
for sale. Such assets are carried at the iower of amortised 
cost and fair vaiue iess costs to seii. Similarly, iiabiiities of 
businesses held for saie are aiso separateiy ciassified on the 
baiance sheet. 

Financiai instruments 
Financiai instruments comprise investrnents [other than 
investrnents in joint ventures or associatesl, trade 
receivabies. cash and cash equivalents, payabies and 
accruais. provisions, borrowings and derivative financiai 
instrurnents. 

Investrnents lother than investments in joint ventures and 
associaiesl are ciassified as either held for trading or 
availabie for sale, as described above. 

Trade receivabies are carried in the baiance sheet at invoiced 
vaiue less ailowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts. 
Irrecoverabie amounts are estimated based on the ageing of 
trade receivabies, experience and circurnstance. 

Borrowings lother than fixed rate borrowings in designated 
hedging reiationships and for which the carrying vaiue is 
adjusted to refiect changes in the fair value of the hedged 
riskl. payabies. accruais and provisions are recorded at 
nominai value. 

Derivative financiai instrurnents are used to hedge interest 
rate and foreign exchange risks. Changes in the fair value o f  
derivative financiai instrurnents that are designated and 
effective as hedqes of future cash fiows are recognised h e t  
of tax) directly in equity in the hedge reserve. If a hedged firm 
cornmitment or  forecasted transaction resuits in the 
recognition of a non financial asset or  liability, then. at the 
t ime that the asset or iiabiiity is recognised, the associated 
gains or Losses on the derivative that had previousiy been 
recognised in equity are inciuded in the initia1 measurement 
of the asset or  iiability. For hedges that do not result in the 
recognition of an asset or a liability, arnounts deierred in 
equity are recognised in the income statement in the Same 



period in which the hedged i tem affects net profit or  10~s. 
Any ineffective portion of hedges is recognised immediateiy 
in the income statement. 

Oerivative financial instruments that are not designated as 
hedging instruments are ciassified as heid for trading and 
.recorded in the baiance sheet at fair value, with changes in 
fair value recognised in the income statement. 

Where an effective hedge is in piace against changes in the 
fair value of fixed rate borrowings. the hedged borrowings 
are adjusted for changes in fair value attrihutable t o  the risk 
being hedged with a corresponding income or expense 
inciuded in the income statement. The offsetting gains o r  
losses from rerneasuriny the fair value of the related 
derivatives are aiso recognised in the income statement, 

The fair vaiues of interest rate swaps, interest rate options, 
forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange 
contracts represent the repiacement costs calcuiated using 
market rates of interest and exchange. The fair value of long 
term horrowings is caicuiated by discounting expected future 
cash fiows at market rates. 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging 
instrument expires or is soid, terminated or  exercised, or  no 
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any 
cumulative gain or  [OSS on the hedging instrument 
recognised in equity is either retained in equity unl i i  the f i rm 
cornrnitrnent or  forecasted transaction occurs, or, where a 
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, is 
immediateiy credited or  expensed in the incorne statement, 

On adoption of lAS39 - Financial Instruments, adjustments 
were made either to the carrying value of hedged items 
or  to equity, as appropriate, to refiect the differences 
between the previous UK GAAP carrying vaiues of financiai 
instrurnents and their carrying vaiues required to be 
reported under lAS39. Any transition gains or  iosses on 
financiai instrurnents that quaiified for hedge accounting 
were refiected in equity and remain in equity unti i  either 
the forecasted transaction occurs o r  is no ionger expected 
to occur. 

Shares heid in treasury 
Shares of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV that are 
repurchased by the respective parent companies and nat 
cancelied are classified as shares heid in treasury. The 
consideration paid, including directly attributabie costs. is 
recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares of the parent 
companies that are purchased hy the Reed Eisevier Group plc 
Employee Benefit Trust are als0 classified as shares held in 
treasury, with the cost recognised as a deduction from equiiy. 

Criticai judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The most significant accounting policies in determining the 
financiai condition and resuits of the Reed Eisevier combined 
husinesses. and those requiring the most suhjective or 
complex judgment, reiate to the vaiuation of goodwill and 
intangible assets, share hased remuneration, pensions and 
taxation. The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangibie 

assets are reviewed at ieast twice a year. the key areas of 
judgment being in relation to the forecast Long term growth 
rates and the appropriate discount rates to be applied to 
forecast cash fiows. The charge for share based remuneration 
is determined based on the fairvalue of awards at the date of 
grant by use of binomial or Monte Carlo sirnulation modeis as 
appropriate, which require judgments to be made regarding 
share price voiatiiity, dividend yield, risk tree rates of return and 
expected option lives. Key estimates in accounting tor defined 
benefit pension schemes are determined in conjunction with 
independent actuaries and inciude the iife expectancy of 
memhers. expected salary and pension increases, infiation, the 
return on scheme assets and the rate at which future pension 
payrnents are discounted. Reed Eisevier's poiicy is to make 
provision for tax uncertainties where it is considered prohable 
that tax payments may arise. 

Standards, amendments and interpretations 
not yet effective 
New accounting standards and arnendments and their 
expected impact on the future accounting policies and 
reporting of Reed Eisevier are set out below. 

IFRS7 - Financial Instruments: Oisclosures (effective for  
financiai years beginning on or after 1 January 20071. IFRS7 
requires discussion of the significance of financiai 
instruments for an entity's financial position and 
performance and introduces.new qualitative and quantitative 
disciosures about exposure to risks arising from their use. 
Adoption of this standard is nat expected to change 
significantly the disclosures reiated to financial instruments. 

Arnendment to IAS1 - Presentation of Financiai Statements - 
Capitai Disclosures leffective tor financiai years beginning on 
or  after 1 January 20071. The amendment introduces 
disciosures about an entity's capitai and how it manages 
capitai. Adoption of this amendment is not expected to 
change significantly the presentation of the cornbined 
financiai statements. ~...,' : 

IFRS8 - Operating Segments leffective for financiai years 1 

beginning on or  after 1 January 20091. iFRS8 sets out 'E? 
requirements for disclosure of information about an ent i ty3 
operating segments, its products and services, the 
geographicai areas in which it operates, and its major '2 
customers. lFRS8 repiaces IAS14 - Segment Reporting. <;? 
Adoption of this standard is not expected to change 
significantly the disclosure of inforrnation in respect of Ree-d 
Eisevier's operating segments. 

Additionaliy, a numher of interpretations have been issued 
which are not expected to have any significant impact on 
Reed Elsevier's accounting poiicies and reporting. 

, .:1 

CT', 



Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

1 Segment analysis 
Reed Eisevier is a pubiisher and information provider organised as four business segments: Eisevier, comprising scientific, 
technicai and medicai pubiishing businesses; LexisNexis, providing iegai, tax, regulatory risk management, information 
anaiytics and business information soiutions to professional, business and government customers: Harcourt Education, 
pubiishing schooi textbooks and reiated instructional and assessment materiais; and Reed Business, providing information 
and marketing soiutions to business professionals. Internai reporting is consistent with this organisationai structure. 

Adjusted operating profit figures are presented as an additionai performance measure. They are stated before the 
amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition integration costs and the equity share of taxes in joint ventures 
Adjusted operating profit is reconciied to operating profit in note 9. 

Adjusted 
R e W l W  Operating pmfit operating prolit 

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
t m  tm Em t m  tm frn 

1,521 1,436 395 396 465 449 
1.570 1.466 264 218 380 338 

Business segment 
Elsevier 
LexisNexis 
Harcourt Education 889 901 43 87 129 161 
Reed Business 1.418 1,363 183 158 241 214 

5,166 885 859 1,215 1.162 
1391 1321 1391 1321 

Sub-totai 5,398 
Corporale costs - - 
Unailocated net pension credit - - 34 12 34 12 

Total 5.398 5.166 880 839 ' '  1.210 1.142 
Geographical origin 
North America 2,979 2,888 364 364 602 595 
United Kingdom 898 870 166 158 199 186 
The Netheriands 503 500 173 161 176 i 66 
Rest of Europe 685 601 120 106 172 141 
Rest of worid 333 307 57 50 61 54 
Total 5.398 5,166 880 839 1,210 1,142 

Revenue is analysed before the E108rn 12005: E91ml share of joint ventures' revenue. of which E21m 12005: E20rnl reiates to 
LexisNexis, principaiiy to Giuffrè, and E87m 12005: E71ml reiates to Reed Business, principaily to exhibition joint ventures. 

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of E18m 12005: El6ml inciuded in operating profit comprises E3m 12005: E3ml 
reiating to LexisNexis and E15m 12005: E13rnl relating to Reed Business. The unallocated net pension credit of E34m 12005: 
E12mi cornprises the expected return on pension scherne assets of E178m 12005: E149ml less interest on pension scheme 
iiabiiities of E144m 12005: E137rnl. 

2006 2005 
Analysis of revenue by geographical market Em t m  

North America 3.082 2,974 
United Kinqdom 592 568 
The NetheFiands 
Rest of Europe 
Rest of wor id 

202 202 
880 804 
642 618 

Total 5.398 5,166 



1 Segment analycis continued 
Expenditure on acquired Capilal Arnorlisation of acquired Deprecialion and 

gwdwill and intangible asets expenditure intangible assets other arnonisation 

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Ern trn tm t m  Cm Em Ern Ern 

Business segment 
Eisevier 
LexisNexis 
Harcourt Education 

53 220 51 60 57 49 47 38 
79 58 95 95 1 o4 1 o2 70 65 

6 7 29 22 86 73 15 14 
Reed Business 51 46 30 27 50 52 27 25 
Sub-totai 189 33 1 205 204 297 276 159 142 
Corporate - 2 3 - 3 2 
Totai 189 331 207 207 297 276 162 1 44 
Geographical iocation 
North America 1 o4 96 135 131 
United Kingdom 54 16 36 35 
The Netheriands - 9 18 18 
Rest of Europe 16 200 10 13 
Rest of worid 15 10 8 10 
Totai 189 33 1 207 207 

Capitai expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and internaily developed intangible assets. Other 
than the depreciation and amortisation above. non cash items of E49m (2005: E57ml reiate to the recognition of share based 
rernuneration and comprise ElOrn 12005: E l l m l  in Eisevier, E12m 12005: Elórnl in LexisNexis. E5m 12005: E9ml in Harcourt 
Education, E14m 12005: El4ml in Reed Business and E8m 12005: E7ml in Corporate. 

- - 

Total assets Total liabilities Net assels/liiabiiiiiesl 

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Cm Em Ern f m  Cm Crn 

Business segment 
Eisevier 2,352 2,545 726 759 1,626 1,786 
LexisNexis 2.593 2,881 , 383 386 2,210 2,495 
Harcourt Education 1,482 1.ból 172 181 1,310 1.486 
Reed Business 1,146 1,225 533 544 613 681 
Sub-totai 7.573 8,318 1,814 1,870 5,759 6,448 

Cashlborrowings 
Net pension assets/obligations 
Other assets and iiabiiities 

Taxa t ion 170 266 1,329 1,536 11,1591 11.2701 
519 296 3,006 3.164 12.4871 12.8681 

20 - 256 405 I2361 (4051 
250 247 148 1 61 102 80 

Total 8,532 9,127 6,553 7,142 1,979 1.90.5 
Geographicai iocation 
North America 
United Kingdom 
The Netheriands 

<i:, 

5,606 6,433 3,313 4,075 2,293 2.358 
1,034 899 1,123 61 1 1891 288 

573 513 463 651 110 I1381 . .  

Rest of Europe 1,097 1.089 1,511 1,647 14141 15581 
Rest of worid 222 193 143 158 79 35 
Total 8,532 9,127 6,553 7.142 1,979 1,985 

Investments in joint ventures of E73m 12005: E71ml included in segment assets above cornprise E27m (2005: E28ml relating 
to LexisNexis and E46m (2005: E43ml relating to Reed Business. 



Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

2 Operating profit 
Operating profit is stated after charging/lcreditingl the following: 

2006 2005 
N0ie fm Ern  

Staff costs 
Wages and salaries 1,383 1.318 
Social security costs 146 136 
Pensions 4 80 1 o0 
Share based rernuneration 5 49 57 
Total staff costs 1.658 1.61 1 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Arnortisation of acquired intangible assets 14 297 276 
Arnortisation of internally developed intangibie assets 14 71 57 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 91 87 
Total depreciation and amortisation 459 420 
Auditors' remuneration 
For audit services 6.7 3.2 
For non audit services 1.2 1.6 
Total auditors' rernuneration 5.9 4.8 
Other expenses and incorne 
Pre-publication costs, inventory expenses and other cost of sales 1.983 1,890 
Operating lease rentals expense 120 115 
Operating lease rentals incorne I171 1141 

Depreciation and amortisation charges are included within adrninistration and other expenses 

Auditors' rernuneration for audit services comprises E0.4m 12005: E0.4rnl payable to the auditors of the parent companies and 
E4.3rn 12005: E2.8ml payable to ihe auditors of the parent cornpanies and their associates for the audit of the financial 
statements of the operating and financing businesses, including for 2006 the review and testing of internal controls over 
financial reporting in accordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Auditors' rernuneration for non audit sewices cornprises: 
€0.6m 12005: fO.7ml for taxation services, E0.3rn 12005: E0.4rnl for due diligence and other transaction related sewices, ni l  
12005: EO.lrnl for the audit of associated pension schemes and E0.3rn 12005: E0.4ml for other non audit services. 

, 
I 

3 Personnel 
Ai 31 December Average dwing the year 

Number of people employed 2006 7005 2006 2005 

Business segment 
Elsevier 7.200 7,300 7,300 7.100 
LexisNexis 13,800 13,400 13,700 13.200 
Harcourt Education 5,300 5,400 5,300 5,400 
Reed Business 10,300 10,200 10,300 10,200 
Sub-total 36,600 36,300 36,600 35.900 
Corporatelshared functions 200 200 200 200 
Total 36,800 36.500 36,800 36,100 
Geographical location 
North Arnerica 19.800 20,200 20,000 20,100 
United Kingdom 6,000 5,800 5,900 5.800 
The Netherlands 2,500 2,500 2,500 2.500 
Rest of Eumoe 4.700 4.600 4.600 4,300 
Rest of world 3.800 3,400 3.800 3,400 
Total 36.800 36.500 36.800 36.100 



4 Pension schemes 
A number of pension schernes are operated around the world. The major schernes are of the defined benefit type with assets 
held in separate trustee administered funds. The iargest schernes, which cover the rnajority of employees, are in the UK, the 
US and the Netheriands. Under these plans, employees are entitied to retirement benefits dependent on the nurnbei  of years 
service provided. 

The principai assumptions, for the purpose of  vaiuation under IAS19 - Ernpioyee Benefits, are deterrnined for each scherne in 
conjunction with the respective schemes' independent actuaries and are presented beiow as the weighted average of the 
various defined benefit pension schernes: 

2006 2005 

Discount rate 5.3% 4.9% 
Expected rate of return on scherne assets 7.0% 7.0% 
Expected rate of saiary increases 4.2% 4.0% 
Inflation 2.9% 2.7% 
Future pension increases 2.9% 2.8% 

The expected rates of return on individuai categories of scherne assets are determined by reference to relevant rnarket 
indices. The overall expected rate of return on scherne assets is based on the weighted average of each asset category. 

Mortaiity assurnptions used in assessing defined benefit obligations make aiiowance for future irnprovements in iongevity and 
have been determined by reference to appiicabie rnortaiity statistics and the actuaries' expectations for each scherne. The 
average iife expectancies assurned in the vaiuation of the defined benefit obligations are set out beiow. 

2006 2005 

Male Fernale Male Female 
Average Life expectancy [at 31 December1 iparsl lyearrl lyearsl lyearsl 

Mernber currentlv aaed 60 86 87 83 86 
Mernber currentbaáed 45 86 87 83 86 

The increase in average iife expectancies since 2005 foiiows the triennial actuariai valuation of the UK pension scherne 

The defined benefit pension expense recognised within operating expenses in the income statement cornprises: 

2006 2005 
Em Em 

Service cost linciuding curtaiiment credits of E l  1 m 12005: ni l l l  94 91 
Interest on pension scherne liabilities 144 1837 

7.9 
*:. 

Expected return on scherne assets 11781 I1491 

Net defined benefit pension expense 60 1 . .  

A totai of €20m 12005: €21 rn] was recognised as an expense in reiation to defined contribution pension schernes. I 

t -! 
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Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

4 Pension cchemes continued 

The arnount recognised in the baiance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension schernes at the start and end of the year 
and the rnovements during the year were as foilows: 

2006 2005 

Defined Fair value Net Oefined Fair value Net 
bene fit of scheme pension benefit of scheme pension 

obligations asets  obligations obligations 866ets obligations 
Ern Em Em Em t m  Em 

At start of year 12.9801 2,575 14051 12,5251 2,204 13211 
Service cost linciuding curtaiirnent credits 

of E l  l r n  12005: nilll 1941 - 1941 1911 - 1911 
Interest on pension scherne iiabiiities I1441 - 11441 11371 - I1 371 
Expected return on scherne assets - 178 178 - 149 149 

Actuariai gain/liossl 40 99 139 12671 230 1371 
Contributions by ernpioyer - 61 61 - 47 47 

13 - Contributions by employees I131 13 - 1131 
Benefits paid 106 11021 4 94 1941 - 
Exchange translation difierences 77 1521 25 1411 26 11 51 
At end of year 13,0081 2,772 12361 12.9801 2,575 14051 

The net pension obligations of E236rn at 31 December 2006 cornprise schernes in surplus with net pension assets of E20m 
12005: nill and schernes in deficit with net pension obiigations of f256m 12005: E405rnl. 

As at 31 December 2006 the defined benefit obiigations cornprise E2.921rn 12005: f2.890rnl in relation to funded schernes 
and E87rn 12005: E9OrnI in relation to unfunded schernes. The weighted average duration of defined benefit scherne iiabilities 
is 19 years 12005: 19 yearsl. Deferred tax assets of €92m 12005: E133rnl and deferred tax iiabiiities of f6rn 12005: niil are 
recognised in respect of the net pension obiigations. 

The fair vaiue of scheme assets heid as equities, bonds and other assets, and their expected rates of return, is shown beiow: 

2006 2005 

Expected rate Fair value Proportion Expected rate Fair v a l m  Proportion 
Of return o" of scheme of total a i  return o" of scherne of totai 

scheme aS*et* scherne scherne a55eti scherne 
assets f m  asset5 asset5 t m  assets 

Equities 8.0% 1,857 67% 8.1% 1,708 6 6 % 
Bonds 4.4% 777 28% 4.3% 757 3 O % 
Other 5.0% 138 5% 5.7% 110 4% 

Totai 7.0% 2,772 100% 7 0% 2,575 100% 

The actuai return on scherne assets for the year ended 31 December 2006 was f277rn 12005: f379ml  

A surnrnary of pension baiances for the three years ended 31 December 2006 is set out beiow. 

2006 2005 2004 
Cm trn Ern 

Fair value of scherne assets 2.172 2.575 2.204 
Defined benefit obiigations 13,0081 12,9801 12.5251 
Net pension obiigations 12361 14051 13211 



4 Pension schemec continued 

Gains and Iosses arising on the revaluation of pension scheme assets and liabilities that have been recognised in the 
statement of recognised incorne and expense are set out below: 

2006 2005 ZOOL 
tm ínl trn 

Gains and iosses arising during the year: 
Experience Iosses on scheme liabilities 1301 1251 1181 
Experience gains on scheme assets 99 230 66 
Actuarial gains/llossesl arising on the present value of scherne liabilities due to 

changes in: 
- discount rates 198 12171 (1131 
- inflation 1771 ~ - 

- life expectancy and other actuarial assurnptions I511 1251 191 
139 I371 1741 

Net curnulative losses at start of year 11111 1741 
Net curnulative gains/llossesl at end of year 28 11111 1741 

- 

1 The combined businesses expect to contribute approximately E66m to their defined benefit pension schemes in 2007. 

Sensitivity analysis 
Vaiuation o f  Reed Elsevier's pension scherne liabilities involves judgments about uncertain events, including the life 
expectancy of the members. salary and pension increases, infiation and the rate at which the future pension payments are 
discounted. Estirnates are w e d  for each of these factors, deterrnined in conjunction with independent actuaries. Difierences 
arising f rom actuai experience or  future changes in assurnptions may materially affect future pension charges. In particuiar. 
changes in assurnptions for discount rates. inflation and life expectancies would have the following approximate effects on the 
annuai net pension expense and the defined benefit pension obiigations: 

frn 

lncreaseldecrease of 0.25% in discount rate: 
Decreasehcrease in annual net pension expense 
Oecreasehcrease in defined benefit pension obligations 

Increaseldecrease in annual net pension expense 

Increase/decrease of 0.25% in the expected inflation rate: 
Increase/decrease in annuai net pension expense 
lncrease/decrease in defined benefit pension obiigations 

7 
140 

7 
90 

'...I4 
1 oe 

1 Increaseldecrease of one year in assumed I/fe expectancy: 

Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 
t,.: 

Additionally, the annual net pension expense inciudes an expected return on scheme assets. A 5% increase/decrease in th;;'' 
rnarket value of equity investments held by the defined benefit pension schemes would, absent any change in their expected,, 

,-:., ,... 
c::> 
'.. ., 

iong term rate of return, increase/decrease the amount of the expected return on scheme assets by E7m and wouid 
decreasehcrease the arnount of the net pension deficit by f90rn. 



Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

5 Share baced remuneration ,. 

Reed Elsevier provides a nurnber o f  share based rernuneration schemes to directors and employees. The principal share 
based rernuneration schernes are the Executive Share Option Schemes IESOSI. the Long Term Incentive Scherne ILTISI, 
the Retention Share Pian IRSPI and the Bonus Investment Pian IBIPI. Share options granted under ESOS and LTIS are 
exercisabie after three years and up to ten years frorn the date of grant at a price equivalent to the market value of the 
respective shares at the date of grant. Conditionai shares granted under ESOS, LTIS, RSP and BIP are exercisabie after 
three years i o r  n i i  consideration if conditions are met. Other awards principaliy reiate to ai l  employee share saving schernes 
in the UK and the Netherlands. 

Share based rernuneration awards are, other than in exceptionai circurnstances, subject to the condition that the employee 
rernains in employment at the t ime of exercise. Share options and conditionai shares granted under LTIS, RSP and BIP are 
subject to the achievement of growth targets o i  Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV adjusted earnings per share 
rneasured at constant exchange rates. LTIS grants made in 2006 are variabie subject to the achievernent of an additionai total 
shareholder return periormance target. The nurnbers of share options and conditional shares included in the tables beiow 
are calcuiated on the basis that 100% of the awards wi l i  vest. Further details of performance conditions are given in the 
Directors' Rernuneration Report on pages 34 to 51 

The estirnated fair value of grants made in the two years ended 31 December 2006 are set ou t  beiow. The fair vaiues of grants 
are recoanised in the incorne statement over the vesting period, typicaliy 3 years. 

Total fair 
Y d W  In respect of Reed Elsevier PLC ordinav shares In respect of Reed Elsevier NV ordinav shares 

Weighted Weighled 
average fair average fair 

Numberof "dW Number of Y d W  
shares per award Fairvalue shares per award Fairvalue 

2006 grants '000 E Ern 'O00 E Em Em 

Share options 
- ESOS 4,731 1 .o0 4 3,169 1.27 4 8 

- 1.30 - - 2 - LTIS 3 1 .o0 
- Other 1,168 1.48 2 243 1.48 - 2 

Totai share options 5,902 1 .O9 6 3.414 1.29 4 10 

Conditionai shares 
- ESOS 1,202 4.92 6 806 7.15 6 12 
- LTIS 2,003 5.43 11 1.318 8.14 11 22 
- BIP 683 5.07 4 280 7.29 2 6 

Totai conditionai shares 3.888 5.21 21 2,404 7.71 19 40 
Tntai 27 23 50 

Tolai fair 
W l U C  In respect o1 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaiy shares In respect of Reed Elsevier NV odinaiy shares 

Weighted Weighted 
average lalr average falr 

Numberaf "abc Numberof Y d W  
shares per award Fairvalue shares per award Fair vdue 

2005 grants 'O00 E t m  O00 E t m  trn 

~ ESOS 10.346 1 .O3 11 7.049 1.30 9 20 
- LTIS 234 0.99 - 159 1 .2a - - 
- Other 940 1.54 1 263 1.38 1 2 

Total share options 11,520 1.05 72 7.471 1.31 10 22 

107 4.63 - 74 6.68 - - - LTIS 
- RSP 152 4.69 1 103 6.97 1 2 
- BIP 692 4.95 4 229 7.18 2 6 

Total 17 13 30 

Share options 

Conditionai shares 

Total conditional shares 951 4.87 5 406 7.04 3 a 



5 Share based remuneration continued 

The rnain assurnptions used to determine the fair vaiues, which have been estabiished with advice from and data provided 
by independent actuaries, are set out beiow. 

In respect of Reed Elsevier PLC In respect of Reed Elsevier NV 

Assumptions for grants made during the year 2006 2005 2006 2005 

ardinary shares ordinaw shares 

Weighted average share price at date of grant 
- ESOS €5.32 €5.33 €1 1.51 €11.31 
- LTIS €5.36 €5.12 €1 1.81 €1 1 .o1 
- RSP €4.94 €10.71 
- BiP €5.48 €5.37 €1 1.74 € 1  1.35 
- Other €5.30 €5.30 €12.05 €11.19 

Expected share price voiatiiity 22% 22% 22% 22% 
Expected option life 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 
Expected dividend yieid 2.6% 2.6% 3.1% 2.6% 
Risk iree interest rate 4.6% 5.1% 3.5% 3.4% 
Expected lapse rate 3-5% 3.5% 3-5% 3.5% 

Expected share price voiatiiity has b.een estirnated based on relevant historie data in respect of the Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Eisevier NV ordinary share prices. Expected share option iife has been estimated based on historica1 exercise patterns 
in respect of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV share options. 

The share based rernuneration awards outstanding as at 31 December 2006, in respect of both Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed 
Eisevier NV ordinary shares, are set out beiow. 

ES05 LTIS Olher Total 

Weighted Weighted Weighled Weighted 
average average average average 

Number of exercise Number of exercise Number of exercise Number of exerciae 
shares. price shares price shares price shares price 

Share options: Reed Elsevier PLC 'O00 Ipeocel m a  Ipencel m a  Ipeocel m a  Ipeocel 

Outstanding at 1 January 2005 54.641 508 5,138 487 3,876 408 63,655 500 
Granted 10.346 533 234 516 940 424 11.520 524 
Exercised 13.0271 441 - - 16021 348 13.6291 426 
Forfeited 14,1461 532 1911 487 16781 442 14,9151 519 
Expired 1741 443 - - I181 423 I921 439 

Outstanding a t  1 January 2006 57.740 514 5,281 488 3,518 416 66.539 547 
Exercised 19,6911 461 - - I7921 411 110,4831 451 

51 3 

Exercisabie at 31 December 2005 22,471 552 65 487 21 1 5Oó 22,747 552 
! Exercisabie at 31 December 2006 22,121 537 105 487 91 425 22,317 537 

Granted 4,731 532 3 535 1,168 424 5,902 510 

Fo rfe i t ed 14,088l 543 I2671 487 I2991 413 14,6541 532 
Expired 15001 584 - - 12221 507 1722) 56'1 
Outstanding at 31 December 2006 48,192 523 5,017 488 3,373 414 56.582 ... 

i?# 
I 
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5 Share based remuneration continued 
ESOS LTiS Other Total 

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted 

Number DI exercise Number of exercise Number of exercise Number of exercise 
share5 price shares price shares price shares price 

average average average average 

Share options: Reed Eisevier NV 'O00 Ia 'O00 ie1 'O00 lel 'O00 ie1 

11,8171 10.29 - - 1751 12.26 11.8921 10.37 
12.7501 11.88 1621 10.57 - - 12.8121 11.85 

Expired - - - I l l l l  10.16 11111 10.16 

Outstanding a t  1 January 2005 36,770 11.33 3,529 10.55 1.804 12.07 42,103 11.30 
Granted 7,049 11.31 159 11.21 263 11.19 7,471 11.30 
Exercised 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at 1 January 2006 39,252 11.33 3,626 10.58 1,881 12.05 44.759 11.30 
Granted 3,169 11.51 2 11.76 243 12.05 3.414 11.55 

16,6 6 6 I 9.98 - - 12431 10.76 16,9091 10.01 Exercised 
12,7991 12.13 11831 10.57 1351 12.83 13,0171 12.04 Forfeited 

Outstanding at  31 December 2006 32,956 11.55 3.445 10.58 1,846 12.21 38,247 11.50 

12.91 45 10.57 1,881 12.05 16.557 " 12.81 Exercisable at 31 December 2005 
Exercisable at 31 December 2006 15,055 12.24 72 10.57 1.846 12.21 16,973 . 12.23 

- 

14.631 

_______ 
Conditionai shares: Reed Eisevier PLC ESOS LTiS RSP BIP Tolal 

- 2,346 2,285 710 5.341 Outstanding at 1 January 2005 
~ 107 152 692 951 
- ~ 1461 151 1511 Exercised 

Forfeited - 1401 12591 1181 13171 
Outstanding at 1 January 2006 - 2.413 2,132 1.379 5,924 

i Granted 

Granted 1,202 2,003 - 683 3,888 
Exercised 141 - 1541 12211 I2791 
Forfeited 1491 I1721 12461 I lO8l  15751 

Outstanding at  31 December 2006 1.149 4,244 1,832 1,733 8.958 

Number of shares 'O00 

Conditional shares: Reed Eisevier NV ESOS LTIS RSP BIP Total 

Outstanding at 1 January 2005 - 1,611 1,568 304 3,483 
- 74 103 229 406 Granted 
- - 1321 - 1321 Exercised 

Forfeited - 1281 11761 1181 I2221 
Outstanding at 1 January 2006 - 1,657 1,463 51 5 3,635 

Granted 806 ' 1,318 - 280 2.404 
Exercised 131 - 1361 I1011 11401 

1 Forfeited 1331 11171 11491 I451 13441 

Outstanding at  31 December 2006 770 2.858 1.278 649 5,555 

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and conditionai shares during 2006 was 5641, 
12005: 533131 for Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary shares and €12.34 12005: €1 1.311 for Reed Eisevier NV ordinary shares. 



5 Share baced remuneration continued 
2006 2005 

Weighted Weighted 

of shares remaining of shares rernaining 
uoder period uotii uoder periad uotii 

Number average Number average 

option expiw apt,on expiry 
Range of exercise prices for outstanding share options 'O00 lyearsl 'O00 lyearsl 

Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary shares lpencel 
301-350 - - 38 0.1 
351 -400 1.345 1.4 2.161 2.3 
401 -450 4,733 3.0 6,110 4.0 
451-500 23,953 5.5 31,858 6.6 
501 -550 15,462 7.8 12.981 8.1 
551 -600 6.639 4.7 8,283 5.2 
601 -650 852 2.8 1,019 3.6 
651-700 3,598 4.1 4,089 5.1 
Total 56,582 5.6 ' 66,539 6.2 
Reed Eisevier NV ordinary shares leur01 
8.01-9.00 - - 9 7.2 
9.01-10.00 4,146 6.2 8,034 7.0 
10.01-1 1.00 14,595 5.1 17,919 5.9 
11.01-12.00 10,589 8.0 8,774 8.0 
12.01 -13.00 307 5.6 356 3.3 
13.01-14.00 5,163 4.8 5,808 5.4 
14.01-15.00 2,896 4.2 3,223 4.7 
15.01-16.00 551 2.7 636 2.6 
Totaì 38,247 5.9 44,759 6.3 

Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met principaliy by the issue of new ordinary shares but may also be met 
from shares held by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust [EBTI Isee nate 281. Conditional shares wil [  be met 
from shares held by the EBT. 

?.  .' 
,.. L. ' 
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6 Net finance costs 
2006 2005 

t m  trn 

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 
Interest on other loans 

1441 1441 
11281 (1051 

Interest on obligations under finance leases lil 111 
Total borrowing costs 11731 I1501 
Losses on derivatives not designated as hedges 131 1201 
Fair value Losses on interest rate derivatives forrnerly designated as cash fiow hedges 

transferred from equity 131 161 
Finance costs 11791 11761 

Gains on Loans and derivatives not designated as hedges 7 26 
Interest on bank deposits 14 10 

Finance incorne 21 36 
Net finance costs 11581 11401 

Finance costs include E6m 12005: E l  Im] transferred from the hedge reserve. A net gain of E l m  12005: El lml  on interest rate 
derivatives designated as cashf low hedges was recognised directly in equity in the hedge reserve. 

7 Disposals and other non operating items 

Revaiuation of held for trading investments 1 3 
Loss on disposal of businesses and other assets 121 ( 1 1  
Net Iiossl/gain on disposals and other non operating items 

2006 2005 
Ern irn 

I11 2 

'8 Taxation 
2006 2005 

Cm t m  

Current tax 
United Kingdom 59 85 

Rest of worid 4 83 
The Netherlands 50 48 

Totai current tax 113 216 

The current tax charge inciudes credits of E65m 12005: niil in respect of prior year disposals 



8 Taxation continued 

profitsl to the actuai totai tax expense is set out beiow. 
A reconciiiation of the notionai tax charge based on average appiicable rates of tax Iweighted in proportion to accounting 

. .  . .  . 

2006 2005 
Em Ern 

Profit before tax I21 701 
Tax at average appiicable rates 171 154 
Tax on share of results of joint ventures I61 161 
Deferred tax on unreaiised exchange differences on Long term inter-affiiiate iending 1221 44 
Adjustments reiating to prior year disposals I651 - 

Non deductibie amounts and other items 18 45 
Tax expense 96 237 
Tax expense as a percentage of profit before tax 13% 31% 

The foliowing tax has been recognised directiy in equity during the year 

2006 2005 
t m  trn 

Taxon actuarial rnovements on defined benefit pension schemes 1451 10 
Tax on fair vaiue movements on cash fiow hedges 1181 I131 
Deferred tax credits on share based remuneration 3 ~ 

Net tax charge recognised directly in equity I601 131 

During 2006, a tax charge of E3m was transferred to net profit from the hedge reserve 12005: niil. Current taxation iiabilities. 
as at 31 December 2005 inciude E287m previousiy reported within non-current iiabilities. 

9 Adjusted figures 
Reed Eisevier uses adjusted figures as additionai performance measures. Adjusted figures are stated hefore amortisation 
of acquired intangibie assets, acquisition integration costs, disposais and other non operating items, reiated tax effects and 
rnovements in deferred taxation assets and iiabiiities that are not expected to crystaiiise in the near term. Adjusted operating 
profit is als0 grossed up to exciude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures. 

Adjusted operating cash fiow is measured after net capitai expenditure and dividend5 from joint ventures but before 
payments in reiation to acquisition integration costs. / c ~  1 

.. 
2006 záoi 
Ern t m  

839 
.,l. 

Operating profit 880 
Adjustments: 8 

21 
Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 10 Eb 

Adjusted operating profit 1,210 1,lZZ 

Amortisation of acquired intangihie assets 291 216 I ... 
Acquisition integration tost5 23 -. 

Profit before tax 721 70 1 
Adjustments: 

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 297 21 b 

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 10 6 
Acquisition integration costs 23 21 

Disposals and other non operating items 1 121 
Adjusted profit before tax 1,052 1,002 
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9 Adjusted figures continued 
2006 2005 

trn Ern 
Profit attributabie to parent companies' shareholders 623 462 
Adjustments (post taxl: 

Amortisation of acquired intangibie assets 324 310 
Acquisition integration costs 16 17 

Deferred tax not expected to crystaliise in the near term: 
Unrealised exchange differences on Long term inter affiiiate lending I221 44 
Acquired intangible assets 1871 1651 
Other 6 1121 

Adjusted profit attributable to parent companies' shareholders 796 754 

Disposais and other non operating items 1641 121 

- 
Cash generated from operations 1,304 1,223 
Dividends received from joint ventures 16 I6  
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 1881 1931 
Proceeds on disposals of property. plant and equipment 2 a 
Expenditure on internaiiy developed intangible assets I lO8l  11021 
Payments in relation to acquisition integration costs 26 28 

1 O Cash flow statement 

Operating profit before joint ventures 862 823 

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 297 276 
Amortisation of internaiiy deveioped intangibie assets 71 57 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 91 87 
Share based rernuneration 49 57 
Total non cash items 508 477 
Increase in inventories and pre-pubiication costs 1511 1561 
lncrease in receivabies I651 1921 
Increase in payabies 50 71 

Adjusted operating cash flow 1,152 1,080 

Züüb 2005 
Ern t m  Reconciliation of operating profit before joint ventures to cash generated from operations 

Increase in working capital 1661 1771 
Cash generated from operations 1.304 1,223 

2006 2005 
Cash flow on acquisitions NOte trn t m  

Purchase of businesses 1 1  11491 12931 
Investment in ioint ventures 111 1151 
Deferred payments reiating to prior year acquisitions I131 191 
Tntal 11631 13171 



1 10 Cash flow statement continued 
Related 

derivative 
Cash & cash financial 
equivalents Borrowings inslruments 2006 2005 

Reconciliation of net borrowings i m  Crn Em Ern t m  

At start of year 296 (3,1641 174 12,6941 [2.5381 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 239 - - 239 66 
Net rnovement in bank ioans. overdrafts and 

commercial paper - I721 - 1721 492 
lssuance of other loans - 14071 - I0071 I5111 
Repayment of other loans - 337 - 337 90 
Repayment of finance leases - 12 - 12 13 
Change in net borrowings resulting frorn cash flows 239 I1301 - 109 117 

Fair value adjustments to borrowings and 
Inception of finance leases - I91 - 191 1101 

related derivatives - 1181 21 3 5 
Exchange translation differences 1161 315 I221 277 12681 
At end of year 519 13,0061 173 12,3141 12,694 

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, laan capital, finance ieases, promissory notes, bank and other loans, 
and those derivative financial instrurnents that are used to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings. 

11 Acquisitions 
Uuring the year a nurnber of acquisitions were made f o r a  total consideration amounting to E171m. after taking account 
of net cash acquired of f7rn. 

The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair vaiue to the combined businesses. The fair values 
of the consideration given and the assets and habilities acquired are summarised below. 

Bookvalue Fair 
O" Wl"e Fair 

frn Ern f m  
acquisition adjustments "alue 

1 o2 102 , . ~, 

Intangible assets 1 86 871 
1 Property, plant and equiprnent 1 

Current assets 9 - i 9  
Current liabilities I171 - I171 
Ueferred tax - 1111 1111 
Net assets acquired 161 177 l t l '  
Consideration lafter taking account of E7m net cash acquiredl 171, 1 Less: consideration deferred to future years 1221 

Goodwill - 

- 

Net cash flow 169 

The fair vahe  adjustments in reiation to the acquisitions made in 2006 relate principally to the valuation of intangible assets. 
Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired. represents benefits which 
do not qualify for recognition as intangible assets, including skilled workforces and acquisition synergies that are specific to 
Reed Elsevier. In addition, goodwill arises on the recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets for which 
amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions. 

The businesses acquired in 2006 contributed E32m to revenue, f 6 m  to adjusted operating profit. reduced net profit by E9m 
and contributed E7m to net cash infiow from operating activities for the part year under Reed Elsevier ownership. Had the 
businesses been acquired at the beginning of the year, on a proforma basis the Reed Eisevier revenues, adjusted operating 
profit and net profit for the year would have been f5.423rn. f1.216rn and E624m respectiveiy. 
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12 Equity dividends 
Dividends declared in the year Em Em 

2006 2005 

Reed Eisevier PLC 186 168 
Reed Elsevier NV 185 168 

Dividends declared in the year, in amounts per ordinary share, comprise: a 2005 f inai dividend of 1 0 . 7 ~  and 2006 interim 
dividend of 4. lp giving a totai of 1 4 . 8 ~  12005: 13 .3~1  for Reed Eisevier PLC: and a 2005 final dividend of €0.267 and 2006 interim 
dividend of €0.102 giving a totai of €0.369 12005: €0.3321 for Reed Elsevier NV. 

The directors of Reed Eisevier PLC have proposed a f inai dividend of 1 1 . 8 ~  12005: 10.7~1. The directors of Reed Eisevier NV 
have proposed a finai dividend of €0.304 12005: F0.2671. The totai cost of funding the proposed finai di!idends is expected to 
be f298m. for which no iiabiiity has been recognised at the date of the balance sheet. 

2006 2005 
Em Ern Dividends paid and proposed relating to the financial year 

Reed Elsevier PLC 199 183 
Reed Eisevier NV 203 182 
Total 402 365 

Dividends paid to Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV sharehoiders are, other than in special circurnstances. equalised 
at the gross ievei inciusive of the UK tax credit of 10% received by certain Reed Eisevier PLC sharehoiders. The cost of 
funding the Reed Eisevier PLC dividends is therefore simiiar to that of Reed Eisevier NV. 

13 Goodwill 
2006 2005 

Ern Em 

At start of year 3,030 2,611 
Acquisitions 102 182 

Exchange transiation differences 13101 251 
At end of year 2,802 3,030 

The carrying amount of goodwill inciudes curnulative arnortisation of E1.644m 12005: f1.847ml. which was charged prior to 
the adoDtion of IFRS. 

Disposais 1201 1141 



13 Goodwill continued 

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is recorded in the cash generating units that are expected to benefit f rom 
each acquisition. The carrying vaiue of goodwill recorded in the major groups of cash generating units is set out helow. 

Goodwill Ern Ern 

Elsevier 744 821 
LexisNexis US 1,077 1,201 
LexisNexis International 120 103 

302 345 
264 267 

Harcourt Schools US 
Reed Exhihitions 
Other 295 293 
Total 2.802 3,030 

The carrying value of each cash generating unit is compared with its estimated value in use, which is determined to he its 
recoverahle amount. Value in use is calculated hased on estimated future cashflows, discounted to their present value. The pre-tax 
discount rates used are hetween 10-12%, inciuding a risk premium appropriate to the unit heing reviewed. Estirnated future cash 
flows are determined hy reference to latest budgets and forecasts for the next five years. with a 3% long term nominal growth rate 
assurned thereafter, 

2006 2005 

I 
1 ' 

14 Intangible assets 
Market Total internaiiy 

related and other as*et* asSe15 Total 
í m  tm Em Em t m  

and conteot, acquired developed 
cuslomer sofware intangible intangible 

Cost 
At 1 January 2005 1,252 2.864 4,116 512 4,628 
Acquisitions - 88 61 149 - 149 
Additions - - - 102 102 
Disposals - 1291 1291 - 1291 
Exchange translation differences 149 187 336 33 369 
At 1 January 2006 1.489 3,083 4,572 647 5,219 
Acquisitions 43 44 a7 - 87 
Additions - - - 1 O8 108 
Disposals 121 1161 1181 1731 1911 
Exchange translation differences I1 751 12401 14151 1491 I4641 
At 31 December 2006 1.355 2.871 4.226 633 4.859' 

,::> 
Amortisation 
At 1 January 2005 1 O0 1,408 1,508 285 1,79? 
Charge for the year 85 191 276 57 333: 

, lel Disposals 191 191 - 

', Exchange translation differences 16 92 1 O8 15 123:) 
At 1 January 2006 201 I ,682 1,883 357 2,2LO! 
Charge for the year 106 191 297 71 368 
Disposals (1 I 1161 1171 1651 1821 
Exchange translation differences 1301 I1371 I1671 I241 I1911 
At 31 December 2006 276 1,720 1,996 339 2,335 

Net book amount 
At 31 December 2005 1,288 1.401 2.689 290 2.979 
At 31 December 2006 1 ,'O79 1,151 2,230 294 2.524 

- 



Notes to the combined financiaL statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

14 Intangible assets continued 

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations cornprise: market related assets [e.g. trade rnarks, imprints, 
brands]; custorner reiated assets [e.g. subscription bases, custorner lists, custorner reiationshipsl; and content, software and 
other intangible assets [e.g. editoriai content, software and product delivery systems, other pubiishing rights, exhibition rights 
and supply contractsl. Inciuded in content, software and other acquired intangibie assets are assets with a net book value of 
f935m (2005: E1.154rnl that arose on acquisitions compieted prior to the adoption of IFRS that have not been ailocated to 
specific categories of intangible assets. Internaliy deveioped intangible assets typicaily cornprise software and systems 
deveiopment where an identifiabie asset is created that is probable to generate future economic benefits. 

Inciuded in market and custorner reiated intangibie assets are E293m 12005: E333rn1 of brands and imprints relating to 
Elsevier determined to have indefinite iives based on an assessrnent of their historicai iongevity and stabie rnarket positions. 

15 Invectmentc 
2006 2005 
ím Em 

investments in ioint ventures 73 71 

An anaiysis of changes in the carrying vaiue of investrnents in joint ventures is set out beiow. 

2006 2005 
Em trn 

At start of year 71 60 
Share of resuits of joint ventures 18 16 
Dividends received from joint ventures 1161 1161 
Additions 1 15 
Transfers - (31 
Exchange translation differences 111 I11 
At end of year 73 71 

The principai joint ventures at 31 December 2006 are exhibition joint ventures within Reed Business and Giuffrè lan ltaiian 
legai pubiisher in which Reed Eisevier has a 40% shareholdingl. 

Summarised aggregate information in respect of joitii ventures and Reed Eisevier's share is set out below. 

Reed Elsevier share Totai joint ventures 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
í m  trn Em t m  

Revenue 222 194 108 91 
Net profit for the year 36 33 18 16 

Totai assets 215 220 99 103 
Totai liabilities 11211 11371 I551 I631 
Net assets 94 83 44 40 
Goodwill 29 31 
Totai 73 71 



16 Property, plant and equipment 
2QQb 2005 

Land and Fixluresand Land and Fixtures and 
buildings equipment Total buildingi equ,pment Tolal 

Em ím Em Ern Ern Em 

COSt 
At start of year 192 695 887 182 627 809 
Acquisitions - 2 2 - 6 6 
Capital expenditure 9 89 98 5 98 103 
Disposals I31 1551 1581 1101 1861 1961 
Exc'hange translation differences 1191 I641 I831 15 50 65 
At end of vear 179 667 846 192 695 887 

Accurnulated depreciation 
At start of year 
Acquisitions 
Disposais 
Charge for the year 

&t end nf w a r  83 LA5 548 Rú ú89 573 
Exchange translation differences 161 I531 I591 7 37 44 

84 489 573 72 445 517 
- 1 1 - 4 '4 

I31 I551 1581 131 1761 1791 
8 83 91 8 79 87 

Net book arnount 96 202 298 108 206 314 

1 
1 

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. The net book arnount of property. plant and equiprnent at 31 December 2006 
includes El6m 12005: E20ml in respect of assets held under finance ieases relating to fixtures and equipment. 
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17 Financial instrurnents 
Details of :he objectives, policies and strategies pursued by Reed Eisevier in reiation to financial instrurnents are set out 
on pages 22 and 23 of the Operating and FinanciaiReview. The rnain financiai risks faced by Reed Eisevier are liquidity risk, 
rnarket risk - cornprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk ~ and credit risk. Financiai instrurnents are used to 
finance the Reed Eisevier businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Reed Elsevier's businesses do 
not enter into speculative derivative transactions. Details of financial instrurnents subject 10 iiquidity, rnarket and credit risks 
are described beiow. 

Liquidity risk 
Reed Eisevier rnaintains a range of borrowing faciiities and debt prograrnrnes to fund its requirernents, at short notice and at 
cornpetitive rates. The rernaining contractuai rnaturities for borrowings and derivative financial instrurnents are shown in the 
tabie below. The table shows undiscounted principai and interest cash fiows and inciudes contractual gross cash fiows to be 
exchanged as part of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts wh.ere there is a iegal right 
of set off. 

Contractual cash flow 

Carrvina Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Morelhan . _  
m o m t  1 year yean y e x 5  y e X 5  parS. 5 years Total 

At 31 December 2006. Lrn Em Em Em Ern Em Em Ern 
~ 

Borrowings 
Fixed rate borrowings 12,0891 I4061 I4451 1891 I891 13691 11,781) 13,1791 
Fioating rate borrowings 19171 16591 1131 1131 12811 - 121 19681 

Derivative financiai iiabilities 
161 I41 (1 I 111 111 I81 (211 

- - 14101 
Interest rate derivatives 161 
Cross currency interest rate swaps - I1721 12381 

- - 18141 Forward foreign exchange contracts 131 15061 12121 1961 - 
- - 

Derivative financial assets 
Interest rate derivatives 8 9 4 1 1 1 3 19 

- - 592 Cross currency interest rate swaps 174 237 355 - - 
- - 856 Forward foreian exchanae contracts 37 528 228 1 O0 - 

_I > 

Totai 12,7961 19751 13251 1981 13701 13691 11.7881 13,9251 

Cantraclual cash IIow 

CarNi"0 Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than .~ 
arnount 1 year years y e a n  years years 5 p a r s  Talal 

At 31 December 2005 t m  trn Em trn t m  Ern En. t m  
~ ~ ~ 

Borrowings 
Fixed rate borrowings 12.2231 14581 14131 14351 1731 1761 11,8361 13,2911 
Floating rate borrowings 19411 15831 1841 1131 1141 13111 121 11,0071 

Derivative financial iiabiiities 
111 131 1241 
- - 14861 

Interest rate derivatives 1121 191 161 141 lil 
Cross currency interest rate swaps - 1231 I1931 12701 - 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 191 15141 12371 I1 081 - - - 18591 

Derivative financial assets 
Interest rate derivatives 27 13 8 4 1 1 15 42 
Cross currencv interest rate swaos 159 29 250 363 - 642 - - 

- Forward foreign exchange contra'cts 14 52 1 238 107 - - 866 

Total 12.9851 I1.0241 I4371 13561 1871 13871 11,8261 14.1 171 

The carrying arnount of derivative financial iiabiiities cornprises E3rn 12005: niil in relation to fair vaiue hedges. E4rn 12005: 
El6rnl in reiation to cash fiow hedges and E2rn 12005: E5rnl held for trading. The carrying arnount of derivative financiai assets 
cornprises El76rn 12005: E174rnl in reiation :O fair value hedges, E42rn 12005: E21rnl in reiation :o cash flow hedges and E l rn  
12005: E5rnl held for trading. Derivative financial assets and liabilities held for trading carnprise interest rate derivatives that 
were not designated as hedging instrurnents on adoption of IAS39 - Financiai Instrurnents. 



17 Financial i n s t r u m e n t s c o n t i n u e d  

At 31 December 2006, Reed Elsevier had access to E1.529m (2005: E1,739ml of comrnitted bank faciiities that expire in two to 
three years, of which E39m 12005: E67ml was drawn. These facilities principaiiy provide back up for short term borrowinys. 

After takiny account of the maturity of cornmitted bank facilities t h a t  back short term borrowings at 31 December 2006, and 
after utilisiny available.cash resources. no borrowings mature in the next two years 12005: nill; 25% of borrowings mature in 
the third year 12005: 46%l; 24% in the fourth and f i f th years 12005: l l%l ;  37% in the sixth to tenth years 12005: 29%1: and 14% 
beyond the tenth year (2005: I4%1. 

' Market Risk 
~ 

~ 

1 
~ sources. 
I 

Reed Eisevier's primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements. Derivatives are used to 
hedge or reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into uniess such risks exist. 
Derivatives used by Reed Eisevier for hedging a pait icuiar risk are not speciaiised and are generally available from numerous 

Inierest rate risk 
Reed Ekevier's interest rate exposure management poiicy is aimed at reduciny the exposure of the cornbined businesses to 

~ 

, changes in interest rates. 

At 31 December 2006, 88% of net borrowings are either fixed rate or have been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps, 
forward rate agreements and options. A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result i n  an estimated decrease in 
net finance costs of E3m 12005: E5rnl. based on the composition of financial iristrurnents inciuding cash, cash equivalents, 
bank loans and commercial paper borrowings at 31 December 2006. A 100 basis point rise in interest rates would result in 
an estimated increase in net finance costs of E3m 12005: E5ml. The range of changes represents Reed Elsevier's view of the 
changes that are yeasonably possibie over a one year period. 

The impact on net equity of a theoretica1 change in interest rates as at 31 December 2006 is restricted to the change in 
cariying vaiue of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cashflow hedge relationship and 
undesiynated interest rate derivatives. A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result in an estimated reduction in 
net equity of E9m 12005: El6ml and a 100 basis point increase in interest rates wouid increase net equity by an estimated E8m 
12005: f l b m l .  The impact of a change in interest rates on the carrying value of fixed rate borrowinys in a designated fair value 
hedge relationship would be offset by the change in cariying value,of the related interest rate derivative. Fixed rate borrowinys 
not in a designated hedging reiationship are carried at arnortised cost. 

Foreign exchange rate risk 
Translation exposures a r k e  on the earnings and net assets of business operations in countries with currencies other than 
sterling, most particulariy in respect of the US businesses. These exposures are hedged. to a significant extent, by a poiicy,of 
denominating borrowings in currencies where significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dollars Isee note 22!,;& 

A theoretica1 weakening of ai1 currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2006 would decrease the cariying value of., 
net assets, excluding net borrowings, by E341m 12005: E373ml. This wouid be offset to a large deyree by a decrease in net 'y! 
borrowings of E197m 12005: E260rnl. A strengtheniny of al1 currencies by 10% ayainst sterling at 31 December 2006 wouid-; 
increase the carrying value of net assets, excludiny borrowings, by E423m (2005: E463rnl and increase net borrowings by ,..,., 

E:! 
... ; 

E241m 12005: E318rnl. c:> 

A retransiation of the combined businesses' net profit for the year assuming a 10% weakening of a l i  foreiyn currencies 
against sterling but exciuding transactional exposures would reduce net profit by E40m 12005: E29ml. A 10% strengtheniny 
of a i l  foreign currencies ayainst sterling on this basis wouid increase net profit for the year by E49m 12005: E35ml. 



Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

Credit risk 
Reed Elsevier seeks to l imit interest rate and foreign exchange r isks described above by the use of financial instruments 
and as a result has a credit risk frorn the potential non performance by the counterparties to these financial instruments, 
which are unsecured. The amount of this credit risk is norrnally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the 
principal amount being hedged. Reed Elsevier also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full.principal amount of 
cash and cash equivalents. Credit r isks are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties, principally 
licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings, and the amounts outstanding with 
each of them. 

Reed Elsevier has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties 
and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A by Standard and Poor's 
Moody's or  Fitch. 

Reed Elsevier also has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due from its customers that include national and state 
governments, academic institutions, schools, and large and srnall enterprises including law firrns. book stores and 
wholesalers. The concentration of credit risk f rom trade receivables is limited due to the large and broad customer base. 
Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the business units where they arise. Where appropriate, business units 
seek to minimise this exposure by taking payrnent in advance and through management of credit terrns. Allowance 
is made for bad and doubtfui debts based on management's assessment of the risk taking into account the ageing profile, 
experience and circumstance. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative 
financial instruments. recorded in the balance sheet. 

Hedge accounting 
The hedging relationships that are designated under IA539 - Financial Instruments are described below: 

Fair value hedges 
Reed Elsevier has entered into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure to 
changes in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency rnovements which could affect 
the income statement. 

Interest rate derivatives lincluding cross currency interest raie swaps1 with a principal amount of E839m were in place 
at 31 December 2006 12005: E954ml swapping fixed rate term debt issues denominated in US dollars IUSDI. euros and 
Swiss francs ICHFI to floating rate USD debt for the whole or part of their term. 



17 Financial inStrUmentS continued 

The gains and iosses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fair vaiue hedges. which are inciuded in the 
income statement, lor  the two years ended 31 December 2006 were as foilows 

Fair ualue Fair v a l w  
1 January movement Exchange 1 Januaw movement Exchange 31 December 

2005 gainillossl gainillossl 2006 gainlilossi gainlllossl 2006 
reiated derivatives Ern  trn Ern Em trn Em Ern 
Gainslliossesl on borrowings and 

USD debt 151 191 I11 11 51 15 1 1 

1 January movement Exchange 1 Januaw movement Exchange 31 December 
2005 gainillossl gainillossl 2006 gainlilossi gainlllossl 2006 

reiated derivatives Ern  trn Ern Em trn Em Ern 
Gainslliossesl on borrowings and 

USD debt 151 191 I11 11 51 15 1 1 
Related interest rate swaps 5 9 1 15 I151 I1 I I11 

Euro debt 11511 62 1151 I1 041 I261 14 11161 
Reiated Euro to USO cross currency interest 

rate swaps 152 1621 15 105 26 1141 117 
1 

CHF debt 1861 41 181 1531 I101 7 1561 
Related CHF to UCD cross currency interest 

- - - - 1 1 

rate swaps 87 1411 8 54 10 (71 57 
1 - - 1 - - 1 

Total US0,Ëuro and CHF debt 12421 94 1241 11721 1211 22 11711 
Totai reiated interest rate derivatives 244 I941 24 17ú 21 1221 173 

2 - - - 2 - Net gain 2 

Aii  fair vaiue hedyes were highiy effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2006. 

At 31 December 2006 there were fair vaiue losses of n i i  12005: E3ml inciuded within borrowings which reiate to debt 
de-designated from a fair vahe  hedge relationship. During 2006, €3m 12005: E5ml of fair vaiue iosses recognised on adoption 
of IA539 - Financiai Instruments were included in finance income. 

Cash fiow hedges 
Reed Ekevier enters into two types of cash fiow hedye: 

I11 Interest rate derivatives which fix the interest expense on a portion of forecast floating rate denominated debt linciuding 
commercial paper, short term bank loans and fioating rate term debtl. 

121 Foreign exchange derivatives which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future foreign currency subscription revenues 
h.', 
Lr! 

forecast by the Elsevier science and medicai businesses lor  up to 50 rnonths. 

_. 
V.' 

l.:, 



Notes to the combined financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

17 Financial InStrUmentS continued 

Movements in the hedge reserve [pre-taxl in 2006 and 2005. inciuding gains and losses on cash flow hedging instrurnents, 
were as foilows: 

Tolal 
Foreign hedge 

Transition Interest rate exchange reserve 
1055 hedges hedges pre-tax 
t m  trn t m  Cm 

Hedge reserve at 1 January 2005: gains/liossesl deferred 1101 1151 65 40 
Gains/liossesl arising in 2005 - 11 1211 1101 
Arnounts recognised in income statement 6 5 1301 1191 
Exchange translation differences 111 111 121 141 
Hedge reserve at 1 January 2006: gains/llossesl deferred 151 - 12 7 
Gains arising in 2006 - 1 53 54 
Arnounts recognised in income statement 3 3 I141 181 
Exchange translation differences - - lil I11 

Hedge reserve at 31 December 2006: gainslllossesl deferred 121 4 50 52 

ALL cash fiow hedges were highiy effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2006. 

A deferred tax charge of E15m 12005: nii l in respect of the above gains and iosses deferred in the hedge reserve at 
31 December 2006 was aiso deferred in the hedge reserve. 

Of the amounts recognised in the income statement in the year, gains of €14m 12005: E30mI were recognised in revenue, and 
losse5 of E6m 12005: €1 lml  were recognised in finance costs. A deferred tax charge of €3m 12005: nil l was recognised in 
relation to  these items. 

The transition ioss reiates to interest rate derivatives which were not designated as hedging instrurnents on adoption of IAS39 
- Financiai Instrurnents. 

The deferred gains and iosses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2006 are currently expected to be recognised in the 
income statement in future years as foliows: 

Total 
Foreign hedge 

Transition Interest rate exchange reserve 
1055 hedges hedges pre-tax 
t m  t m  Em t m  

2007 I21 3 27 28 
2008 - 1 15 16 

7 7 2009 
- 1 1 2010 - 

Gainslllossesl deferred in hedge reserve at end of year 121 & 50 52 

The cash fiows for these hedges are expected to occur in iine with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income 
statement. other than in respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where cash fiows rnay 
be expected to occur in advance of the subscription year. 

- - .  



18 Deferred tax 
2006 2005 
Em Ern 

Deferred tax assets 170 266 
Deferred tax iiabiiities 18501 I9801 
Totai 16801 17141 

Movements in deferred tax iiabiiities and assets are summarised as foliows: 

Delerred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets 

Excesr of tax Other Other 
allowances Acquired ternporan, Tax losses ternporan, 

over intangible Pensions differences- carried Pensions differences- 
amorlisation assels . assels liabilities forward liabililies a55et5 Total 

Em Em Erf Ern Em Em Em Em 

Deferred tax assetAiiability1 
at 1 January 2005 1711 17851 - lil 59 109 73 16161 

IChargel/credit to profit 13h1 65 - 1521 161 8 121 1211 
- - 10 1131 131 IChargel/credit to equity - 

Transfers - 151 - 13 8 
- - - - 3 i111 i31 Acquisitions 1111 

Exchange translation differences I101 I681 - i51 1 6 5 1711 

- - 
- - - 

Deferred tax asset/liiabiiityl 
at 1 January 2006 I1151 17991 - 1661 54 133 79 17141 

[Chargel/credit to profit I271 87 I41 7 1471 5 I41 17 
lChargel/credit to equity - - i61 1181 - I391 3 I601 

3 2 141 5 
- - 1111 

Transfers I41 
Acquisitions - li11 
Exchanoe translation differences 13 76 - 9 I31 191 131 83 

- 5 4 111 
- - 

Deferred tax assetlliiabiiityl 
at 31 December 2006 11331 I6421 161 1691 7 92 71 16801 

At 31 December 2006, potential deferred tax assets not recognised due to uncertainties over availability and timing 
of relevant taxabie income amounted to E193m 12005: E211rnl in relation to tax deductions carried forward of €483rn 
I2005: E528ml. No time limitation currentLy appiies on utilisation of the tax deductions. 

?.J' 
I ,!i 

19 Inventories and pre-publication costs , 
2006 20% 
Em €m 

Raw materiais 16 12 
Pre-pubkat ion costs 403 394' 
Finished goods 214 2fi1 
Total 633 6301 

20 Trade and other receivables 
2006 2005 
Em Em 

Trade receivabies 1,055 1,086 
Prepayments and accrued income 169 151 
Derivative financial instrurnents 219 200 
Totai 1,443 1,431 

Trade receivabies are predominantiy non-interest bearing and their carrying arnounts approximate to their fa i r  vaiue 
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21 Trade andother payables 
2006 200s 

Em Cm 

Payabies and accruais 
Oeferred income 

956 982 
969 979 

Derivative financiai instrurnents 9 21 
Totai 1.934 1.982 

22 Borrowings 
2006 2005 

Falling due Falling due Falling due Falling due 
within in more wilhin in more 

. 1 year than 1 year Total 1 year t h a n  1 year Toial 
Em Em Em Em Em trn 

Financiai iiabilities measured at arnortised cost: 
Bank ioans, overdrafts and commercial paper 574 - 574 536 - 536 
Finance ieases 6 6 12  11 4 15 
Other loans 131 1.279 1,410 353 1.134 1.487 

Other loans in fair value hedging relationships 210 800 1,010 - 1,126 1,126 
Totai 921 2.085 3.006 900 2.264 3.164 

The totai fair vaiue of financiai iiabiiities rneasured at arnortised cost IS E2.042m 12005: E2.095rnl. The totai fair vaiue of other 
loans in fair value hedging reiationships is €1,073rn 12005: E1.025ml. 

Analysis by year of repayment 
2006 2005 

Bank loans, Bank loans, 
overdrafis and overdialts and 

commercial Other Finance commercial Olher Finance 
paper 10.3"5 kaSe5 Tolal paper I O X S  leases Total 

Within 1 year 574 341 6 921 536 353 11 900 
Within 1 to 2 years - 340 3 343 - 369 3 372 

Within 3 to 4 years - 275 1 276 
Within 4 to 5 years - 282 - 282 - 304 1 305 
After 5 years - 1,182 - 1,182 - 1,228 - 1,228 

frn Em t m  fm frn Em Em Em 

- Within 2 to  3 years - - 2 2 359 - 359 
- - - - 

- 2,079 6 2,085 - 2.260 4 2,264 
Totai 574 2.420 12 3.006 536 2.613 15 3.164 

Anaiysis by currency 
2006 2005 

Bank loans. Bank Ioans. 
werdraft5 and overdrafis and 

commercial Other Finance commercial Other Finance 
paper I N " S  lease5 Total paper 103"s lease5 Tata1 

US Dollars 327 1,877 12 2,216 149 2,436 15 2,600 

Euro 180 143 - 323 312 177 - 489 
Other currencies 47 - - 47 75 - - 75 
Totai 574 2,420 1 2  3,006 536 2,613 15 3,164 

Inciuded in the US dollar arnounts for other loans above is E550m 12005: E586rnl of debt denorninated in euros 1€500rnl 
and Swiss francs ICHF 500rnl that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are reiated derivative 
financiai instrurnents included within trade and other receivabies, which, as at 31 December 2006, had a fair value 
of E174m 12005: E159rnl. 

Em Em f m  Em t m  t m  t m  Em 

E Sterling 20 400 - 420 - - - - 



23 Lease arrangement5 
Finance leases 
At 31 December 2006 future finance Lease obiiyations faii due as foliows: 

2006 2005 
trn Cm 

Within one year 6 11 
In the second to fifth years inciusive 7 5 

Less future finance charges 111 I11  
13 16 

Total 12 15 

Present value of future finance lease obligations payabie: 
Within one year 6 1 1  
In the second to fifth years inclusive b 4 

Total 12 15 

Operating leases 
Reed Eisevier leases various properties, principally offices and warehouses, which have varying terrns and renewai r iyhts that 
are typicai to the territory in which they are iocated. 

At 31 December 2006 outstanding cornrnitrnents under non-canceilabie operating ieases faii due as foliows: 

2006 2005 
trn trn 

Within one year 115 113 

After five years 358 352 
Total 827 800 

Of the above outstanding cornrnitrnents, E803m 12005: E783rnl reiate to land and buiidinys. 

Reed Elsevier has a nurnber of properties that are sub-ieased. The future Lease receivabies contracted with sub-tenants fail 
as foilows: 

In the second to fifth years inclusive 354 335 

2006 zoos 
trn cm1 

Within one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 
After five vears 

15 12 
47 - 39 
21 21. 

Total 83 '12 
i - .~ 

24 Provisions 
-. 
C..' 
.~. , -. 

2006 2005 

At start of year 44 52 
Utiiised (111 1131 
Exchange translation differences 151 5 
At end of year 28 41 

The provisions are for property lease obiigations which reiate to estimated sub-iease shortfails and yuarantees yiven in 
respect of certain property leases for various periods up to 2016. 
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25 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments 
There are contingent liabilities amounting to E36m 12005: E l h l  in respect of property lease guarantees. 

At 31 December 2006. there were capital commitments of E174m in relation to acquisitions conditional on regulatory and 
other approvals. 

26 Combined share capitals 
2006 2005 

Em Em 

At start of year 190 191 
Issue of ordinary shares 2 1 
Exchange translation differences lil 121 
At end of year 191 190 

Combined share capitals exclude the shares of Reed Elsevier NV held by a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC. 

27 Combined share premiums 
2006 2005 
Ern f m  

At start of year 1,805 1,805 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 91 24 

At end of year 1.879 1.805 
Exchange translation differences 1171 1241 

Cornbined share premiums exclude the share premium in respect of shares of Reed Elsevier NV held bya  subsidiary of 
Reed Elsevier PLC 

28 Combined shares held in treasury 
Shares Shares held 

held by parent 
by EBT companies Tolal 

Em Em t m  

bb 
Purchase of shares 27 - 27 
At 1 January 2005 6ó - 

Exchange translation differences - - - 

At 1 January 2006 93 - 93 
Purchase of shares 68 217 285 
Exchange translation differences - I11 111 
At 31 December 2006 161 216 377 

At 31 December 2006, shares held in treasury related to 17,167.145 12005: 10,780,7761 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares 
and 9.2L2,214 12005: 5,539.9221 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares held by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust 
[EBT]; and 20,593.500 12005: nill Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and 13,381,500~12005: nill Reed Elsevier NV ordinary 
shares held by the respective parent companies. 

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shares which, at the trustees' discretion. can be uced in respect 
of the exercise of share options and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. 



29 Translation reserve 
2006 2005 

Crn f m  

Ai  start of year 89 11221 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 12441 180 
Other exchange translation differences 19 31 
At end of vear 11361 89 

30 Other combined reserves 
Hedge Other 

reserve reserves Total Talal 
2006 2006 2006 2005 

Ern Ern Ern t m  

At start of year 7 1281 1211 11331 
Profit attributable to parent cornpanies' shareholders - 623 623 462 
Dividends deciared - I3711 I3711 13361 
Actuariai gains/liossesl on defined benefit pension schernes - 139 139 1371 
Fair value movements on available for s a k  investments - 3 3 3 
Fair value movements on  cash flow hedges 54 - 54 (101 
Tax recognised directiy in equity 1181 1421 1601 131 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve - 49 49 57 
Transfers from hedge reserve to net profit [net of taxl 151 - 151 1191 
Exchange translation differences 111 I1 I I21 151 
At end of year 37 372 409 I211 

31 Related party transactionc 
Transactions between the Reed Elsevier combined businesses have been eiiminated within the combined financial 
statements. Transactions with joint ventures were made on norrnai market terms of trading and cornprise sales of 
goods and services of E6m 12005: E6rnl. As at 31 December 2006, amounts owed by joint ventures were E3m 12005: E3ml. 
Key management personnel are also related parties and cornprise the executive directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and 
Reed Elsevier NV. Transactions with key management personnel are set out below. 

2006 2005 
Fm Frn 

Saiaries and other short term employee benefits 
Post employment benefits 

7 1 7, 
1 I h 

Share based remuneration 7 Y0 
Totai 15 18  

J.3 

I 
Post employment benefits represent the service cost under IAS19 ~ Employee Benefits in relation to defined benefit schemes, 
together with any contributions made to defined contribution schernes. Share based remuneration is the arnount charged i%: 

C:S respect of executive directors under IFRS2 -Share Based Payment. 
.-._I 

t.:.' 

32 Exchange rates 
The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the combined financial statements: 

Income statement Ealance sheet 

2006 mor, 700h 7nns 

Euro to sterling 1.47 1.46 1.49 1.46 
US dollars to sterling 1 .84 1.82 1.96 1.73 
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33 Post balance sheet event 
On 14 February 2007, Reed Elsevier approved a plan to sel i  the Harcourt Education division and to return the net proceeds 
to shareholders by way of a special disiribution in the equaiisation ratio. It is expected that the saie wil1 be compieied 
during 2007. 

34 Approval of financial statements 
The combined financiai statements were approved and authorised for issue by the boards of directors of Reed Elsevier PLC 
and Reed Eisevier NV on 14 February 2007. 



Independent auditors' report 
to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC and shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV 

Report on the combined financiat statements 
We have audited the cornbined financiai statements 2006 of 
Reed Elsevier PLC [registered in Engiand and Waiesl. Reed 
Eisevier NV Iregistered in Amsterdam/, Reed Eisevier Group 
pic Iregistered in Engiand and Wales), Elsevier Reed Finance 
BV Iregistered in Amsterdam] and their respective 
subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures ltogether "the 
combined businesses"1. for the year ended 31 December 
2006 I"the cornbined financiai statements"]. which cornprise 
the cornbined incorne statement, the combined cash fiow 
statement, the cornbined baiance sheet, the combined 
statement of recognised incorne and expenses, the cornbined 
sharehoiders' equity reconciliation, the accounting poiicies 
and the reiated notes 1 to 34. 

We have aiso audited the information in the parts of the 
Directors' Remuneration Report presented in the Reed 
Elsevier Annuai Reports and Financiai Statements ["the 
Remuneration Report"l that are described as having been 
audited. The separate audit reports on the consolidated 
financial statements of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier 
NV which have heen audited under iocaiiy adopted standards 
appear on pages 119 and 138. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rnight state 
to the rnembers of Reed Eisevier PLC and sharehoiders of 
Reed Eisevier NV those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. Ta the 
fuilest extent permitted hy iaw. we do not accept or  assume 
responsibility to anyone other than Reed Eisevier PLC and 
Reed Elsevier NV, and the mernbers of Reed Elsevier PLC as 
a body and the sharehoiders of Reed Eisevier NV as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

Directors' responsibility 
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the combined financial statements in 
accordance with International Financiai Reporting Standards 
as adopted by the European Union and for the preparation 
of the Remuneration Report. This responsibility includes: 
designing, irnpiementing and maintaining internai controi 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
cornbined financiai statements that are free frorn rnateriai 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: selecting 
and appiying appropriate accounting poiicies: and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the given 
circumstances. 

Auditors' responsibiiity 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the cornbined 
financial statements, and the parts of the Rernuneration 
Report that are described as being audited, based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with relevant 
legai and reguiatory requirernents, International Standards 
on Auditing [UK and Ireiandl issued by the United Kingdorn 
Auditing Practices Board and Dutch Law. This requires that 
we cornpiy with our respective professions' ethica1 
requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the combined financial 
statements are free f rom rnaterial misstatement. 

We aiso read other information contained in the Reed 
Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financiai Statements 2006. as 
described in the contents section, inciuding the sumrnary 
Reed Eisevier cornbined financiai inforrnation presented in 
euros, and consider the irnplications for our report if we 
become aware of any apparent misstaternents or materiai 
inconsisteneies with the cornbined financial statements. 

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the arnounts and disciosures in the cornbined 
financial statements. The procedures seiected depend on our 
judgement. inciuding the assessment of the risks of rnaterial 
misstatement of the cornbined financiai statements, whether 
due to fraud ar error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internai controi relevant to the combined 
businesses' preparation and fair presentation of the 
cornbined financiai statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but  not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the cornbined businesses' internai controi. An audit also 
inciudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
poiicies used and the reasonabieness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors. as wei1 as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the cornbined financial statements. 

We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

p., .:, 
'W 

' 
,-:-, audit opinion. j... 

II;. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the combined financiai statements give a t:ue 
and fair view of the financial position of the combined ;;:; 
husinesses as at 31 December 2006, and of their profits anä. 
cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financiai Reporting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union. 

The parts of the Remuneration Report described as having 
been audited have been properiy prepared in accordance with 
the United Kingdom Cornpanies Act 1985. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP Deloitte Accountants B.V. 
Chartered Accountants J P M Hopmans 
and Registered Auditors Amsterdam 
London The Netheriands 
United Kingdom 14 February 2007 
14 February 2007 

I .  

..! 



,--, 



Int rod u ct i o n 

The Reed Eisevier cornbined financiai statements are presented in pounds steriing. This surnrnary financiai information 
presents the prirnary combined financiai statements and selected notes in euros. The fu i i  Reed Eisevier cornbined financial 
statements Dresented in euros are avaiiabie on the Reed Eisevier website. ww.reedelsevier.com. 

Combined income statement 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December NOte em f m  

Cost of saies 12,9151 12.7591 
Revenue 1 1,935 7,542 

Gross profit 
Seilina and distribution costs 

5,020 4,783 
11.688) 11.6351 ~~ 

Administration and other expenses 12.0651 11,9461 

Share of resuits of joint ventures 2 1  23 
Operating prof i t  1.294 1,225 
Finance incorne 31 52 
Finance costs 12641 12561 
Net finance costs I2331 12041 
Disposais and other non operating items 111 2 

Operating profit before joint ventures 1,261 1,202 

Profi t  before tax 1,060 1,023 
Taxation 11411 13461 
Net prof i t  for  the year 919 611 

~ Attributabie to: 
Parent comoanies' sharehoiders 916 675 
Minority interest5 3 2 
Net prof i t  for  the year 91 9 677 



Combined cash flow statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Note em frn 

Cash f iow f rom operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 3 1,917 1.186 
Interest paid 12531 I2231 
Interest received 18 16 
Tax paid 12501 12501 
Net cash f rom operating activities 1,432 1,329 

Cash flows f rom investing activities 
Acquisitions 3 12401 14631 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment I1291 (1361 

11591 11491 
I131 141 

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds on disposals o f  property, plant and equipment 3 12 
Proceeds from other disposals 70 52 
Oividends received from joint ventures 24 23 

Net cash used in  investing activities 14441 16651 

Cash f iows f rom financing activities 
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 
Increaselídecreasel in bank ioans, overdrafts and commercial paper 
Issuance of other loans 
Repayrnent of other loans 
Repayment of finance ieases 
Proceeds on issue of ordinarv shares 

15451 14911 
105 17181 
598 794 

14951 11321 
I181 1191 
137 37 

Purchase of treasury shares 14191 1391 
Net cash used in  financing activities I6371 15681 

Increase in  cash and cash equivaients 3 351 96 

Movement in  cash and cash equivaients 
At start of year 432 317 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 351 96 
Exchange translation differences 191 10 
At end of year 774 132 -- 

'C.' 



Combined balance sheet 

2006 2005 
As at 31 December Note em Ern 

Non-current assets 
Goodwill 4.175 4.424 
Intangibie assets 3,761 4,349 
Investments in joint ventures 1 O8 1 o4 
Other investments 75 64 
Property, plant and equipment 444 458 
Net pension assets 30 
Deferred tax assets 253 388 

8.846 ' 9 787 

, 

- 

Current assets 
Inventories and pre-pubiication costs 943 920 
Trade and other receivabies 2,150 2,098 
Cash and cash equivaients 774 432 

3.867 3 LSO 
Assets held for s a k  - 88 
Total assets 12,713 13,325 

Current iiabilities 
Trade and other payabies 2,882 2,893 
Borrowings 4 1,372 1.314 
Taxat ion 714 813 

4,968 5.020 
Non-current liabilities 
Bormwings 4 3,107 3,305 
Deferred tax iiabilities 1,266 1,431 
Net Dension obiiaations 381 591 " 

Provisions 42 64 
4,796 5,391 

Liabilities associated with assets held for s a k  - 16 
Total liabilities 9.764 10,427 
Net assets 2,949 2,898 

Capital and reserves 
Combined share capitais 
Combined share premiums 
Combined shares held in treasuiy 
Translation reserve 

5 285 217 
6 2.800 2,635 
7 15621 11361 

12011 130 
Other combined reserves 8 607 1301 
Combined shareholders' eouitv 2.929 2.876 

. I  

Minority interests 20 22 
Total equity 2,949 2.898 



Combined statement of recognised income and expense 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December em frn 

Net profit for the year 919 677 

Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations I3001 346 
Actuariai gains/liossesl on defined benefit pension schemes 204 1541 
Fair vaiue rnovernents on avaiiable for sale investrnents 4 4 
Fair vaiue rnovernents on cash fiow hedges 79 1151 

Net lexoensell income recoonised directlv in eouitv 11011 277 
Tax recognised directiy in equity 1881 I4 

Transfer to net profit frorn hedge reserve [net of taxl 
Totai recognised income and expense for the year 

I71 1281 
81 1 926 

Attributable to: 
Parent cornpanies' sharehoiders 808 924 
Minority interests 3 2 
Total recognised income and expense for the year 81 1 926 

Combined shareholders' equity reconciliation 
For the year ended 31 December Nok ern rm 

Totai recognised net income attr ibutable to the parent companies' sharehoiders 808 924 
Dividends deciared 15451 14911 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 137 37 
Increase in shares held in treasury 7 14191 1391 
Increase in share based rernuneration reserve 72 83 
Net increase in combined sharehoiders' equity 53 514 
Cornbined sharehoiders equity at start of year 2,876 2,362 

2006 2005 

Combined sharehoiders' equity at end of year 2,929 2.876 

IJ' 
Vl 



Notes to the surnrnary cornbined financial inforrnation in euros 

1 Segment analycis 
RWe""e Operating profit Adjusted operating profit 

2006 200s 2006 2005 2006 2005 
€m fm €m €m €m fm 

Business segment 
Elsevier 2,236 2.097 581 578 683 655 
LexisNexis 2,308 2,140 388 318 559 493 
Harcourt Education 1,307 1,315 63 127 190 235 
Reed Business 2.084 1,990 269 23 1 354 313 
Sub-totai 7,935 7,542 1,301 1,254 1.786 1,696 
Corporate costs - - 1571 1471 I571 1471 

Total 7,935 7,542 1,294 i ,225 1,779 1.667 
Geographical origin 
North America 4,379 4,216 535 531 885 869 
United Kingdom 1,320 1,270 244 231 293 271 
The Netherlands 739 730 254 235 259 242 
R.est of Europe 1,007 878 177 155 253 206 
Rest of worid 490 448 84 73 89 79 
Total 7,935 7,542 1,294 1,225 1,779 1.667 

Unaiiocated net pension credit - - 50 18 50 18 

Revenue is anaiysed before the €159m 12005: €133ml share of joint ventures' revenue, of which GOrn 12005: f29ml reiates to 
LexisNexis, principaiiy to Giuffrè, and €129m 12005: f l04ml  relates to Reed Business, principaliy to exhibition joint ventures. 

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of €27m 12005: €23ml included in operating profit comprises €5m 12005': f4rnì 
relating to LexisNexis and f22m 12005: E19ml reiating to Reed Business. The unaiiocated net pension credit of €50m 12005: 
€18rnl comprises the expected return on pension scherne assets of €262m 12005: €218rnl Iess interest on pension scheme 
liabilities of E212rn 12005: f200ml. 

2006 2005 
Analysis of revenue by geographical market em Ern 

North~Ämerica 4,531 4,342 

The Netheriands 297 295 
Rest of Europe 1,294 1,174 
Rest of world 943 902 
Total 7.935 7,542 

United Kingdom 870 829 

Expenditure on acquired Capital Amortisation of acquired Oepreciation and 
other amorlisalion goodwill and intangible a55815 expenditure intangible assets 

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
€rn fm em €m €m Ern €m Ern 

Business segment 
Elsevier 78 322 75 88 84 71 69 55 
LexisNexis 116 85 139 139 153 149 103 95 
Harcourt Education 9 10 43 32 126 107 22 20 
Reed Business 75 67 44 39 73 76 40 37 
Sub-totai 278 484 301 298 436 403 234 207 

Geographical location 
North America 152 141 198 191 
United Kingdom 80 23 53 51 
The Netheriands - 13 26 26 
Rest of Eumpe 24 292 15 19 
Rest of world 22 15 1 2  15 
Total 278 484 304 302 



1 Segment analysis continued 

Capital expenditure comprises additions to  property, plant and equipment and internally deveioped intangible assets. 
Other than the depreciation and amortisation above. non cash items of €72m 12005: €83rnl relate to the recognition of 
share based remuneration and comprise €14m 12005: €l6ml in ELsevier, €18m 12005: € 2 3 6  in LexisNexis, €7m 12005: €13ml 
in Harcourt Education. €21m 12005: €21ml in Reed Business and €12m 12005: ElOml in Corporate. 

Tolal asse15 Total liabilities Net assets/lliabilitiesl 

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Fm Fm cm i r n  €m Crn 

3.504 3,716 1,081 1.108 2,423 2,608 
3.864 4.206 571 563 3.293 3.643 

Business segment 
Eisevier 
LexisNexis ~. .~ ~ 

Harcourt Education 21208 2,434 256 264 1,952 2,170 
Reed Business 1,708 1,788 795 795 913 993 
Sub-total 1 1.284 12,144 2,703 2,730 8.581 9.414 

I Taxation 253 388 1,980 2,244 11.7271 11,8561 ' Cash/borrowings 774 432 4,479 4.619 13,7051 14,1871 

Other assets and liabiiities 372 361 221 243 151 118 
Totai 12,713 13,325 9.764 10.427 2,949 2,898 
Geographical iocation 

! 
1 Net pension assets/obligations 30 - 381 591 13511 15911 

North America 8,353 9,391 4.936 5.948 3,417 3,443 
United Kingdom 1,541 1,313 1,674 893 11331 420 
The Netherlands 854 749 690 950 164 .I2011 
Rest of Europe 1,634 1,590 2,251 2,405 I6171 18151 
Rest of worid 331 282 213 231 118 51 

1 Totai 12,713 13,325 9,764 10,427 2.949 2.898 
, 

Investments in joint ventures of €108m 12005: €104ml included in segment assets above comprise €4Om 12005: €41ml 
relating to LexisNexis and € 6 8 1 ~  12005: f63ml relating to Reed Business. 



Notes to the surnrnary cornbined financial information in euros 

2 Adjusted figures 
Reed Elsevier u'ses adjusted figures as additionai performance measures. Adjusted figures are stated before amortisation 
of acquired intangibie assets. acquisition integration costs, disposals and other non operating items, reiated tax effects and 
movements in deferred taxation assets and liabiiities that are not expected to crystaliise in the near term. Adjusted operating 
profit is aiso grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures. 

Adjusted operating cash fiow is rneasured after net capitai expenditure and dividends from joint ventures but before payments 
in reiation to acquisition integration costs. 

2ûûb 2005 
em Ern 

Operating profit 1,294 1,225 
Adjustments: 

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 436 403 
Acquisition integration costs 34 30 

Adjusted operating profit 1,779 1,667 

Profit before tax 1,060 1,023 
Adjustments: 

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 436 403 
Acquisition integration costs 34 30 

Reciassification of tax in joint ventures 15 9 

Reciassification of tax in joint ventures 15 9 
Disposais and other non operating items 1 121 

Adjusted profit before tax 1,546 1,463 

Profit attributabie to parent companies' sharehoiders 916 b75 
Adjustments [post taxl: 

AmÒrtisation of acquired intangibie assets 476 452 
Acquisition integration costs 24 24 
Disposais and other non operating items 1951 121 

Acquired intangibie assets 11281 1951 

Deferred tax not expected to crystallise in the near term: 
Unreaiised exchange differences on long term inter affiliate iending 1321 64 

Other 9 1171 
Ädjusted profit attributable to parent companies' shareholders 1,170 1,101 

Cash generated from operations 
Dividends received from joint ventures 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds on disposais of property, plant and equipment 
Expenditure on internaliy deveioped intangibie assets 
Payments in relation to acquisition integration costs 37 41 
Adjusted operating cash flow 1,693 1.577 

1,917 1,706 
24 23 

I1291 11361 
3 12 

11591 11491 



3 Cash flow statement 
Reconciliation of operating profit before joint ventures to cash generated from operations 
Operating profit hefore joint ventures 1,267 1,202 

2006 2005 
frn frn 

Arnortisation of acquired intangibie assets 436 403 
Arnortisation of internally developed intangihle assets 104 83 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 134 127 
Share hased remuneration 72 83 
Totalnon cash items 746 696 
Increase in inventories and pre-publication cosis 1751 1821 
lncrease in receivabies 1951 I1 341 
Increase in payahles 74 104 
Increase in working capital 1961 11121 
Cash generated from operations 1,917 1,786 

2006 2005 
Cash fiow on acquisitions em f m  

Purchase of husinesses 12191 14281 
investrnent in joint ventures I21 I221 
Deferred payrnents reiating to prior year acquisitions 1191 1131 
Totai (2401 14631 

Related 
derivative 

Cash & cash financial 
equivalenls Borrowingr instrument$ 2006 2005 

Reconciiiation of net borrowings €m €m em em fm 

At start of year 432 14.6191 254 13,9331 13,5781 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 351 - - 351 96 
Net movement in bank ioans. overdrafts and 

commercial paper - 11051 - 11051 718 
Issuance of other ioans - 15981 - 15981 17941 

Repayment of finance leases - 18 - 18 1'9 
Repayment of other ioans - 495 - 495 132 

Change in net borrowings resuiting f rom cash flows 351 11901 - 161 1 l.!. 
Inception of finance ieases - 1141 - 1141 ' 11'51 

reiated derivatives - I261 31 5 i? 
Exchange transiation differences 191 370 I281 333 15ï81 
At end of year 774 14,4791 257 13,4481 . 13,9331 

!..,i Fair vaiue adjustrnents to borrowings and 

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivaients, loan capitai, finance ieases, prornissory notes, bank and other ioans, 
and those derivative financiai instruments that are used to hedge the fair vaiue of fixed rate borrowings. 



Notes to the summary combined financial information in euros 

4 Borrowingc 
2006 2005 

Falling due Failing due Falling due Falling due 
within in more wilhin in more 
1 year than 1 year Toial 1 year lhan 1 year Toial 

f m  €m €m fm fm f m  

Financial iiabiiities measured at amortised cost: 
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 855 - 855 182 - 182 
Finance leases 9 9 18 16 6 22 
Other ioans 195 1,906 2,101 516 1,655 2.171 

Other ioans in fair vaiue hedging reiationships 313 1,192 1,505 - 1,644 1.644 

Total 1.372 3,107 4,479 1,314 3,305 4,619 

The totai fair value of financiai iiabilities measured at amortised cost is €3,043m 12005: €3,059ml.  The total fair vaiue of other 
ioans in fair value hedging reiationships is €1,599m 12005: E1,497ml. 

Anaiysis by year of repayment 
2006 2005 

Bank loans, Bank loans. 
overdrafts and overdrafis and 

commercial Other Finance COmmWCial Olher Finance 
paper toa"* leases Total paper I b " 5  leases Total 

€m €m f m  €m f m  Em f m  fm 

Within 1 year 855 508 9 1,372 782 51 6 16 1,314 
Within 1 to 2 p a r s  - 507 4 51 1 - 538 5 543 

- - 3 3 - 524 - 524 
- 41 o 2 412 
- 420 - 420 - 444 1 445 

- - - - 
Within 2 to 3 years 
Within 3 to 4 years 
Within 4 to 5 years 
After 5 years - 1.761 - 1,761 - 1,793 - 1.793 

- 3,098 9 3,107 - 3,299 6 3,305 
Total 855 3,606 18 4.479 782 3.815 22 4,619 

2006 2005 
Anaiysis by currency 

Bank loans, Bank loans, 
overdrafto and oveidrafls and 

commercial Other Finance commerci.31 Oiher Finance 
paper laan5 lease5 Toial paper I b " 5  lea5eS Toial 

fm f m  €m €m Em Ern f m  f m  

US Dollars 487 2,797 18 3,302 216 3.557 22 3,195 
E Sterling 30 596 - 626 - - 
Euro 268 213 - 481 456 258 - 714 

- - 

Other currencies 70 - - 70 110 - - 110 
Total 855 3.606 18 4.479 782 3.815 2 2  4.619 

Inciuded in the US dollar arnounts for other ioans above is €820m 12005: €856rnl of debt denominated in euros l f500ml  
and Swiss francs ICHF 500ml that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are related derivative 
financiai instruments included within trade and other receivables, which. as at 31 December 2006, had a fair vaiue of 
f 259m 12005: €232ml.  

5 Combined share capitals 
2006 2005 

em Em 

At start of year 277 269 

Exchange transiation differences 5 6 
At end of w a r  285 277 

Issue of ordinary shares 3 2 

Combined share capitais exclude the shares of Reed Eisevier NV held by a subsidiary of Reed Eisevier PLC 



6 Combined share premiums 
2006 

Frn 
2005 

Frn 

At start of year 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 
Exchanae translation differences 

2,635 2,545 
134 35 
31 55 

_I 

At end of year 2,800 2,635 

Cornbined share premiums exciude the share premium in respect of shares of Reed Elsevier NV held by a subsidiary 
of Reed Eisevier PLC 

7 Combined shares held in treasury 
Shares Shares held 

held by parent 
by EBT companies Total 

Em Em Em 

At 1 January 2005 93 - 93 
Purchase of shares 39 ~ 39 

4 Exchange translation differences 4 
At 1 January 2006 136 - 136 
Purchase of shares 100 319 41 9 
Exchange translation differences 4 3 7 
At 31 December 2006 240 322 562 

- 

8 Other combined reserves 
Hedge Other 

reserve TeSeNeS Tata1 Tolal 
2006 ma6 2006 2005 

f m  Em Em Em 

At start of year 10 1401 1301 11841 
Profit attributable to parent cornpanies' shareholders - 916 916 675 
Dividends deciared - I5451 I5451 14911 
Actuarial gainslllossesl on defined benefit pension schernes - 204 204 1541 
Fair value rnovernents on available for saie investrnents - 4 4 ' 2  
Fair vaiue rnovernents on cash flow hedges 79 - 79 iisi 

Transfers frorn hedqe reserve to net profit [net of taxi I71 - I71 ris1 
Tax recognised directiy in equity I261 1621 I881 5: 141 
Increase in share based rernuneration reserve - 72 72 83 

Exchange translation differences I11 3 2 1161 
At end of vear 55 552 607 13091 

i i 

9 Exchange rates 
Income Statement Balance sheet 

2006 2005 2006 2005 

Sterling to euro 0.68 0.68 0.67 0.68 
US dollar to euro 1.25 1.25 1.32 1.18 





Di rec to rs' re port 

The directors present their report, together with the 
financial statements of the group and company, for the year 
ended 31 December 2006. 

As a consequence of the merger of the company's 
businesses with those of Reed Eisevier NV in 1993, described 
on page 26, the sharehoiders of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed 
Eisevier NV can be regarded as having the interests of a 
single economic group. The Reed Elsevier combined financial 
statements represent the combined interests of both sets 
of shareholders and encompass the businesses of Reed 
Eisevier Group plc, Eisevier Reed Finance BV and their 
respective subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, 
together with the parent companies, Reed Eisevier PLC 
and Reed Eisevier NV ["the combined businesses" or "Reed 
Eisevier"1. This directors' report and the financiai statements 
of the group and company should be read in conjunction with 
the combined financial statements and other reports set out 
on pages 2 to 91. A business review for the Reed Eisevier 
combined businesses IS set out on pages 5 to 25. 

Principal activities 
The company is a holding companyand its principai 
investments are its direct 50% shareholding in Reed Eisevier 
Group plc and 39% shareholding in Eisevier Reed Finance 
BV, which are engaged in publishing and information 
activities and financing activities respectively. The remaining 
shareholdings in these two companies are held by Reed 
Elsevier NV. Reed Eisevier PLC aiso has an indirect equity 
interest in Reed Elsevier NV. Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed- 
Eisevier NV have retained their separate iegal identities and 
are pubiicly held companies. Reed Eisevier PLC's securities 
are iisted in London and New York and Reed Eisevier NVs 
securities are iisted in Amsterdam and New York. 

Financial statement presentation 
The consoiidated financiai statements of Reed Eisevier PLC 
include the 52.9% economic interest that sharehoiders have 
under the equaiisation arrangements in the Reed Eisevier 
combined businesses, accounted for on an equity basis. 

U,nder the t e r m  of the rnerger agreement, dividends paid 
to Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV shareholders are, 
other than in special circumstances, equaiised at the gross 
ievei inciusive of the UK tax credit received by certain Reed 
Elsevier PLC sharehoiders. Because of the tax credit, Reed 
Eisevier PLC normaliy requires proportionateiy iess cash to 
fund its net dividend than Reed Eisevier NV does to fund its 
gross dividend. An adjustment is therefore required in the 
consoiidated income statement of Reed Eisevier PLC to 
share this tax benefit between the two sets of sharehoiders in 
accordance with the equalisation agreement. The 
equalisation adjustment arises on dividends paid by Reed 
Eisevier PLC to its sharehoiders and it reduces the 
consoiidated attributable earnings by ElOm 12005: f9ml.  
being 47.1% of the totai amount O f  the tax credit. 

In addition to the reported figures, adjusted profit figures 
are presented as additionai performance measures. 
These exciude the tax credit equaiisation adjustment and, in 
reiation to the resuits of joint ventures, the cornpany's share 
of the amortisation of acquired intangibie assets, acquisition 
integration costs, disposals and other non operating items, 
reiated tax effects and movements in deferred taxation assets 
and iiabiiities not expected to crystaiiise in the near term. 

Consolidated income statement 
Reed Eisevier PLC's sharehoiders' 52.9% share of the 
adjusted profit before tax of the Reed Elsevier combined 
businesses was E557m. up from E530m in 2005. Reported 
profit before tax was E328m 12005: E242ml. In scientific and 
medical markets. Elsevier had a successful year with strong 
subscription renewais and widening distribution of its 
journals and databases, growing new online product saies 
and a successful book publishing programme. In legal 
markets, LexisNexis had a successfui year. Subscription 
renewais were strong, good growth was seen in new saies of 
oniine information soiutions both in the US and 
internationaliy, and further good growth was seen in risk 
information and anaiytics. In education markets, Harcourt 
Education's basai textbook and supplemental businesses 
performed wel i  against a weaker education market to hoid 
overall revenues fiat. Profits were iower through investment 
ahead of major adoptions and underperformance in 
Assessment. In business to business markets, Reed 
Business had a successfui year. The online information 
services grew rapidiy, more than compensating for print 
migration. and the exhibitions business again periormed 
st rong [y. 

Reed Elsevier PLC's sharehoiders' share of the adjusted 
profit attributable of the combined businesses was E421m. up 
from E399m in 2005. The company's share of the post tax 
charge for amortisation of acquired intangibie assets was 
E171m. up E7m f rom 2005, principaiiy as a result of recent 
acquisitions. The reported net profit for the year was E320m 
I2005: E235ml refiecting the company's share of the strong 
operating performance of the combined businesses and 
iower tax charge due to favourable settlement of tax on prior 
year disposais and deferred tax on long term inter affiliate 
lending. 

Adjusted earnings per share increased 7% to 3 3 . 6 ~  
12005: 31.5~1.  At constant rates of exchange, the increase was 
1 1 %  Including the effect of the tax credit equaiisation as wel i  
as the amortisation of acquired intangibie assets, acquisition 
integration casts, ,non operating items and tax adjustrnents. 
the basic earnings per share was 2 5 . 6 ~  12005: 18.6pl. 

Consolidated balance sheet 
The consolidated balance sheet of Reed Eisevier PLC refiects 
its 52.9% economic interest in the net assets of Reed 
Eisevier, which at 31 December 2006 amounted to E1.040m 
12005: f l ,042ml .  The f 2 m  decrease in net assets refiects the 
company's share in the attributabie profits o f  Reed Eisevier. 
less exchange differences, principally as a result of the 
weaker US dollar. dividends and share repurchases. 



. . .  .. > -. . .  . ., .~ .- . 

Directors 
The foiiowing served as directors during the year: 
J Hommen IChairmanl 
Sir Crispin Davis [Chief Executive Officerl 
M H Arrnour [Chief Financial Officerl 
G,J A van de Aast 
M W Eiliott 
E Engstrom 
L Hook [appointed 18Apri l  20061 
C J A van Lede 
A Prozes 
D E Reid 
Lord Sharman of Rediynch OBE 
R W H Stornberg [senior independent non-executive directorl 
PTierney 
S Zeinick 

Biographical details of the directors at the date of this report 
are given on pages 26 and 27 of the Annual Review and 
Surnrnary Financial Statements. 

Messrs Armour, Engstrom. Hommen and Stornberg and Lord 
Sharman wi i i  retire by rotation at  the forthcorning Annuai 
General Meeting and, being eiigibie, they wi i i  offer 
themselves for re-election. M r  van Lede wil1 retire at the 
conclusion of the Annuai General Meeting and a resolution to 
appoint Robert Polet as a non-executive director wi i l  be 
subrnitted to the meeting. The notice period appiicabie to the 
service contracts of Messrs Armour and Engstrom is set out 
in the Directors Rernuneration Report on page 43. Messrs 
Hommen, Stomberg and Polet and Lord Sharman do not 
have sewice contracts. 

Details of directors' remuneration and their interests in the 
share capitai of the company are provided in the Directors' 
Rernuneration Report on pages 34 to 51 

In accordance with the company's Articles of Association, i...~ 

directors are granted an indernnity from the company to  the': 
extent permitted by law in respect of iiabilities incurred as a 
resuit of their office. 

Charitable and pol i t ical donations 
Reed Eisevier companies made donations during the year f o i  
charitable purposes arnounting to E2.2m of which E0.6m w'gs 
in the United Kingdom. In the United States, Reed Eisevier" 
companies contributed €66,000 to political parties. There 
were no donations made in the European Union for politicai 
purposes. 

Statement of directors' responsibiiities 
The directors are required by Engiish cornpany iaw to 
prepare a directors' report and financial statements for each 
financiai period, which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the cornpany and the group, and of the profit or  ioss 
for that period. In preparing those financiai statements, the 
directors ensure that suitable accounting policies. 
consistentiy applied and supported by reasonable 
judgements and estimates. have been used. and accounting 
standards have been followed. 

<:-i .- ,. 
L. 

Dividends 
Given the continued strong performance of the business, 
the strong cash generation and positive outlook, the board 
has maintained its progressive dividend poiicy that cioseiy 
aiigns dividend growth with growth in adjusted earnings. 
Accordingly, the board is recornrnending a final dividend of 
1 1 . 8 ~  per ordinary share to be paid on 1 1  May 2007 to 
shareholders on the Register on 20 Apri l  2007. 

The total dividend paid on the ordinary shares in the financiai 
yearwas E186rn 12005: E168ml. 

Share repurchase programme 
The board of Reed Elsevier PLC, together with the boards of 
Reed Elsevier NV, approved the introduction of an annual 
share repurchase programme in 2006 to further irnprove 
capitai efficiency. During 2006 a total of 20.6rn of the 
cornpany's ordinary shares were repurchased under the 
programme at a tost  of E l  12rn and are held in treasury. 

Parent company financiai statements 
The individuai parent company financial statements of Reed 
Elsevier PLC are presented on pages 120 and 121, and 
continue to be prepared under UK generaliy accepted 
accounting principles [UK GAAPI. Parent company 
sharehoiders' funds as at 31 December 2006 were f2.218m 
12005: E l  ,886ml. 

Share capital 
During 2006, 10,350,608 ordinary shares in the company werf  
issued in connection with share option schemes as foilows: 

818.207 under a UK SAYE share option scheme at prices 
between 3 3 6 . 2 ~  and 5 4 3 . 2 ~  per share. 

9,532,401 under executive share option schemes at prices 
between 4 2 4 . 0 ~  and 5 7 0 . 0 ~  per share. 

At 14 February 2007. the company had received notification 
of the following substantial interests in the companys issued 
ordinary share capital: 

The Capitai Group Companies, inc 104,787,120 shares 8.26% 

FMR Corporation. 100,849,175 shares 7.95% 

Prudentiai plc 52,109,466 shares 4.1 1% 

Legal & General Group pic 49,863,553 shares 3.93% 

At the 2006 Annuai Generai Meeting a resolution was passed 
to extend the authority given to the company to purchase 
up to 10% of its ordinary shares by market purchase. 
At 31 December 2006, 20,593,500 shares, representing 1.6% 
of issued ordinary shares, had been purchased and are held 
in treasury A resolution to further extend the authority is to 
be put to the 2007 Annuai Generai Meeting. 



The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting 
records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any t ime 
the financial position of the company and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the law. 

The directors have general responsibility for taking 
reasonable steps io safeguard the assets of ihe group 
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

Disclosure of information to auditors 
As part of the process of approving the 2006 financial 
statements, the directors have taken steps pursuant to 
section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985 to ensure that they 
are aware of any relevant audit information and to esiablish 
that the companys auditors are aware of that information. In 
that context, so far as the directors are aware. there is no 
relevant audit information of which the companys auditors 
are unaware. 

Corporate governance 
Save as noted on page 26, the company has complied 
throughout i he  period under review with the provisions of the 
Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued in July 2003 
[the "UK Code"], inciuding the revised Turnbull guidance 
issued in October 2005. 

Details of how the principles of the UK Code have been 
applied and the directors' statement on internal control are 
set out in the Structure and Corporate Governance report 
on pages 26 to 31 

Details of !he role and responsibilities, membership and 
activities of the Reed Elsevier PLC Audit Cornmittee are set 
out in the Report of the Audit Committees on pages 32 
and 33. 

Going concern 
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable 
expectation that the group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future 
and that. therefore, it is appropriate to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Payments to suppliers 
Reed Elsevier cornpanies agree.terms and conditions for 
business transactions with suppliers and payment is made 
on these terms. The average time taken to pay suppliers was 
between 30 and 45 days. 

Auditors 
Resoluiions for the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP 
as auditorS.of the company and authorising the directors to 
fix their remuneration wi l l  be submitted to the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting. 

By order of the Board 
Stephen J Cowden 
Secretary 

14 February 2007 

Registered Office 
1-3 Strand 

London 
WC2N 5JR 



Consolidated income statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Nok Ern trn 

Administrative exoenses 1 121 121 . .  . .  

Effect of tax cred/t equaiisation on distributed earnings 2 I101 191 
Share of resuits of joint ventures 1 1  343 252 
Operating profit 331 24'1 
Finance [chargesl/income 5 131 1 
Profit before tax 328 242 
Taxaiion 6 I81 171 
Profit attr ibutabie to ordinary sharehoiders 320 235 

Earnings per ordinary share 
200b 200s 

For the year ended 31 December Noie pence pence 

Basic earnings per share 8 2 5 . 6 ~  1 8 . 6 ~  
Diiuted earnings per share 8 25.3~ 18.4p 

Consolidated cash flow statement 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December Noie trn Em 

Cash flow f rom operating activities 
Cash used by operations 
Interest Ipaidl/received 

10 I21 
I31 

121 
1 

Net cash fiow f rom operating activities I111 191 

Dividend5 received f rom joint ventures 596 168 

Cash flows f rom financing activities 
Equity dividends paid 
Proceeds on issue of ordinaiy shares 
Purchase of treasurv shares 

7 I1861 I1 681 
14.' 47 

11121 - ' I  . ~. 
Increase in net funding baiances due from joint ventures 10 13341 i$. 
Net cash used in  financing activities I5851 i159j: 

I .  .! - Movement in  cash and cash equivalents - 
-. 
T i  

. .> .~ 



Consolidated balance sheet 

2006 2005 
As at 31 December Note Em Ern 

Non-current assets 
Investrnents in joint ventures 
Current assets 

1 1  156 490 

Arnounts due frorn joint ventures 934 600 
Total assets 1 .O90 1.090 

Current iiabiiities 
Arnounts owed to joint ventures 
Payabies 
Taxntinn 

~ 36 
1 

13 

- 

1 
11 . -. . -. . . 

50 12 

Non-current liabiiities 
Arnounts owed to joint ventures . - 36 
Total iiabiiities 50 40 
Net x w t s  1.040 1,042 

Capital and reserves 
Calied up share capital 
Share premium account 
Shares held in treasury linciuding in joint ventures] 
Capitai redernption reserve 
Transiation reserve 

12 161 160 
13 1,033 907 
14 12001 1491 
15 4 4 
16 [Pûl 31 

Other reserves 17 140 1911 
Totai equity 1,040 1.042 

The consoiidated financiai statements were approved by the board of directors, 14 February 2007. 

J Hommen 
Chairrnan 

M H Armour 
Chief Financiai Officer 



Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December t m  Em 

Profit attributable to ordinarv sharehoiders 320 235 
~ ~~ 

Share of joint ventures' net lexpensel/income recognised directly in equity 

Totai recognised income and expense for the year 260 296 

I571 71 - 
Share of joint ventures' transfer to net profit f rom hedge reserve 13) 1101 

Consolidated reconciliation of shareholders' equity 
For the year ended 31 December Nale trn Em 

Total recognised net income 260 296 
Equity dividends decíared 7 11861 11681 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 47 14 
Increase in shares held in treasury lincluding in joint ventures] 1 1  11511 1141 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve 26 30 
Equaiisation adjustrnents 2 121 
Net Idecreasellincrease in sharehoiders' equity 121 156 
Sharehoiders' equity at start of year 1,042 886 

Sharehoiders' equity at end of year 1,040 1,042 

2006 2005 



Group accounting policies 

Basis of preparation 
These consoiidated financiai statements have been prepared 
under the historicai cost convention in accordance with 
appiicable accounting standards. They report the 
consolidated statements of incorne, cash flow and financiai 
position of Reed Eisevier PLC, and have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financiai Reportiny Standards 
IIFRSI as endorsed by the European Union. 

Unless othenuise indicated, al1 arnounts shown in the 
financial statements are in miilions of pounds. 

The basis of the rnerger of the businesses of Reed Eisevier 
PLC and Reed Eisevier NV is set out on page 26. 

Determination of profit 
The Reed Eisevier PLC share of the Reed Eisevier combined 
resuits has been caicuiated on the basis of the 52.9% 
economic interest of the Reed Eisevier PLC sharehoiders in 
the Reed Eisevier cornbined businesses, after taking account 
of resuits arising in Reed Elsevier PLC and its subsidiaries. 
Dividends paid to Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Eisevier NV 
sharehoiders are, other than in special circumstances, 
equaiised at the gross ievei inciusive of the UK tax credit 
received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC sharehoíders. In Reed 
Eisevier PLC's consolidated financial statements, 
an adjustment is required to equaiise the benefit of the tax 
credit between the two sets of sharehoiders in accordance 
with the equalisation agreement. This equalisation 
adjustrnent arises on dividends paid by Reed Eisevier PLC to 
its shareholders and reduces the consoiidated attributabie 
earnings by 47.1% of the total arnount of the tax credit. 

The accounting poiicies adopted in the preparation of the 
cornbined financiai statements are set out on pages 58 to 61 

Investments 
Reed Eisevier PLC's 52.9% economic interest in the net 
assets of the cornbined businesses has been shown on the 
balance sheet as investments in joint ventures, net of the 
assets and iiabilities reported as part of Reed Eisevier PLC 
and its subsidiaries. Investrnents in joint ventures are 
accounted for using the equity rnethod. 

Foreign exchange transiation 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
of exchange prevaiiing on the date of the transaction. At each 
balance sheet date, rnonetary assets and iiabilities that 
are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at 
the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange 
differences arising are recorded in the income statement. 
The exchange gains or iosses reiating to the retranslation of 
Reed Eisevier PLC's 52.9% economic interest in the net 
assets of the combined businesses are ciassified as equity 
and transferred to the translation reserve. 

When foreign operations are disposed of, the reiated 
curnuiative transiation differences are recognised within 
the income statement in the period. 

, 

, 

' 
' 

I 

Taxation 
The tax expense represents the surn of the tax payabie on the 
current year taxable profits, adjustrnents in respect of prior 
year taxable profits and the rnovernents on deferred tax that 
are recognised in the incorne statement. Tax arising in joint 
ventures is inciuded in the share of resuits of joint ventures. 

The tax payable on current year taxabie profits is calcuiated 
using the appiicable tax rate that has been enacted, 
or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is  the tax arising on differences between the 
carrying arnounts of assets and liabiiities in the financiai 
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in the 
cornputation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the 
baiance sheet iiability rnethod. Deferred tax iiabiiities are 
generaliy recoynised for ai1 taxabie temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that, 
based on current forecasts, it is probabie that taxable profits 
wil1 be available against which deductible ternporary 
differences can be utiiised. 

Deferred tax is  caicuiated using tax rates that are expected 
to appiy in the period when the liabiiity is settied or  the asset 
is realised. Fuil provision is made for deferred tax which 
wouid becorne payable on the distribution of retained profits 
frorn foreign subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

Movements in deferred tax are charged and credited in the 
incorne statement, except when they reiate to items charged 
or credited directiy to equity, in which case the deferred tax 
is aiso recognised in equity. 

Standards, amendments and interpretations 
not yet effective 
Recently issued standards. amendments and interpretations 
are not expected to have any significant impact when adopted. 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

1 Administrative expenses 
Administrative expenses include C486,OOO 12005: C495.0001 paid in the year to Reed Eisevier Group plc under a contract 
for the sewices of directors and adrninistrative support. Reed Eisevier PLC has no employees 12005: niil. 

2 Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 
The tax credit equaiisation adjustment arises on dividends paid by Reed Eisevier PLC to i ts sharehoiders and reduces 
the consoiidated profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders by 47.1% of the totai amount of the tax credit, as set out 
in the accounting poiicies on page 112. 

3 Auditors’ remuneration 
Audit fees payabie by Reed Elsevier PLC were C24.000 12005: €24,0001. Further information on the audit and non-audit 
fees paid by the Reed Eisevier combined businesses to Deioitte & Touche LLP and its associates is set out in note 2 to the 
cornbined financial statements. 

4 Related party transactions 
Ali transactions with joint ventures, which are reiated parties of Reed Elsevier PLC, are refiected in these financiai 
statements. Key management personnei are als0 reiated parties and comprise the executive directors of Reed Eisevier PLC. 
The remuneration of executive directors of Reed Eisevier PLC is disciosed in note 31 to the combined financiai statements. 

, -. 

5 Finance [chargesl/income 

Finance lchargesl/incorne from joint ventures 131 1 

6 Taxation 

2006 2005 
Cm Em 

2006 2005 
Ern Ern 

UK corooration tax 8 7 

A reconciiiation of the notionai tax charge based on the applicabie rate of tax to the actuai totai tax expense is set out beiow. 
l . , )  

13 
2006 2005 

t m  i m  
Profit before tax 328 2i2: 
Tax at applicabie rate 130%1 98 73 
Taxon share of resuits of joint ventures 11031 1731 
Other 13 (,7.3 
Tax expense 8 i? 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

7 Equity dividends 
2006 2005 2006 ZO05 

Dividends deciared in the year peoce pence Em t m  

Ordinary shares of 12.5 pence each 
Finai for prior financial year 1 0 . 7 ~  9 . 6 ~  135 120 
Interim for financial year 4.lp 3.7p 51 48 

Total 1 4 . 8 ~  1 3 . 3 ~  186 168 

The directors of Reed Eisevier PLC have proposed a finai dividend of 1 1 . 8 ~ .  The totai cost of funding the proposed f inai 
dividends is expected to be f148m. No iiabiiity has been recognised at the date of the baiance sheet. 

ZOO6 2005 
pence pence Dividends paid and proposed relating to the financial year 

Ordinary shares of 12.5 pence each 
Interim Ipaidl 4. lp  3.7p 

Total 1 5 . 9 ~  14.4p 

8 Earnings per ordinary share ~"EPS' '~  

Finai lproposedl 1 1 . 8 ~  1 0 . 7 ~  

2006 ' 2005 

Weighted Weighted 
average average 

number of number of 

lmiiiionsi Em pence ImiII~onsl i m  pence 

Basic EPS 1,251.9 320 25.6~ 1,266.2 235 1 8 . 6 ~  
i l i l i i ted EPS 1.266.4 320 2 5 . 3 ~  1.217.2 235 1 8 . 4 ~  

shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EP5 

~ ~~~~~ ~ ~ 

EPS based on 52.9% economic interest in 
the Reed Elsevier cornbined businesses 1,251.9 330 26.413 1,266.2 244 19.3p 

The diiuted EPS figures are caicuiated after taking account of the effect of potential additional ordinary shares arising from 
the exercise of share options and conditionai shares. 

The weighted average number of shares is after deducting shares held in treasury. Movements in the number of shares in 
issue net of treasury shares for the year ended 31 December 2006 are shown beiow. 

Year ended 31 December 

200b ?rins . . ~ ~  . . ~ ~  
Shares in Shares in 

issue nel of 
Shares in TreaS"V treaSUry treasury 

i s w e  shares shares shares 
Number of ordinary shares lmillion4 Imillion%I lmii l ion~i Imillionil 

issue net of 

At start of year 1,277.0 110.8) 1,266.2 1,265.4 

Share repurchases - [20.61 [20.61 - 
Purchase of shares by employee benefit trust h e t ]  - [6.41 16.41 12.81 
At end of year 1.287.4 137.8) 1.249.6 1,266.2 

Weighted average number of equivalent ordinary shares during the year 1,251.9 1,266.2 

Issue of ordinary shares 10.4 - 10.4 3.6 



9 Adjusted figurec 
Adjusted profit and earnings per share figures are used as additional performance measures. The adjusted figures are derived 
as foiiows: 

Pmfit attributable to Basic earnings 
ordinary sharehalders pershare 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
Cm . irn pence pence 

Reported figures 320 235 2 5 . 6 ~  1 8 . 6 ~  
Effect of tax  credit equalisation on distributed earnings 10 9 0.8p 0 . 7 ~  
Profit attributable to  ordinary shareholders based on 52.9% economic 

interest in the Reed Eisevier cornbined businesses 330 244 26.4~ 1 9 . 3 ~  
Share of adjustments in joint ventures: 

Amortisation of acquired intangibie assets 171 164 1 3 . 7 ~  1 3 . 0 ~  
Acouisitian inteoration costs 8 9 0.611 0.70 

- I  ~ ~ _I ~ ~~ 

Disposals and other non operating items 1341 [I1 12.7lp I0. l lp 
Oeferred tax adjustments 1541 [I71 14.41p ll.41p 

Adjusted figures 421 399 3 3 . 6 ~  3 1 . 5 ~  

10 Cash flow statement 
Reconciiiation of administrative expenses to cash used by operations 

Administrative expenses 121 I21 
Net movement in payabies - - 

Cash used by operations I21 121 

2006 2005 
Ern Ern 

2006 2005 
Em trn Reconciiiation of net funding baiances due frorn joint ventures 

At start of year 564 559 
Cash flow 334 5 
At end of year 898 564 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

11 Investments in joint ventures 
2006 2005 

t m  irn 

Share of resuits of joint ventures 
Share of joint ventures': 

Net lexpensehcome recognised directiy in equity 
Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve 
Purchases of treasury shares by employee benefit trust 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve 

Eaualisation adiustments 

343 252 

1571 71 
131 1101 

1391 1141 
26 30 
181 1111 

Dilidends receiied from joint ventures I5961 I1681 

[Decreaselhcrease in the year I3341 150 
At start of year 490 340 
At end of year 156 490 

Sumrnarised information showing totai amounts.in respect of joint ventures and Reed Eisevier PLC shareholders' 52.9% 
share is set out beiow. 

Reed Elsevier PLC 
Total joint venlure~ shareholders' share 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
t m  irn Em Em 

Revenue 5.398 5,166 2,856 2.733 
Net profit for the year 625 464 343 252 

Reed Elsevier PLC 
Total joint ventures shareholders' share 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
Em trn t m  trn 

Total assets 8,532 . 9,127 4,549 4,864 

Net assets 1,979 1.985 156 490 

Attributabie to: 
Joint ventures 1,966 1,970 156 490 

Total 1,979 1,985 156 490 

The above amounts exciude assets and liabiiities held directiy by Reed Eisevier PLC and inciude the counterparty baiances 
of amounts owed to and by other Reed Eisevier businesses. Inciuded within Reed Eisevier PLC's share of assets and iiabiiities 
are cash and cash equivaients of E275m 12005: E157ml and borrowings of € 1 , 5 9 0 1 ~  12005: E1,674rnl respectively. 

Total liabiiities 16,5531 17.1421 14,3931 14,3741 

Minority interests 13 15 - - 

12 Share capitai 
Authorised No. of shares trn 

Ordinary shares of 1 2 . 5 ~  each 1,287,364,048 161 
Unciassified shares of 1 2 . 5 ~  each 184,089,128 23 

Total 184 



2006 2005 
12 Share Capita1 continued 

Called up share capital - issued and fui ly paid No. af shares tm No of shares E" 

Issue of ordinary shares 10,350,608 1 3,339,431 1 
At start of year 1,277,013,440 160 1,273,674,009 159 

At end of year 1,287,364,048 161 1.277,013.440 160 

The issue of ordinary shares reiates to the exercise of share options Details of share option and conditionai share schemes 
are set out in note 5 to the Reed Eisevier cornbined financial statements 

13 Share premium 
2006 2005 ~~~ 

tm t m  

At start of vear 987 974 
Issue of ordinary shares 46 13 
At end of year 1,033 987 

14 Shares held in treasury 
2006 2005 
Ern rn 

At start of year 
Share repurchases 

49 
112 

35 
- 

Share of joint ventures' employee benefit trust purchases 39 I I  
At end of vear 200 . 49 

Details of shares held in treasuryare provided in note 28 to the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements. 

15 Capital redemption reserve 
2006 

Ern 
2005 
r m  

At start  and end of year 4 4 

16 Translation reserve 
2006 2005 
tm !Em 

At start of year 31 (641 
Share of joint ventures' exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations I1291 , .  95 
At end of year 1981 3,1 

17 Other reserves i:' 
2006 ZO& 
im fm 

At start of year I91 I 11521 
Profil attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders 320 235 
Share of joint ventures': 

Actuariai gains/liossesl on defined benefit pension schemes 73 1191 
Fair vaiue movements on avaiiable for saie investments 2 2 
Fair vaiue movements on cash fiow hedges 29 151 
Tax recognised directiy in equity 1321 121 
Transfer to net profit from hedge reserve 131 1101 

Equaiisation adjustments 2 I21 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve 26 30 

Equity dividends declared 1186) I1 681 
At end of year 140 1911 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 200b 

18 Contingent liabilities 
There are contingent iiahiiities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranieed hy Reed Elsevier PLC as foiiows: 

2006 2005 
t m  Cm 

Guaranteed jointly and severally with Reed Elsevier NV 2,589 2.705 

Financiai instruments disciosures in respect of the horrowings covered by the above guarantees are given in note 17 to the 
Reed Elsevier cornbined financiai statements. 

19 Post balance sheet event 
On 14 February 2007. the company received a dividend of E400m from Reed Eisevier Group plc. 

On 14 Fehruary 2007, Reed Elsevier approved a plan to sei l  Harcourt Education. a division of Reed Eisevier Group pic and to 
return i he  net proceeds to sharehoiders by way of a special distribuiion in the equaiisation ratio. It is expected that the s a k  
wi i l  be completed during 2007. 

20 Principal joint ventures 
% haldina 

Reed Elsevier Group plc 

1-3 Strand 
London WC2N 5JR 
Holding company for operating businesses 
invoived in science & medical. iegai, educationai 
and business puhlishing 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV 

Radarweg 29 205 ordinary "E" shares - 
1043 NX Amsterdam, The Netheriands 
Holding company for financing businesses 

The "E" shares in Reed Elsevier Group pic and Elsevier Reed Finance BV are owned by Reed Eisevier NV. 

Incorporated and operaiing in Great Britain €10,000 ordinary "R" shares 
€10.000 ordinary "E" shares - 

€100,000 7.5% cumuiative preference non voting shares 

100% 

100% 

Equivalent to a 50% equity interest 

Incorporated in the Neiheriands 133 ordinary "R" shares 100% 

Equivalent to a 39% equity interest 

21 Principal subsidiary 
96 holding 

Reed Holding BV 

Radarweg 29 
1043 NX Amsterdam, The Neiheriands 

Reed Holding BV owns 4,679,249 shares of a separate class in Reed Elsevier NV. The equalisation arrangemenis entered 
into between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV a i  the time of the merger give Reed Eisevier PLC a 5.8% economic 
interest in Reed Eisevier NV. 

Incorporated in the Netheriands 41 ordinary shares 100% 



Independent auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements 
to the  members of Reed Ëlsevier PLC 

We have audited the consoiidated financial statements of 
Reed Elsevier PLC for the year ended 31 Oecernber 2006 
["the consolidated financiai staternents"1, which comprise 
the group accounting policies, the consoiidated income 
statement, the consolidated cash flow statement, the 
consoiidated baiance sheet, the consoiidated statement 
of recognised income and expense, the reconciiiation of 
shareholders' equity and the reiated notes 1 to 21. These 
consoiidated financial statements have been prepared under 
the accounting poiicies set out thereio. 

We have reported separateiy on the individual parent 
cornpany financiai statements of Reed Eisevier PLC for the 
year ended 31 December 2006 and on the information in the 
parts of the Oirectors' Rernuneration Report presented 
in the Annuai Reports and Financial Statements 2006 
["the Remuneration Report"1 inciuded in the individual parent 
cornpany annuai report that are described as 
having been audited. 

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a 
body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken s o  that we might 
state to the company's members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no 
other purpose. To the fuílest extent permitted by law. we do 
not accept or  assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
cornpany and the company's mernbers as a body, for our 
audit work. for this report, or  for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors 
The directors' responsibilities for preparing the directors' 
report and the consolidated financiai statements in 
accordance with appiicable United Kingdom law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards I"IFRS"I, as 
adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement 
of directors' responsibilities. 

Our responsibiiity is to audit the consoiidated financial 
statements in accordance with relevant United Kingdom 
legai and reguiatory requirements and Internationai 
Standards on Auditing [UK and Irelandl. 

We report to you our opinion as to whether the consolidated 
financiai statements give a true and fair view and whether 
the consolidated financiai statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the United Kingdom Companies 
Act 1985 and Articie 4 of the IA5 Regulation of European 
Union law. We aiso report to you whether, in our opinion, the 
information given in the directors' report is consistent with 
the consolidated financiai statements. The information given 
in the directors' report includes the business review that is 
cross referred from pages 5 to 25 of the Reed Elsevier 
Annuai Reports and Financiai Statements. 

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion. we have not 
received ai1 the information and expianations we require for 
our audit, or  if inforrnation specified by law regarding 
directors' remuneration and transactions with the cornpany 
and other members of the group is not disclosed. 

We review whether the corporate governance statement 
reflects the company's cornpliance with the nine provisions 
of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review 
by the Listing Rules of the Financiai Services Authority, 
and we report if it does not. We are not required, under UK 
iaw, to consider whether !he board's statement on internal 
controi covers a l l  risks and controls, or form an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the group's corporate governance 
procedures or its risk and control procedures. 

We read the other information contained in the Reed Elsevier 
Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2006 as described in 
the contents section and consider whether it is consistent with 
the audited consoiidated financial statements. We consider the 
irnpiications for our report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
consolidated financial statements. Our responsibilities do not 
extend to  any further inforrnation outside the Reed Elsevier 
Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2006. 

Basis of audit opinion 
We conducted Dur audit in accordance with Internationai 
Standards on Auditing [UK and Irelandl issued by the Auditing 
Practices Board. An audit inchdes examination, on a test 
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment 
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the 
directors in the preparation of the consolidated financiai 
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the cornpanys circumstances, consistently 
appiied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain a l i  
the inforrnation and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide US with sufficient evidence 
to give reasonabie assurance that the consolidated financiai 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or  other irregularity or error. In  forming 
our opinion we also evaiuated the overall adequacy of 

financiai statements. I 

. .  

1.2' 

the presentation of information in the consolidated 

Opinion *i 

t.,-, 

,c.,, _., 

In our opinion: 
3 the consolidated financiai statements give a true and fair '  

view in accordance with IFRS, as adopted for use in the"';' 
European Union, of  the state of the group's affairs as at.:; 
31 December 2006 and of its profit for the year then end& 

3 the consoiidated financial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and 
Articie 4 of the IAS Regulation: and 

, 

3 the information given in the directors' report is consistent 
with the consoiidated financial statements. 

Deioitte &Touche LLP 
Chartered Accountants and 
Registered Auditors 
London 
United Kingdom 
14 Februaty 2007 



Parent com pa ny baìance sheet 

ZOOb 2005 
As at 31 December NOte Ern Em 

Fixed assets 
Investments in subsidiarv undertakinqs 

I 

303 303 - 
Investments in joint ventures 1,108 1.108 

1.411 1.41 1 
Current assets 
Debtors: amounts due from joint ventures l i l  934 600 

93L hnn 

Creditors: amounts faliing due within one year 
Other creditors 111 111 
Taxation 1131 1111 
Amounts owed to joint ventures (361 - 
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1771 1771 

11271 1891 
Net current assets 807 51 1 
Creditors: amounts faiiing due after one year 
Amounts owed tojoint ventures - 1361 
Net assets 2.218 1,886 

Capital and reserves 
Calied up share capitai 
Share premium account 
Shares held in treasury 
Caoital redemption reserve 

161 160 
1,033 987 
11121 - 

4 4 
Profit and ioss'reserve 1,132 735 
Sharehoiders' funds 2.218 1,886 

lil Subsequent to the baiance sheet date, on 14 February 2007, the company received a dividend of E4OOm from 
Reed Eisevier Group pic 

The parent cornpany financiai statements were approved by the board of directors, 14 February 2007 

J Hommen 
Chairman 

M H Armour 
Chief Financiai Officer 



Parent company reconciliation of shareholders' funds 

Share Shares Capital 
premium held in redemption Protit and 

Share capital account Ireasury reserve 1055 re5erve Total 

- 4 743 1.880 
- - - - 160 160 

At 1 January 2005 159 974 

Equity dividends paid - ~ - - 11681 (1681 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 13 ~ 14 

Profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders - - - - 583 583 

Purchase of shares - - 11121 - - 11121 

t m  t m  t m  t m  Em t m  

Profit attributahie to ordinary sharehoiders 

- - 

At 1 January 2006 160 987 - 4 735 1,886 

Equity dividends paid - - - - 11861 11861 

- 47 Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1 L6 
At 31 December 2006 161 1,033 I1121 4 1,132 2.218 

- - 

Parent company accounting poiicies 
Basis of preparation 
The parent cornpany financiai statements have been 
prepared under the historica1 cost convention in accordance 
with UK Generaily Accepted Accounting Principles IUK 
GAAPI. Unless otherwise indicated, a l l  amounts in the 
financiai statements are in miliions of pounds. 

As permitted by Section 230 of the Cornpanies Act 1985, the 
company has not presented its own profil and ioss account. 

The Reed Eisevier PLC accounting poiicies under UK GAAP 
are set out below. 

Investments 
Fixed asset investments in the Reed Eisevier combined 
businesses are stated at cost, less provision, if appropriate. for 
any impairment in vaiue. 

Principai joint ventures and subsidiaries are set out in 
notes 20 and 21 of the Reed Eisevier PLC Eonsolidated 
financial statements. 

Shares held in treasury 
The consideration paid, including directly attrihutabie costs, 
for shares repurchased is recognised as shares held in 
treasury and presented as a deduction from tata! equity. 
Details of share capita! and shares held in treasury are set 
out in notes 12 and 14 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consoiidated 
financial statements. 

Foreign exchange transiation 
Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are 
recorded at the exchange rates applicabie at'the t ime of the 
transaction. 

Taxation 
Deferred taxation is provided in ful i  for timing differences 
using the iiahiiity method. Deferred tax assets are oniy 
recognised to the extent that they are considered 
recoverable in the short term. Deferred taxation baiances 
are not discounted. 

t ... i 

1,Jl 



Independent auditors' report on the parent cornpany financial statements 
to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC 

We have audited the individuai parent company financiai 
statements of Reed Eisevier PLC for the year ended 
31 December 2006 I"the company financiai statements"] 
which cornprise the parent company baiance sheet, the 
parent company reconciiiation of sharehoiders' funds and the 
parent company accounting poiicies. These company 
financiai statements have heen prepared under the 
accounting policies set out therein. 

We have aiso audited the information in the p a r k  of the 
Directors' Remuneration Report presented in the Reed 
Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financiai Statements 2006 
I"the Remuneration Report"] that are described as having 
been audited. We have reported separateiy on the 
consolidated financiai statements of Reed Eisevier PLC 
for the year ended 31 December 2006. 

This report is made soleiy to the company's mernbers. as a 
body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rnight 
state to the company's rnernbers those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no 
other purpose. To the fuiiest extent permitted hy iaw, 
we do nat acceptor assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the company and the cornpany's members as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report, or  for the opinions we 
have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors 
The directors' responsibilities for the preparation of the 
directors' report and the company financiai statements in 
accordance with appiicahie United Kingdom iaw and United 
Kingdom Generaliy Accepted Accounting Principies are set 
out in the statement of directors' responsibilities. They are 
aiso responsibie for the preparation of the other information 
contained in the Reed Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financial 
Statements 2006 inciuding, together with the directors of 
Reed Elsevier NV. the Remuneration Report. 

Our responsibility is to audit the company financial 
statements and the parts of the Remuneration Report 
described as having been audited in accordance with relevant 
United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirernents and 
International Standards on Auditing [UK and Ireiandl. 

We report to you our opinion as to whether the cornpany 
financiai statements give a true and fair view and whether 
the company financiai statements and the parts of the 
Remuneration Report to he audited have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the Cornpanies Act 1985. We 
aiso report to you whether, in our opinion, the directors' 
report is consistent with the company financial statements. 
The information given in the directors' report includes the 
business review that is cross referred from pages 5 to 25 
of the Reed Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financiai 
Statements 2006. 

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company 
has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not 
received a i i  the information and explanations we require for 
our audit, or if information specified by law regarding 
directors' remuneration and transactions with the company is 
not disciosed. 

We aiso report to you i f ,  in our opinion, the company has 
not complied with any of the four directors' remuneration 
disclosure requirements specified for our review by the 
Listing Ruies of the Financiai Services Authority. These 
comprise the arnount of each element in the remuneration 
package, information on share options, details of Long term 
incentive schemes, and money purchase and defined benefit 
schemes. We give a statement, to the extent possibie, of 
details of any non-compliance. 

We read the other information contained in the Reed Eisevier 
Annuai Reports and Financial Statements 2006 and 
described in the contents section inciuding the unaudited 
parts of the Remuneration Report and consider whether it is 
consistent with the audited company financiai statements. 
We consider the implications for our report if we become 
aware of any apparent misstatements or  materiai 
inconsistencies with the company financial statements. Our 
responsibilities do not extend to any further information 
outside the Reed Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financiai 
Statement 2006. 



Basis of audit opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditiny [UK and Irelandl issued by the Auditiny 
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test 
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disciosures 
in the company financiai statements and the part of the 
Remuneration Report described as haviny been audited. 
It  als0 includes an assessment of the significant estimates 
andjudyements made by the directors in the preparation 
of the company financiai statements, and of whether the 
accounting poiicies are appropriate to the company's 
circumstances, consistentiy appiied and adequateiy 
disciosed. 

We pianned and performed our audit so as to obtain ai1 
the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide US with sufficient evidence 
to yive reasonable assurance that the company financiai 
statements and the parts of !he Remuneration Report 
described as haviny been audited are free from rnateriai 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irreyuiarity 
or  error. In forming our opinion we also evaiuated the overall 
adequacy of !he presentation of information in the company 
financiai statements and !he parts of the Remuneration 
Report described as haviny been audited. 

Opinion 
In our opinion: 
3 The company financiai statements give a true and fair 

view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generaily 
Accepted Accounting Principies, of the state of the 
company's affairs as at 31 December 2006; 

-$ the company financiai statements and the parts Ó f  
the Remuneration Report described as haviny been 
audited have been properiy prepared in accordance with 
the Companies Act 1985: and 

3 !he information given in the directors' report is consistent 
with the company financial statements. 

Deioitte &Touche LLP 
Chartered Accountants and 
Registered Auditors 
London 
United Kingdom 
14 Februarv 2007 





The Supervisory Board's report 

J Hommen, Chairman 
G J de Boer-Kruyt 
M W Ell iott  
L Hook lappointed S Zeinick 
19 Apri l  20061 

C J A van Lede 

Together with the Executive Board, we herewith submit to the 
Annuai Generai Meeting l o r  adoption Reed Eisevier NV's 
annuai report and financiai statements, comprising the 
consolidated financial statements and the parent cornpany 
financiai statements for the financiai year ended 
31 December 2006. The financiai statements have been 
drawn up in accordance with the accounting policies 
expiained on pages 130, 131 and 140 of this document and 
have been examined by Deloitte Accountants BV, Amsterdam. 
Their reports and opinions are set out on pages 138 and 142. 
The combined financiai statements on pages 54 to 90 
are part of the notes to and form an integrai part of these 
statutory financial statements. Additional information 
providing a translation into euros of the primary combined 
financiai statements and seiected notes is presented on 
pages 94 to 103. 

We refer to the Chairman and Chief Executive's Report and to 
the other reports contained within the Reed Eisevier Annual 
Review and Summary Financiai Statements 2006 and the 
Reed Eisevier Annuai Reports and Financial Statements 
2006. These reports expiain the business resuits of 2006, the 
financiai state of the company as at 31 December 2006, 
and contain disciosures in respect of corporate governance, 
systems of internai controi and risk management, corporate 
responsibiiity, rernuneraiion of board members and key 
strategie issues. 

The equalisation agreement between Reed Eisevier NV and 
Reed Elsevier PLC has the effect that the respective 
sharehoiders can be regarded as having the interests of a 
single economic group and provides that Reed Eisevier NV 
shall.declare dividends such that the dividend on one Reed 
Elsevier NV ordinary share, which shal i  be payabie in euros, 
wi i l  equal 1.538 times the cash dividend, including, other 
than in special circurnstances, the related UK tax credit,.paid 
on one Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary share. In that context, the 
combined meeting of the members of the Supervisory and 
Executive Boards ithe Combined Board1 determines the 
amounts of the company's proiit to be retained. The ordinary 
shares and the R-shares are entitied to receive distribution in 
proportion to their nomina1 vaiue. The Combined Board rnay 
resoive to pay iess per R-share, but not iess than 1% of their 
nominaivaiue. Details of dividends are contained in note 6 to 
the consoiidated financiai statements. 

D E Reid 
Lord Sharman of Rediynch OBE 
R W H Stomberg 

' 

The Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV, together with the 
board of Reed Elsevier PLC. approved the introduction of an 
annuai share repurchase programme in 2006 to further 
improve capitai efficiency. During 2006 a totai of 13.4m 
ordinary shares of the company were repurchased under the 
programme at a cost of €156rn and are held in treasury 

Reed Elsevier's poiicies, practices and disciosures, and an 
explanation of the way in which Reed Elsevier has compiied 
with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, are set out in 
pages 26 to 31 of the Reed Eisevier Annuai Reports and 
Financial Statements 2006. 

At the forthcoming Reed Elsevier NVAnnual General Meeting 
on 18 Apri l  2007, Messrs Hommen and Stomberg and Lord 
Sharman wil1 retire by rotation as rnembers of the 
Supervisory Board and, being eligible, wil1 offer themselves 
for re-eiection. Mr  van Lede wi l i  retire as a rnember of the 
Supervisory Board at the conciusion of the Annual General 
Meeting and a resolution to appoint Robert Polet as a 
rnember of the Supervisory Board wil1 be subrnitted to the 
meeting. Messrs Armour and Engstrom wi i i  retire by rotation 
as members of the Executive Board and, being eligible. wil1 
oiier themselves for re-eiection. A recommendation wil1 be 
made at the Annuai Generai Meeting for the appointment of 
these directors. 

The Supervisory Board Registered office 
14 February 2007 Radanveg 29 

1043 NX Amsterdam 



The Executive Board's report 

Sir Crispin Clavis, Chairrnan 
M H A m o u r ,  Chief Financiai Officer 
G J A van de Aast 

We refer to the Chairman and Chief Executive's Report and t o  
the other reports contained within the Reed Elsevier Annual 
Review and Summary Financiai Statements 2006 and the 
Reed Elsevier Annual Reports and Financiai Statements 
2006. These reports expiain the business resuits of 2006, the 
financiai state of the company as at 31 December 2006. 
and the key operationai and strategic issues. 

As explained in the financial statements on pages 128 to 143. 
Reed Eisevier NV prepares its consoiidated financiai 
statements in accordance with International Financiai 
Reporting Standards and i t5 parent company financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principies in the UK. 

In the consolidated financial statements, the profit 
attributabie to the sharehoiders of Reed Elsevier NV was 
€458m 12005: é338ml and net assets as at 31 December 
2006. principaily representing the investments in Reed 
Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV under 
the equity method, were €1,465m 12005: E1.438ml. 

In the parent cornpany financiai statements, the profit 
attributable to the sharehoiders of Reed Elsevier NV was 
€1.114m 12005: €188ml and net assets as a t  31 December 
2006, principaily representing the investmentá in Reed 
Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV under the 
historica1 cost method and ioans to their subsidiaries, were 
€2,866m (2005: €2,112ml. Free resemes as at 31 December 
2006 were €1,256m 12005: f570ml. Foliowing receipt of a 
dividend from Reed Elsevier Overseas BV of €750m on 
14 February 2007. the free reserves of the company, after 
taking account of other incorne and expenses from 1 January 
2006 to 14 February 2007. were €2.007m. 

E Engstrom 
A Prozes 
P Tierney 

The Executive Board 
14 February 2007 

Registered office 
Radarweg 29 
1043 NX Amsterdam 



Consolidated income statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December N o k  Frn frn 

Adrninistrative expenses 1 DI 131 
Share of results of joint ventures 10 455 339 
Operating profit 452 336 
Finance incorne 4 7 2 

I Profit before tax 459 338 
5 111 - Taxat ion 

Profi t  attr ibutable to ordinary shareholders 458 338 

Earnings per ordinary share 
For the year ended 31 December Note e f 

Basic earnings per share I €0.59 €0 43 
Diluted earnings per share 7 €0.59 €0 43 

2006 2005 

Consolidated cash flow statement 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December Nate ern frn 

Cash fiows frorn operating activities 
Cash used by operations 9 131 151 
Interest received 12 1 
Tax Ipaidl/received 111 2 
Net cash flow frornl lused in) operating activities 8 (21 

Dividends received f rom joint  ventures 1,111 189 

Cash f lows f rom financing activi t ies 
Equity dividends paid 
Proceeds on issue of ordinaty shares 

6 12721 12451 
68 18 

11561 - Purchase of treasury shares 
{lncreasel/decrease in net funding balances due from joint ventures 9 16121 16 
Net cash used in  financing activities I9721 12111 

Increaselldecreasel i n  cash and cash equivalents 147 1241 



Consolidated balancé sheet 

As at 31 December N o k  
2006 

em 
2005 

em 

Non-current assets 
Investments in joint ventures 10 760 1,487 
Current assets 
Amounts due from joint ventures - funding 626 14 
Arnounts due from joint ventures - other 3 8 

777 23 
Totai assets 1.537 1,510 

Current liabilities 
Payables 1 1  8 8 
Taxa i i o n 64 64 
Totai liabilities 72 72 
Net assets 1 ,465 1,438 

Cash and cash equivalents 148 I 

Capitai and reserves 
Share capital issued 
Paid-in surplus 
Shares held in treasury linciuding in joint ventures] 
Transiation reserve 

12 48 47 
13 1,562 1,495 
14 I2821 1681 
15 1701 76 

Other reserves . I  6 207 (1121 
Total eauitv 1.465 . 1.438 

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December em f m  

Profit attributabie to ordinarv shareholders 458 338 
Share of joint ventures' net lexpensel/income recognised directiy in equity 150) 138 

141 I141 
Total recognised income and expense for the year 404 462 
Share of joint ventures' transfer to net profit from hedge reserve 

h,.' 
c r  

f-:-, 

,L:, 

.... Consolidated reconciliation of shareholders' equity 
For the year ended 31 December NOte em em 

Total recognised net income 404 i 6 2  

2006 2005 

Equity dividends declared 6 12721 12451 
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 68 4 8 
Increase in shares held in treasury linciuding in joint ventures] 14 [2101 1201 
Increase in share based rernuneration reserve 36 42 
Equaiisation adjustments 1 - 

Net increase in shareholders' equity 27 257 
Shareholders' equity at start of year 1,438 1.181 
Shareholders' equity at end of year 1.465 1,438 



Group accounting policies 

These consolidated financiai statements, which have been 
prepared under the historic cost convention, report the 
statements of income, cash flow and financiai position of 
Reed Elsevier NV. Uniess otherwise indicated, ali amounts 
shown in the financial statements are in miliions of euros. 

As required by a regulation adopted by the European 
Parliament. the consolidated financiai statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financiai 
Reporting Standards IIFRSI as endorsed by the European 
Union. 

The Reed Eisevier combined financial statements presented 
in pounds sterling on pages 54 to 90 form an integral part o f  
the notes to Reed Elsevier NV's statutory financial 
statements. The primary combined financiai statements and 
selected notes are presented in euros on pages 94 to 103. 

As a consequence of the merger of the cornpanys 
businesses with those of Reed Elsevier PLC, described 
on page 26, the sharehoiders of Reed Eisevier NV and Reed 
Eisevier PLC can be regarded as having the interests of 
a single economic group, enjoying substantially equivalent 
ordinary dividend and capital rights in the earnings and 
net assets of the Reed Eisevier combined businesses. 

The Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements are 
presented incorporating Reed Eisevier NV's investments 
in the Reed Elsevier combined businesses accounted for 
using the equity rnethod, as adjusted tor the effects of the 
equalisation arrangement between Reed Elsevier NV 
and Reed Eisevier PLC. The arrangement iays down the 
distribution of dividends and net asseis in such a way that 
Reed Eisevier NVs share in the profit and net assets of the 
Reed Eisevier combined businesses equals 50%. with ali 
settiements accruing to shareholders from the equalisation 
arrangements taken directly to reserves. 

Because the dividend paid to sharehoiders by Reed Eisevier 
NV is, other than in special circumstances, equivalent to the 
Reed Eisevier PLC dividend plus the UK tax credit received by 
certain Reed Eisevier PLC sharehoiders, Reed Eisevier NV 
normaily distributes a higher proportion of the combined 
profit attributabie than Reed Elsevier PLC. Reed Eisevier 
PLC's share in this difference in dividend distributions is 
settled with Reed Eisevier NV and is credited directiy to 
consolidated reserves under equalisation. Reed Elsevier NV 
can pay a nomina1 dividend on its R-shares held by a 
subsidiary of Reed Eisevier PLC that is lower than the 
dividend on the ordinary shares. Equally, Reed Elsevier NV 
has the possibility to receive dividends directly f rom Dutch 
affiliates. Reed Elsevier PLC is cornpensated by direct 
dividend payments by Reed Eisevier Group plc. The 
settiements fiowing from these arrangements are also taken 
directiy to'consolidated reserves under equalisation 

Parent cornpany financiaí statements 
In accordance with 2 4 0 2  of the Netheriands Civii Code. the 
parent company financiai statements only contain an 
abridged profit and IOSS account. 

Combined financiai statements 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the 
combined financiai statements are set out on pages 58 to 61 

These inciude policies in relation to intangibie assets. Such 
assets are arnortised over their estimated usefui economic 
lives which, due to their iongevity. may he for periods in 
excess of five years. 

Basis of vaiuation of assets and liabil i t ies 
Reed Elsevier NV's 50% economic interest in the net assets 
of the cornbined businesses has been shown on 
the consoiidated baiance sheet as investments in joint 
ventures, net of the assets and iiabiiities reported as part of 
Reed Eicevier NV. Joint ventures are accounted for using the 
equity method. 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at fair value. Other 
assets and liabilities are stated at historica1 cost, less 
provision. if apprupriate, for any impairment in vahe.  

Foreign exchange translation 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the 
rate of exchange prevaiiing on the date of the transaction. At 
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that 
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rate prevaiiing on the baiance sheet date. Exchange 
differences arising are recorded in the income statement. 
The gains or losses relating to the retranslation of Reed 
Eisevier NV's 50% interest in the net assets of the combined 
businesses are ciassified as equity and transferred to the 
translation reserve. 

When foreign operations are disposed of, the reiated 
cumuiative translation differences are recognised within 
the incorne statement in the Deriod. 



Taxation 
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the 
current year taxable profits, adjustments in respect of prior 
year taxabie profits and the movements on deferred tax that 
are recognised in the income statement. Tax arising in joint 
ventures is included in the share of results of joint ventures. 

The tax payable on current year taxable profits is calcuiated 
using the appiicabie tax rate that has been enacted, 
or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is the tax  arising on differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financiai 
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in ihe 
cornputation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the 
balance sheet iiability method. Oeferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognised for a l i  taxable ternporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that, 
based on current forecasts, it is probable that taxabie profits 
wi l i  be available against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are expected 
to apply in the period when the iiabiiity is settled or  the asset 
is reaiised. Fuil provision is made for deferred tax which 
would become payable on the distribution of retained profits 
from foreign subsidiaries, associates or  joint ventures. 

Movernents in deferred tax are charged and credited in the 
income statement, except when they relate to i tems charged 
or  credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is 
also recognised in equity. 

Standards, amendments and interpretations 
not yet effective 
Recently issued standards. amendments and interpretations 
are not expected to have any significant impact when adopted. 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
1 For the year ended 31 December 2006 

1 Administrative expenses 
Adrninistrative expenses are stated after the gross remuneration tor present and forrner directors of Reed Eisevier NV 
in respect of services rendered to Reed Eisevier NV and the cornbined businesses. Fees lor  rnernbers of the Supervisory 
Board of Reed Eisevier NV of €0.2rn 12005: €0.2ml are inciuded in gross remuneration. In so far as gross rernuneration is 
reiated to services rendered to Reed Eisevier Group pic group and Elsevier Reed Finance BV group, it is borne by these 
groups. Reed Eisevier NV has no ernpioyees 12005: nill. 

2 Auditors’ remuneration 
Audit fees payabíe by Reed Eisevier NVwere €46,000 12005: ! W O O O I .  Further inforrnation on the audit and non-audit fees 
paid by the Reed Elsevier cornbined businesses to Deloitte Accountants B.V. and its associates is set out in note 2 to the 
cornbined financiai statements. 

3 Related party transactions 
Ai i  transactions with joint ventures, which are reiated parties of Reed Eisevier NV. have been refiected in these financial 
statements. Key management personnei are als0 reiated parties and cornprise the executive directors of Reed Eisevier NV. 
The rernuneration of executive directors of Reed Eisevier NV is disclosed in note 31 to the cornbined financial statements. 

4 Finance income 
2006 2005 

Crn Fm 
~ 

Finance incorne frorn joint ventures 7 2 

.5 Taxation 
A reconciliation of the notionai tax charge based on the appiicabie rate of tax to the actuai totai tax expense is set out beiow. 

2006 7005 
€m fm 

Profit before tax 459 338 
Tax at appiicabie rate 29.6% 12005: 31.5%1 136 106 
Taxon share of results of joint ventures I1351 I 1  061 
Tax expense 1 - 

6 Equity dividends 
2006 7005 2006 7005 

Dividends deciared in the year e f Em em 

Ordinary shares of €0 06 each 
Finai for prior financiai year €0.267 €0 240 197 177 
Interim for financiai year €0.102 €0 092 75 68 

R-shares of €0 60 each 
Totai €0.369 €0 332 272 245 

- - - - 

The directors of Reed Eisevier NV have proposed a finai dividend of €0.304 12005: €0.2671. The total cost of funding the 
proposed finai dividends is expected to be €223rn. No iiabiiity has been recognised at the date of the baiance sheet. 

2006 2005 
e f Dividends paid and proposed reiating to the financiai year 

Ordinarv shares of €0.06 each 
interim Ipaidl €0.102 €0 092 
Finai Iproposedl €0.304 €0 267 

R-shares of €0 60 each - - 

Total €0.406 €0 359 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

9 Cash flow statement 
Reconciliation of administrative expenses to cash used by operations 
Administrative expenses I31 131 

Cash used by operations 131 151 

2006 2005 
€rn ém 

Decrease in payables - 121 

2006 2005 
€m frn Reconciliation of net funding baiances due from joint ventures 

At start of year 14 30 
Cash fiow 612 1161 
At end of year 626 14 

10, Investments in joint ventures~ 

Share of results of joint ventures 45s 339 

Transfer to net profit from cash fiow hedge reserve , 141 1141 
Purchases of treasury shares by employee benefit trust I541 1201 

Equaiisation adjustmentc 1 - 

[DecreaseMncrease in the year 17271 296 

At end of year 760 1,487 

2006 2005 
Cm f m  

Share of joint ventures': 
Net lexpensel/income recognised directiy in equity 1501 138 

Increase in share based remuneration reserve 36 42 

Dividends received from joint ventures II.llll 11891 

At start of year 1,407 1,191 

Summarised information showing totai amounts in respect of joint ventures and Reed Eisevier NV's 50% share is set 
out beiow: 

Total joint ventures Reed Elsevier NVshare 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
€m frn €m frn 

Revenue 7,935 7,542 3,960 3,771 
Net profit for the year 919 677 455 339 

Reed Eisevier NV share Totai joint ventures 

2006 2005 2006 2005 
€m €m €m Em 

Totai assets 12,713 13,325 6,209 6.662 
Total iiabiiities (9,7641 110,4271 15.4491 15.1751 
Net assets 2,949 2,898 760 1.487 
Attributabie to: 
Joint ventures 2,929 2,876 760 i .ha7 

- - Minority interest5 20 22 
Total 2,949 2,898 760 i ,487 

The above amounts exclude assets and iiabiiities held directiy by Reed Eisevier NV and inciude the counterparty baiances 
owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses. lnciuded within Reed Eisevier NV's share of assets and liabiiities are cash 
and cash equivaients of €239m 12005: €215ml and borrowings of €2,2321~- 12005: €2,303ml. 



11 Payables 
Included within payables are employee convertible debenture ioans of f8m 12005: f7ml with a weighted average interest rate 
of 4.68% 12005: 4.74%1. Depending on the conversion terms, the surrender of €227 or €200 par value debenture ioans quaiifies 
for the acquisition of 50 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares. 

12 Share capitai 
Authorised No of shares €m 

Ordinary shares of €0 06 each 2,100,000,000 126 
Unciassified shares of €0 60 each 30,000,000 18 
Total 144 

R-shares Ordinaryshares R-shares Ordinaryshares T O t d  
Issued and fully paid Number Number em em Em 

At 1 January 2005 4,679.249 740,090,600 3 44 47 
Issue of ordinary shares 1,714,630 - 

At 1 January 2006 4,679,249 741.805.230 3 44 47 
Issue of ordinarv shares - 6.791.894 - 

~ - - 

1 1 . .  
At 31 December 2006 4,679.249 748.597.126 3 45 48 

The R-shares are held by a subsidiary of Reed Eisevier PLC. The R-shares are convertible at the eiection of the h o i d e r s h o  
ten ordinary shares each. They have otherwise the sarne rights as the ordinary shares, except that Reed Elsevier NV may pay 
a lower dividend on the R-shares. 

13 Paid-in surplus 

At start of year 1.495 1,477 

At end of year 1,562 1,495 

2006 2005 
Em f m  

Issue of ordinary shares 67 18 

Within paid-in surplus, an amount of €1,385m 12005: €1,318ml is free of tax 

The issue of ordinary shares relates to the exercise of share options. Details of share option and conditional share schemesi 
are set out in note 5 to the Reed Eisevier cornbined financiai statements. 

:-i 

I 

,y> 
i> 

i 
-~ 14 Shares held in treasury 

2006 i2005 
Em _€m 

At start of year 
Share repurchases 
Share of ioint ventures' empiovee benefit trust Durchases 

68 ,i47 
156 . ,- 
54 20 

Exchange translation differences 4 1 
At end of year 282 68 

Details of shares held in treasury are provided in note 28 to the Reed ELsevier cornbined financial statements 

15 Translation reserve 
2006 2005 

€m Ern 

At start of year 76 1981 
11461 I74 

At end of year 1701 76 
Share of joint ventures exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 



Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2006 

16 Other reserves 

At start of year 
Profit attributabie to ord inay sharehoiders 
Share of joint ventures': 

Actuariai gains/llossesl on defined benefit pension schernes 
Fair value movements on avaiiabie for sale investments 
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 
Tax recognised directiy in equity 
Transfer to net profit from hedge reserve 
Increase in share based remuneration reserve 

Equaiisation adjustments 
Equity dividend5 deciared I2721 12451 
At end of year 207 11121 

17 Contingent liabilities 
There are contingent iiabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Eisevier NV as foilows: 

2006 2005 
em f m  

I1 121 11981 
458 338 

102 1271 
2 2 
.40 181 
1441 121 
141 1141 
36 42 

1 - 

2006 2005 
em f m  

Guaranteed iointlv and severailv with Reed Eisevier PLC 3.858 3.949 

Financial instrurnents disciosures in respect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are given in note 17 to the 
Reed Elsevier cornbined financiai statements. 

18 Post balance sheet event 
On 14 Februay  2007, the company received a dividend of €750m from Reed Eisevier Overseas BV. 

On 14 Februay  2007. Reed Eisevier approved a plan to sell Harcourt Education. a division of Reed Elsevier Group plc. and to 
return the net proceeds to sharehoiders by way of a special distribution in the equaiisation ratio. lt is expected that the sale 
wi i l  be compieted during 2007. 



19 Principal joint ventures 

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 
1-3 Strand €10,000 ordinary "E" shares 100% 

%halding 

Reed Elsevier Group plc 
€10,000 ordinary "R" shares - 

London WC2N 5JR 
Holding cornpany for operating businesses 
involved in science & rnedical, legal, educationai 
and business pubiishing 
Elsevier Reed Finance BV 
Incorporated in the Netheriands 133 ordinary "R" shares - 

1043 NX Amsterdam, The Netherlands 
Holding cornpany for financing businesses 

The "R" shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV and the non-voting preference shares in Reed 

€100,000 7.5% cumuiative preference non voting shares - 

Equivalent to a 50% equity interest 

Radarweg 29 205 ordinary "E" shares 100% 

1 , Elsevier Group p k  are owned by Reed Elsevier PLC. 

Equivalent to a 61% equity interest 

In addition, Reed Elsevier NV holds €0.14m par vaiue in shares with special dividend rights in Reed Elsevier Overseas BV 
and Reed Eisevier Nederland BV, both with registered offices in Amsterdam. Thee shares are inciuded i n  the arriourii jhuwn 
under investments in joint ventures. They enable Reed Elsevier NV to receive dividends frum companies within the same 
tax jurisdiction. 

A list of companies within Reed Elsevier is filed with the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce in the Netherlands 

I 

~ 20 Approval of financial statements 
The consolidated financial statements were signed and authorised for issue by the Combined Board of directors on 
I A  February 2007. 

J Hommen 
Chairrnan 

M ' H  Armour 
Chief Financiai Officer 
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Independent auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements 
to the shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV 

Report on the consoiidated financial statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. which are part of the financial statements of 
Reed Eisevier NV, Amsterdam, for the year ended 31 
December 2006 Kthe consolidated financial statements"] 
cornprising the consolidated income statement, the 
consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated 
statement of recognised income and expense, the 
reconciiiation of sharehoiders' equity, the consoiidated 
baiance sheet. the group accounting poiicies and expianatory 
notes as set out in pages 128 to 137. 

Directors' responsibiiity 
Directors are responsibie for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consoiidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financiai Reporting Standards 
as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 
of the Netherlands Civil Code, and for the preparation of the 
Executive Board's report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 
of the Netheriands Civii Code. This responsibiiity includes: 
designing. implementing and maintaining internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consoiidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement. whether due to fraud ar error; selecting and 
appiying appropriate accounting poiicies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonabie in the 
circurnstances. 

Auditors' responsibiiity 
Our responsibiiity is to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law. This law 
requires that we comply with ethicai requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
materiai misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures seiected 
depend on the auditor's judgement. inciuding the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consoiidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internai control relevant to the entitys preparation 
and fair presentation of the consoiidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit als0 includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by directors, 
as wei i  as evaiuating ihe overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consoiidated financiai statements give a 
true and fairview of the financiai position of Reed Eisevier 
NV as at 31 December 2006. and of its result and i ts cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Ctandards as adopted by 
the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the 
Netheriands Civii Code. 

Report on other iegai and regulatory requirements 
Pursuant to the Legaí requirement under 2:393 subsection 5 
part e of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report, to the extent 
of our competence. that the Executive Board's report is 
consistent with the consolidated financial statements as 
required by 2:391 subsection 4 of the Netheriands Civil Code. 

Deioitte Accountants B.V. 
J P M Hopmans 
Amsterdam 
The Netherlands 
14 February 2007 

Additional information 
As set out in the notes to the consoiidated and parent 
cornpany financial statements. on 14 February 2007 the 
company received a dividend of €750m from Reed Eisevier 
Overseas BV. 



Parent company profit and [OSS account 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December Ern frn 

Administrative exoenses (31 131 
Dividends received from joint ventures 
Finance income from loint ventures 

1,111 
7 

. .  
189 

2 
Taxation 111 
Profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders 1.114 188 

- 

Parent company baìance sheet 
2006 2005 

As at 31 December NOW em frn 

Fixed assets 
Investrnents in joint ventures 2,161 2,161 
Current assets 
Amounts due from joint ventures - funding 626 14 
Amounts due from joint ventures - other 3 8 

629 22 
Cash 148 1 

777 71 

Creditors: amounts faiiing due within one year 
Taxat ion 1641 1641 
Other creditors 1 181 I81 

1721 1771 

Net current assetsllliabiiitiesl 705 1491 
Net assets 2.866 2.112 

Capital and reserves 
Share capitai issued 
Paid-in surplus 47 I 48 

1,562 1.495 
Shares held in treasuw 11561 - 

t.) The parent company financial statements were signed and authorised for issue by the Cornbined Board of directors 
on 14 February 2007. I 

, 1 1  

J Hommen 
Chairman 

M H Armour 
Chief Financial Officer 



Parent company reconciliation of shareholders' funds 

Paid-in Shares held Share capital 
iksued surolusl,, in tieasuw ReSeWW Totai 

~~~~ 

fm fm em €m fm 

At 1 January 2005 47 1,477 - 627 2,151 
Profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders - ~ - 188 188 

18 - - 18 Issue of shares, net of expenses 
Equity dividends paid - - - í2451 12451 

At 1 January 2006 47 1,495 - 570 2,112 
Profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders - - - 1,114 1.114 

Issue of shares, net of expenses 1 67 - - 68 

~ 

Equity dividends paid - - - 12721 I2721 
Purchase of shares - - I1561 - I1561 

At 31 December 2006 48 1,562 11561 1.41 2 2,866 

111 Within paid-in surplus. a n  arnount of €1.385m 12005: €1.318mi is f ree  of tax.  

Parent company accounting policies 

Basis of preparation 
The parent company financiai statements have been 
prepared under the historica1 cost convention. As permitted 
by 2:362 subsection'l of the Netheriands Civii Code for 
cornpanies with international operations, the parent 
company financiai statements have been prepared in 
accordance.with UK Generaiiy Accepted Accounting 
Principies [GAAP] ensuring consistency. The financiai 
information reiating to the cornpany is recognised in 
the consoiidated financiai statements. In accordance with 
2 4 0 2  of the Netheriands Civii Code, the parent company 
financiai statements oniy contain an abridged profit and 
105s account. 

The Reed Eisevier NV accounting poiicies under UK GAAP 
are set out beiow. 

Investments 
Fixed asset investments in the cornbined businesses are 
stated a t  cost, less provision, if appropriate. for any 
impairment in vaiue. Principal joint ventures are set 
out in note I? of the Reed Eisevier NV consoiidated 
financiai statements. 

Short term investments are stated at the iower of cost and 
net reaiisabie vaiue. Other assets and Liabilities are stated 
at historica\ cost, iess provision, if appropriate, for any 
impairment in vaiue. 

Shares held i n  treasury 
The amount of consideration paid. inciuding directiy 
attributabie costs for shares repurchased, is recognised as 
shares held in treasury and presented as a deduction f rom 
totai equity. 

Foreign exchange translation 
Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded 
at the exchange rates appiicable at the time of the 
transaction. 

Taxation 
Deferred taxation is provided in fui l  for timing differences 
using the iiabiiity rnethod. Deferred tax assets are only 
recognised to the extent that they are considered 
recoverabie in the short term. Deferred taxation baiances 
are not discounted. 



1 Other creditors 
Other creditors inciude €8m 12005: f7rnl  of employee convertible debenture loans with a weighted average interest rate 
of 4.68% 12005: 4.74%1. Depending on the conversion terms. the surrender of €227 or  €200 par value debenture loans 
qualifies for the acquisition of 50 Reed Eisevier NV ordinary shares. 

2 Reconciliations to consolidated financial statements 
A reconciiiation of the parent company profit attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under UK GAAP and the 
consolidated profit attributable to ordinary sharehoiders prepared under IFRS and presented under the equity method 
is provided below: 

2006 2005 
k a r  ended 31 December em Ern 

Farent company profit attributabie to ordinary shareholders 1,114 188 
Share of results of joint ventures 455 339 
Dividends received from joint ventures (1.11 I J  11891 
Consoiidated profit attributabie to ordinary shareholders using the equity method 458 338 

I 

~ A reconciliation between the parent company shareholders' funds prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated 
sharehoiders' funds prepared under IFRS and presented under the equity rnethod is provided below: 

2006 2005 
As at 31 December em em 

Parent company shareholders' funds 
Cumulative share of resuits of joint ventures iess cumuiative dividends received 

Cumuiative currency transiation adjustments 
Curnulative equalisation and other adjustments 
Share of treasury shares held by joint ventures' employee benefit trust 

from joint ventures 

2,866 2.112 

16501 6 
12901 11 141 
267 134 

11261 1681 
Share of IFRS adjustments in joint ventures 16021 16021 
Consoiidated shareholders' funds using the equity method 1,465 1,438 

3 Post balance sheet event 
On 14 February 2007, the company received a dividend of €750m from Reed Eìsevier Overseas BV, I "." 

'i i 
After taking account of this dividend and the other incorne and expenses in the period from 1 January 2007 to 14 February t 

2007. the surnrnarised parent cornpany balance sheet of Reed Elsevier NV as at 14 February 2007 was as ~ O ~ ~ O W S :  

As at 14 February 2007 e r  
Investrnents in joint ventures 2,161 
Arnounts due from joint ventures: 

Funding 1,357 
Other ".2 

Cash 176 
Creditors: amounts faliing due within one year I731 
Net assets 3,623 
Share capital issued 48 
Faid-in surplus 1,568 
Shares heid in treasury 11561 
Resemes 2,163 
Sharehoiders' funds 3,623 

C.? 
v.. 
i 

... 
L..,.' 
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Independent auditors' report on the parent company financial statements 
to the chareholders of Reed Elcevier NV 

Report on the parent company financiai statements 
We have audited the accornpanying parent company financial 
statements 2006, which are part of the financial statements 
of Reed Elsevier NV, Amsterdam, for the year ended 31 
December 2006 [" the company financial statements"] 
cornprising the parent company profit and Los5 account, the 
parent cornpany balance sheet, the parent company 
reconciiiation of shareholders' funds, the parent cornpany 
accounting policies and !he expianatory notes as set out in 
pages 139 to 1L l  

Directors' responsibility 
Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation o f  the company financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United Kingdom and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands 
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the Executive Board 
report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 oi  the 
Netherlands Civil Code. This responsibiiity includes: 
designing. implernenting and rnaintaining internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
company financial statements that are free i rom material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or  ermr;  selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circurnstances. 

Auditors' responsibiiity 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Dutch law. This law requires that we 
cornply with ethicai requirernents and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonabíe assurance whether the campany 
iinancial statements are free fmm rnaterial misstatement. 

An audit involves perforrning procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the arnounts and disclosures in the company 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement. including the assessrnent of the risks of 
rnaterial misstatement of the company iinancial statements. 
whether due to fraud o r  error. In rnaking those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
cornpany financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances. but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of !he entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by directors, as wel l  as evaiuaiing the 
overall presentation of the company financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis ior  our 
audit oy>inion. 

Opinion 
In Dur opinion. the company financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the iinancial position o i  Reed Elsevier NV as 
at 31 December 2006, and of its result for i he  year then 
ended in accordance with.accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United Kingdom and with Part 9 o i  Book 2 o i  
the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report on other iegai and regulator/ requirements 
Pursuant to :he Legal requirernent under 2:393 subsection 5 
part e o i  the Netherlands Civii Code, we report, to the extent 
of our competence. that the Executive Board's report is 
consistent with the parent company financial statements as 
required by 2:391 subsection L of the Netheriands Civil Code. 

Deloitte Accountants E.V. 
J P M Hopmans 
Amsterdam 
The Netherlands 
14 February 2007 



Additional information 
Proposal for ailocation of profit Ern ern 

zaoh 2005 

Final dividend on ordinary shares for prior financial year 197 177 
Interim dividend on ordinary shares for financial year 75 68 
Dividend on R-shares - - 
Retained proíit/llossl 842 157) 

1.114 188 

As set out in the notes to the consolidated and parent company iinanciai statements, on 14 February 2007 the company 
received a dividend af f750m k o m  Reed Eisevier Overseas EV. 

~ The combined Supervisory and Executive Board determines the part of the profit to be retained. The profit to be distributed 
is paid on the ordinary shares and the R-shares in proportion to their nominai value. The Combined Board may resolve to 
pay iess per R-share. but not less than 1% of the norninaivalue. 

The company is bound by the Governing Agreement with Reed Eisevier PLC, which provides that Reed Eisevier NV 
shal l  declare dividends such that the dividend on one Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share, which shal i  be payabie in euros, 
wi i i  equai 1.538 times the dividend, inciuding, other than in special circumstances, the reiated UK tax credit, paid on one 
Reed Eìsevier PLC ordinary share. 





Reed ELsevier combined businesses 
Summary financial information in US dollars 

Basis of preparation 
The surnrnary financiai information is a sirnpie translation of the Reed Eisevier cornbined financial statements into US dollars 
at the stated rates of exchange. The financial information provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation 
of the Reed Eisevier cornbined financial statements. lt does not represent a restatement under US GAAP which would be 
different in some significant respecis. 

Exchange rates for translation 

US dollars to sterling 

üalance sheet Income statement 
2006 2005 2006 2005 

1.84 1.82 1.96 ' 1.73 

Combined income statement 
2006 2005 

USBm USBrn 

9.932 9,402 
1,619 1,527 
1,327 1,276 
1,146 841 
2,226 2,078 
1,936 1,824 
1.465 1,372 

For the year ended 31 December 
Revenue 
Operating proiit 
Proiit before tax 
Profit attributabie to parent companies' shareholders 
Adjusted operating profit 
Adjusted pmfit before tax 
Adjusted profit attributable to parent companies' shareholders 



Reed Elsevier combined businesses 
Combined cash flow statement 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December US$" U58m 

Net cash trom operating activities 1,792 1,656 
Net cash used in investing activities I5561 I8281 
Net cash used in financing activities 17961 17081 
Increase in cash and cash eouivalents bb0 i in 
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 
At start of year 512 434 
lncrease in cash and cash equivalents 440 120 
Exchange translation differences 65 1421 
At end of vear 1.017 512  

Adjusted operating cash flow 2,120 1.966 

Combined balance sheet 
2006 za05 

A5 at 31 December US5rn us5m 

Non-current assets 11.637 11.598 
Current assets 5,086 4,088 
Assets held for sale - 104 
Total assets 16,723 15,790 
Current liabtlities 6,535 5,451 

Liabiiities associated with assets held for s a k  - 20 
Total iiabiiities 12.044 12,356 
Net assets 3.879 3 434 

Non-current iiabiiities 6,309 6.885 



Reed Eisevier combined businesses 
Summary of the principal differencec to US GAAP 

The combined financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with IFRS, which differs in certain significant 
respects from US GAAP. The principai differences that affect 
net income and combined shareholders' funds are expiained 
below and their approximate effect is shown on page 150. 
The Reed Eisevier Annual Report 2006 on Form 20-F 
provides further information for US investors. 

Goodwill and intangibie assets 
Under IFRS. acquired goodwilt and intangible assets with 
indefinite h e s  are not amortised and are subject to at least 
annual impairment review. Other intangible assets with 
definite h e s  are amortjsed over their estimated useful 
economic lives up to 40 years. Previously, under UK GAAP, 
acquired goodwill and intangibie assets had been amortised 
systematicaily over their estimated useful h e s  up to a 
maximum of 40years. subject to impairment review. There 
was no retrospective restatement of the acquired goodwili 
and intangibie asset values as at the date of transition to 
IFRS [ I  January 20041. 

Under US GAAP, acquired goodwill and intangible assets 
are accounted for in accordance with SFAS111 - Business 
Combinations and SFAS142 - Goodwiil and Other intangible 
Assets. In accordance with these SFASs, goodwill and 
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortised and 
are subject to at least annual irnpairment review, with effect 
from 1 January 2002. except in respect of 2001 acquisitions 
made after 1 Juiy 2001, for which the effective date under 
the transitional provisions was i Juiy 2001. Other intangibie 
assets with definite lives are amortised over their estimated 
useful economic lives up to 40 years. subject to annual 
impairment review under SFASJLL: Accounting for the 
Impairment or  Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. 

Under IFRS. any deferred tax iiability arising on acquired 
intangibie assets in acquisitions made after the transition 
date of 1 January 2004, results in a corresponding grossing 
up of acquired goodwill. For acquisitions made prior to the 
transition date, any such deferred tax iiabilities were written 
off directiy to equity on transition to IFRS. Under US GAAP, 
goodwill has historically been grossed up for deferred tau 
liabilities on acquired intangible assets. This, along with the 
historically lower goodwill amortisation charge under US 
GAAP compared to previous UK GAAP, results in a higher 
carrying vaiue of goodwiil and intangible assets under US 
GAAP. 

Under US GAAP, as at 31 December 2006, the carrying 
value of goodwill is  fL.006m (2005: E4.470mI. the gross cost 
of intangible assets is E4,262m 12005: f4,613ml and the 
accumulated amortisation of intangible assets is E1.980m 
12005: €?,873ml. 

Disposais 
As expiained above, the carrying value of goodwill and 
intangible assets under US GAAP in relation to certain 
business combinations is higher than the equivalent figure 
under IFRS. On disposal of a business, to the extent the 
carrying vaiue of goodwiil and intangible assets related to 
the disposat are higher under US GAAP, a lawergain/higher 
loss wil i  be reported under US GAAP. 

Pensions 
Under IFRS, the expense of defined benefit pension schemes 
and other post-retirement benefit schemes is charged to the 
income statement as an operating expense over the periods 
benefiting from the employees' services. The charge is based 
on actuarial assumptions reflecting market conditions at the 
beginning of the financiai year. Variations h o m  this expected 
cost are recognised in fu l í  in the statement o f  recognised 
income and expense in the period in which they occur. Net 
pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are 
included in the balance sheet a t  the present value of scheme 
!iabilities. iess the fair value of scheme assets. Where assets 
exceed liabilities, any net pension asset is limited to the 
extent that the asset is recoverabie through reductions 
in future contributions. 

Under US GAAP, pension costs and iiabilities are accounted 
for in accordance with SFAS87: Employers' Accounting for 
Pensions as amended by SFAS158: Employers' Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other Post retirement 
PLans. The determination of !he net pension cost is similar to 
IFRS, however variations f rom expected cost, which are 
determined by reference to market related values of plan 
assets. are amortised over the expected rernaining service 
iives of plan members. In 2005. prior to the arnendments by 
SFASl58, SFAS87 als0 required a minimum pension iiability 
to be recognised that was at ieast equal to the unfunded 
benefit obiigation (ignoring projected future sa(ary increasesl. 
Changes in the additionai minimum pension liability were 
recognised within other cornprehensive income, a component 
of shareholders' equity. From the 2006 financial year SFAS87, 
as amended by SFAS158, requires that the fu l l  funded status 
of defined benefit pension schernes is recognised as an asset 
or liability in the balance sheet, with changes in that funded 
status recognised in other comprehensive income in the year 
in which they occur. The effect on the balance sheet of 
applying SFAS158 for the first time in 2006 is to increase net 
pension liabilities by E223m. Deferred tax assets are 
correspondingiy increased by E70m. 

Oerivative financiai instruments 
Under both IFRS llAS39 - Financiai Instrumentsi and US 
GAAP ISFAS133 -Accounting for Derivative lnstruments and 
Jiedging Activjties), al1 derivative financial instruments are 
required to be carried at fair vaiue on the balance sheet. 
Changes in fair value are accounted for through the 
income statement or equity, depending on the derivative's 
designation and effectiveness as a hedging instrument. 



. . . . .  

Derivative instrurnents üsed by Reed Elsevier as fair value 
hedges are designated as qualiiying hedge instruments 
under IA539 and SFASl33. The iixed rate loans which 
are swapped to iloating rate and subject to this hedyiny 
treatment are set out on pages 82 and 83. Arnounts only 
impact net income, under both IFRS and US GAAP, in reiation 
!o these instruments to the extent that the hedges are not 
fuily eiiective. 

In addition, certain iotward exchange rate contracts and 
interest rate swaps have been designated as qualiiying cash 
fiow hedge instrurnents under lAS39 and SFACl33. 
Accordingiy, to the extent that the hedges are effective, rnark- 
to-market movements are recorded in either equity IIFRSI or  
other comprehensive incorne (US GAAP]. Other derivative 
instruments, which act as cashilow hedges, have not been 
desiynated as qualifying hedge instruments under either 
IAS39 or  SFAS133 and, accordingly. changes in the fair value 
of Ihose derivative instruments are recorded in net income 
under both IFRS and US GAAP. 

IAC39 was effective f rom 1 January 2005 resulting in a 
curnulative transition adjustrnent of E29m 105s to other 
combined reserves and a E40rn gain recognised in the hedye 
reserve, which included a ElOm ioss reiating to instruinenk 
that were treated as hedges under previously applied UK 
GAAP. büt which are not designated as hedges under IAS39. 
These iosses are unwoünd over the period to which they 
reiate and consequentiy give rise to a short term difference 
between net incorne reported under IFRS and US GAAP. 

Deferred taxation 
Under IFRS, deierred taxation is provided for neariy al1 
diiferences between the balance sheet arnounts of assets 
and liabiiities and their tax bases. Deferred tax liabiiities are 
generaily recognised for a l i  taxable ternporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profits wi l i  be available against which 
deductible temporary difierences can be utilised. 

Under US GAAP, deferred taxation is provided on a l i  
temporary diiferences under the liability method subject to a 
valuation aliowance on deferred tax assets where applicabie. 
in accordance with SFASIO9 -Accounting for Income Taxes. 

The most significant deferred tax differences between IFRS 
and US GAAP a r k e  i rom the different carrying values in 
respect of pensions, goodwill and acquired intangible assets 
as described above. The tax effect of these and other GAAP 
difierences in carrying values is that net income under US 
GAAP is E23m higher than reported under IFRC 12005: E27m 
higher, and combined shareholders' equity is f28m lower 
than reported under IFRS 12005: E144rn lowerl. 

A fürther diiierence arises on the recognition o i  deferred tax 
assets for share based remuneration, which, under IFRS, is 
calcuiated based on the intrinsic value o i  outstanding awards 
and which, under US GAAP, is determined based on the 
cumuiative charge to net incorne. As a result o i  this 
diiierence net incorne under US GAAP is E3m iower than 
reported under IFRS 12005: E24m iowerl, and combined 
shareholders' equity is  E19m higher than reported under 
IFRS 12005: E25rn higher). 

Current taxation 
Under IFRC, changes in estimates and final settlements 
of income tax  uncertainties that result from a business 
combination are recognised in net income. These changes 
under US GAAP, with the exception of üncertainties reiated 
to valuation allowances on deierred tax assets, are 
recognised as an adjüstment to acquired goodwill. In 2006 a 
E54m adjustrnent was made to goodwill under US GAAP 
reiating to the favourable settlement of tax on prior year 
disposais, that under IFRS was recognised in net incorne. 

Adjusted earnings 
In the combined financial statements adjusted proiit and 
'cash i iow measures are presented, as permitted by IFRS. 
as additionai performance rneasures. US GAAP does not 
permit the presentation of alternative earnings measures 

Short term obligations expected to be refinanced 
Under US GAAP, where it is expected to refinance short term 
obligations on a long term basis and this is supported by 
an ability to consümrnate the refinancing. such short term 
obligations shouid be exciuded from current iiabiiities 
and shown as Long term obligations. Under IFRS, such 
obligations can only be excluded k o m  current liabiiities 
where, additionally, the debt and facility are under a singie 
agreement or  course of deaiiny with the same lender or 
group of lenders. Short term obligations at 31 Decemberi,:.' 
2006 of E915rn 12005: f889ml would be exciuded from !..fl 
current liabilities under US GAAP and shown as 

. 

I 
-. long term obligations. li.> 

:1 
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Reed Elsevier combined businesces 
Effects on net income of material differences between IFRS and US GAAP 

2006 2005 
For the year ended 31 December E r n  E r n  

lntangibie assets 1 5 

Net income as reported under IFRS 623 462 
US GAAP adjustmentc 

1.61) - Disposals 
Pensions 11561 (781 
Derivative financial instrument5 3 151 

1561 - Current taxation 
Deterred taxation 20 3 
Other 3 1131 

Net incorne under US GAAP 399 314 

Effects on combined shareholders' equity of material differences between 
IFRS and US GAAP 

2006 2005 As at 31 December Crn Em 

Combined shareholders equiiy as reported under IFRS 1,966 1,970 
US GAAP adjustments 

Goodwill and intanqible acsets 1.256 1.491 
Pensions 
Derivative financiai instrurnents 
Deferred taxation 

- L09 
5 

191 I1191 
- 

Other 7 7 
Cornbined shareholders' equity under US GAAP 3,220 3,763 



Reed Elsevier PLC 
Summary financial information in US dollars 

Basis of preparation 
The surnrnary financial information is a simple translation of Reed Elsevier PLC's consolidated financial statements into 
US dollars at the stated rates of exchange. The financial information provided beiow is prepared under IFRS as used 
in the preparation of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financia! statements. It does not represent a restaternent under 
U S  GAAP which wouid he different in some significant respects. 

2006 2005 
Exchange rates for translation of sterling l$:€ll US$:[ US$.E 

Income statement 1 .a4 1.82 
Baiance sheet 1.96 1.73 

Consolidated income statement 
200b 2005 

For the year ended 31 December U S m  US% 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 589 428 
Adjusted profit attributabie to 52.9% interest in Reed ELsevier combined businesses 775 724 
Share of joint ventures': 

Arnortisation of acquired intangible assets I3151 [2991 
Acquisition integration costs 1151 1161 
Disposais and other non operating i@ms 63 2 
Deferred tax adjustrnents 99 31 

Profit attributable to 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses 607 '. 444 

2006 2005 
Data per American Depositary Share IADSl US$ US5 

, Earninas oer ADS based on 52 9% interest in Reed Eisevier cornbined businesses 
Adjuited $2.47 $2.29 
Basic $1.88 $1.35 

Net dividend per ADC declared in the year $1.09 $0.97 
Net dividend per ADS paid and proposed in relation to the financial year 

Consoli dat ed bala nce sheet 
As at 31 December US$m U 5 B m  

Shareholders' equity 2,038 i ,803 

$1.17 $1.05 

2006 2005 

r..:.,' 

Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Share is based on Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders' 52.9% share of the adjuste'd 
profit attributabie of the Reed Ekevier cornbined businesses, which exciudes amortisation of acquired intangibie assets. ' 
acquisition integration costs, disposals and other non operating items, reiated tax effects and rnovements in deferred tax bi 
assets and liabilities that are nol  expected to crystallise in the near term. Adjusted íigures are described in note 9 to the 'c.' 

C:* 
-1 .I 

Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements. 

Reed Eisevier PLC shares are quoted on the New York Stock Exchange and trading is in the forrn of American Depositary 
Shares lADSs1. evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (ADRs1, representing four Reed Eisevier PLC ordinary shar is  
of 1 2 . 5 ~  each. (CUSIP No. 758205108; trading symboi, RUK; Bank of New York is the ADS Depositary.1 



Reed Elsevier PLC 
Summary of the principal differences between IFRS and US GAAP 

Reed Elsevier PLC accounts for its shareholders' 52.9% economic interest in the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, before 
the effect o i  tax credit equalisation. using the equity method in conformity with IFRS which is similar to the equity rnethod in 
US GAAP. Using the equity method to present its net income and shareholders' equity under US GAAP, Reed Elsevier PLC 
reflects i ts shareholders' 52.9% share of the effects of differences between IFRS and US GAAP relating to the combined 
businesses as a single reconciiing i tem. The most significant differences relate to goodwill and acquired intangible assets, 
disposals, pensions and current and deferred taxes. A more complete explanaiion of the accounting policies used by the 
Reed Elsevier combined businesses and the differences between IFRS and US GAAP is given on pages 148 and 149. 
The Reed Elsevier Annual Report 2006 on Form 20-F provides further information for US investors. 

Effects on net income of material differences between IFRS and US GAAP 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December Em CIT 

Net income as rerjorted under IFRS 320 235 
- Impact of US GMP adjustments to combined financial statements íll8l 1471 
Net income under US GAAP 202 188 
Earnings per ordinary share onder US GAAP 1 6 . 1 ~  148p  

Effects on shareholders' equity of material differences between IFRS 
and US GAAP 

Shareholders equity as reported under IFRS 1,040 1,042 

2Q0b 2005 
As at 31 December Cm Em 

Impact of US GAAP adjustments to combined financial statements 663 948 
Sharehoiders' equity under US GAAP 1,703 1,990 



Reed ELsevier NV 
Sumrnary financial information in US dollars 

Basis of preparation 
The summary financial information is a simple translation of the Reed Eisevier NV consolidated financial Statements into US 
dollars at the stated rates of exchange. The financial information provided.beiow is prepared under iFRS as used in t6e 
preparation of the Reed Eisevier NV consolidated financial statements. It does not represent a restatement under US GAAP 
which would be different in some significant respects. 

2006 2005 
Exchange rates for translation of euros [$:€I US$:€ US$.€ 

Income statement 1.25 1.25 
Balance sheet 1.32 1.18 

Consolidated income statement 
2006 2005 

For the year ended 31 December USlrn USBrn 

Adjusted profit attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders 732 687 
Share of joint ventures': 

' Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 12981 12821 
Acquisition integration costs I151 I151 
Disposais and other non operating items 60 1 
Deferred tax adjustments 94 30 

Profit attributabie to. ordinary sharehoiders 573 42 1 

2006 2005 
Data per American Depositary Share IADSl US$ US$ 

Earnings per ADS based on 50% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses 
Adjusted $1.90 $1.75 
Basic $1.48 $1.07 

Net dividend per AD5 declared in the year $0.92 $0.83 
$1 .o2 $0.90 Net dividend per ADS paid and proposed in reiation to the financial year 

Consolidated balance sheet 
2006 2005 

As at 31 December US$m US5m 

Sharehoiders' equity 1,934 I ,704 
(.,.I 

Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Share is based on Reed Ekevier NV sharehoiders' 50% share of the adjusted ' 
profit attributabie of the Reed Eisevier combined businesses, which excludes'amortisation of acquired intangible assets, 'Y 
acquisition integration costs. disposals and other non operating items, reiated tax effects and movements in deferred tax l.i. 

assets and liabilities that are not expecied to crystallise in the near term. Adjusted figures are described in n o k  8 to the ' 
Reed Eísevier NV consolidated financiai statements. 

Reed Ekevier NV shares are quoted on the New York Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of Arnerican Depositary 
Shares IADSsl, evidenced by American Depositary Receipts [ADRsl. representing two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares 
of $0.06 each. ICUSIP No. 758204101: trading symbol, ENL; Bank of New York is the ADS Depositaryl. 

b.. ,> 

<Z..' 
c_ ' 
:f,' 'I! 
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Reed Elsevier NV 
Summary of the principal differences between IFRS and US GAAP 

Reed Elsevier NV accounts for its 50% economic interest in the Reed Elsevier combined businesses, before the effect 
of tax credit equalisation, using the equity method in its consolidated financial statements. Using the equity method to present 
its net income and shareholders' equity under US GAAP, Reed Elsevier NV refiects its 50% share of the effects 
of differences between UK and US GAAP relating to the combined businesses as.a single reconciling item. The most 
significant differences relate to  goodwiii and acquired intangible assets. disposais, pensions and current and deferred taxes. 
A more complete expianation of the accounting poiicies used by the Reed Eisevier combined businesses and the differences 
between IFRS and US GAAP is given on pages 148 and 149. The Reed Eisevier Annuai Report 2006 on Form 20-F provides 
further information for US investors. 

Effects on net income of material differences between IFRS and US GAAP 
For the year ended 31 December fm frn 

Net income as reported under IFRS 458 338 
Impact of US GAAP adjustments to combined financial statements I1501 1511 
Net income under US GAAP 308 287 
Earnings per ordinary share under US GAAP €0.40 €0 37 

2006 2005 

Effects on shareholders' equity of material differences between IFRS and 
US GAAP 

2006 2005 
As at 31 December €m fm 

Sharehoiders equity as reported under IFRS 1.465 1,438 
Impact of US GMP.adjustments to combined financiai statements 934 1,309 
Shareholders' equity under US GAAP 2.399 2,741 

I 
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